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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
BBEE

Year Ended 31 March
BE=A=1T—-HLEE

2019 2018

—E-hE —T-N\5F

Revenue A HK$2,831.8 million HK$1,351.8 million
2,831.8HBETT 1,351.8B&EETT

Profit attributable to owners of the parent BAREA AERER CLEEERTIETS  HK$1,808.5 million
500.3E B T 1,808.58 &8 7T

Basic earnings per share BREAEZF HK3.29 cents HK11.90 cents

3.2978 Il 11.907 1

Year Ended 31 March
BZ=HA=1t-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hE& —E—)\&
Total assets BEE CLCHRRP RIS HK$10,147.7 million
11,070.35 &% 10,147 7TEEE T
Net assets BEZFE HK$4,489.5 million HK$4,183.9 million
4,480.5HEB T 41839 EE T
Net asset value per share BREEFE HK$0.30 HK$0.28
0.30% T 0283 7T
Gearing ratio BELE 44.2% 41.0%
REVENUE PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
WA OF THE PARENT
HK$ milion B ATHEE ARG REF
BEET HKS milion
BEBT
8,000 --------------oooaooooooooo 8 2,000 ----------e-eomemeoe—oooooooo-
1,808.5
2,400 --------ememoeoooomeeooeo- 1,600 -------c-oc-oooooo-o--MR -
1,800 --------mmmeeooooo 1,200 --------m-eeo----- -
1,230.0
1,200 -- 800 -------------------------------
457.4 410.0 500.3
600 -- 400 -- g - - -
38.8
|

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

ASSETS EMPLOYED
FrABE

As at 31 March 2019
RZEBE—-NF=ZA=+—8H

Property
Development
! MEER

Cash and
Corporate Assets
Re R

NEVEE

Property
Investment

MEERE

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE PARENT
JRRHERAEGRER

HK$ million
BEBT

2015 2016 2017

2018 2019

PBEMEE)

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
EXRAR

As at 31 March 2019
RZE-NF=ZA=1+—H

Other Liabilities and
Non-controlling Interests
! Hip & EMIEE IR

Capital
and Reserve

AARN R

Bank and
Other Borrowings
BITREAMIEE

GEARING RATIO
BELE

Percentage
At

57.7 60.7 41.0
|| || ]

2016 2017 2018

44.2
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

For the year ended 31 March 2019, uncertainties loom over
the global market, with intensified Sino-US trade tensions,
slowdown in the economic growth of China, successive US
interest rate hikes, resulting in dampened market sentiment and
an end to the growth momentum in the previous year. However,
given the good economic fundamentals in Hong Kong, and the
continuously high demand for real estate properties, the overall
property market maintained a positive trend of steady growth
despite temporary adjustment during the period. During the
year, Wang On Properties Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) implemented
the development strategy of both residential and commercial
projects as we continued to develop residential projects
that meet the market demand while further expanding into
commercial property projects, yielding satisfactory results.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Company maintained a balanced property portfolio to
provide the Group with stable and diversified revenue stream.
For all developed or acquired residential or commercial
property projects, the Group formulates a meticulous plan and
premium design with regard to their geographic location and
surroundings so as to play to the strengths of the brands under
the Group, meet different requirements from target customers
and boost the asset value of each project.

During the year under review, the Group delivered steady
progress in projects and recorded annual contracted sales of
approximately HK$3.6 billion. This had fuelled our profit and
revenue for the Group’s future development.

Regarding residential property development, following the
successful launch of “The Met.”, a boutique residential
property series much sought after by single people and young
couples, the Group launched a luxury residential series branded
“NOUVELLE” and is developing premium house project,
achieving a three-pronged series, comprehensively catering for
the diversified needs of different homebuyers in Hong Kong.

ERE®RE

BFURR :

HE-_Z-—HNF=ZA=Z+—BLLEE BEH
BAFRTHABPAEER HXBESEREME - PE
MERERRE  UREBREEMES  MWHER
AXR ABEBELFNEEHN - R AE
KEEARN  HEHENZRKEBEESS B
FHHSCESEAE EMEBNREFETR
4 o Wang On Properties LimitedZz & i & & IR
AR FRDTE ] EREMBRRF - HBIARE
BEDRFREREELRBHXBEERENRER
B BEFROEGMESFIRNETEEE @ A
E—SHRMEmEMEEE WIS EAEES -

LELDRE

ARARHREHEFHWEXRHES  RAKHERE
HRERREZ T ZRARER - SEEE - Tm
EREIRBZEETXEAYE  AEEHH
EEMEBECEANEEEE  BLRE - Ea
BYURE  BRBARNKEBETRENES
MERBRBENTRABR RBRAZHERANEE
BE -

REBEFRN  AEEBTSHEBBEER B35
49 [Z $H & 588515 £93,600,000,00058 7T+ A

SERKRBEREABNKEZRE N -

FTEVMEERIE  ASEERNITEBTE
FALTRFVBEFHER[The Met. BB REE
RI BTG  HHEFXEETERBRRY
[NOUVELLE| ' AR EHRE S FFIEE ' &
WZBERYTT  2EADEABTRAEEA
THELRE -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

ETRHER)

The Met. Blossom (Ma Kam Street, Ma On Shan), a residential
development project under “The Met.” series of the Group,
had started its delivery to owners since August 2018. The total
sales of this development project amounted to approximately
HK$2.5 billion, and the Group owns 60% equity interest in this
development project. Another residential development project
under “The Met.” series, The Met. Acappella, located at No.
7838 Tai Po Road — Tai Wai, has been popular ever since its
launch in 2017. As at the date of this annual report, 314 units
have been sold, including all standard flats, with only a few
unique flats left to be sold by way of tender. The contracted
sales of this development project amounted to approximately
HK$2.3 billion.

During the year under review, the Group co-developed with CIFI
Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. a luxury residential series branded
“NOUVELLE". The first property development project, “maya”,
located at No. 8 Shung Shan Street and No. 15 Sze Shan Street
in Yau Tong, was pre-sold in late March 2019. This development
project is located at the central area of Kowloon East as a
connection to the two core commercial zones in Hong Kong
Island East and Kowloon East. Given the favourable location and
a graceful architectural design, this development project has
been sought after by buyers in Hong Kong Island Eastern and
Kowloon Eastern districts. As at the date of this annual report,
162 units under “maya” have been sold, recording contracted
sales of approximately HK$1.6 billion. The Group owns 50%

KNEE[The Met. | Z 3| F £ R E B & B
(ERLESE R 22— \NFEFNAHA
R FEF ZELEBEEZAHEEENAE
2,500,000,000/8 70 - N EEHE A ZERIEE
K160%#E z © MK ZF — L FH# [ The Met. |
RIS —FERREEEB(URAKRNFAK—
KEER78385F)  FEUKRATED  HEAK
FHRAL  RE314K - FTEZEBNE L
B HBLEFREFERBEERAGE B3]
%) 44 & 58 £72,300,000,00075 7T °

REBEAR  AEEEEBZER(SE)ERA
AAEERE2MEZEmE AT NOUVELLE] -
BEMmEZREIEES (maya® = | (R HESILE
8RR MMILEIsF)IER -_E—NAF=ZATH
FHBEE - ZERBEBMENLERZOME
BZE2EERENNEERMAZLEERR - HF
B MEBERARE BEERRNER
MNERSK RAFHBEH  [mayaBE |
B L1621k - B 5] 4984 & %8 491,600,000,000
T ASEHEEZEREBNS0%ERE
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

“Altissimo”, a property development project located at
Whitehead, Ma On Shan (No.11 Yiu Sha Road, Ma On Shan),
co-developed by the Group with Country Garden Holdings
Company Limited and China State Construction International
Holdings Limited, was launched in the fourth quarter of
2018, and 336 units have been sold so far, which result was
satisfactory. The Group owns 40% equity interest in this
development project.

During the year under review, the Group also co-developed
with Kam Wah Ever Rich Limited a residential development
project located in Mid-levels West, Pokfulam (Nos. 86A-86D
Pokfulam Road), and the Group owns 70% equity interest
in this development project. The property has a supreme
geographic location, situated near The University of Hong Kong
and West Island School, an international secondary school.
Upon completion, this development project will offer six single
houses with an immense and panoramic view. This development
project is expected to be completed in 2021.

Regarding commercial property development, the Group was
working to build the brand “Ladder”, which focuses on multi-
storey Ginza type commercial complexes positioned as iconic
commercial landmarks integrating fashion, catering, leisure
and entertainment. The construction works of the commercial
complex LADDER Dundas located at Nos. 575-575A Nathan
Road, Mongkok, has been completed and an occupation
permit was secured in the first quarter of 2018. The 19-storey
commercial complex, adjacent to Mongkok and Yau Ma Tei
MTR stations, is as a premium commercial building property
favourably situated in the key shopping area of Kowloon, with
great accessibility and high footfall. As at the date of this annual
report, six storeys of LADDER Dundas have been leased.

In addition to self-developed properties, the Group is also
proactively explored its asset management business, enhanced
and expanded its investment property portfolio, including
acquisition of commercial accommodations for lease and
investment purposes. In early 2019, the Group won the tender
for a retail podium at Lake Silver in Ma On Shan (the “Lake
Silver Project”) for a consideration of HK$653.0 million,
comprising car parking spaces and the retail podium of the
ground floor and the level of the residential accommodation
on level one, with a total lettable area of approximately 31,372
square feet. The project is the superstructure above Wu Kai
Sha MTR station, with a steady footfall and strong consumption
power in the nearby neighbourhood. It is expected that the
rental value of the property will be increased and the potential
for capital appreciation will be enhanced by renovating and
optimising the tenancy mix.

ETEHE(R)

AEBEHEERZERAMR AR P EZERRE
SEERAFAFAAEREENSRILA AN
EZREIAE - [Altissimoil 2 | (F & LR K
M) RZE-—NFEUEBREE  =25H
E 3836 REES  AEEHFZERE
B M40% &= ©

REEFEA - ANEE IR EKam Wah Ever Rich
Limited& EERAF L EEMEETHRIE R
(H kK iE86A-86D5) - A EEHEE L ERIE
BH70%HE - ZMEMIBLEEN - BESE
BAE  EHBRERASTEL  -ZBTREEEE
REKSRENEBYEE FFPFEZHEBES
BoOERN - —F®BIT -

PMEDEZRIA  AEEUREAZER
EAXE #Ev(Ladder] @ I8 : W H
[Ladder T £ M b « B RIT RIKRE
IR — & 7 R E A o (U AR A BUE
575-575A%% 2 75 /& 72 H LADDER DundasZ &
RTIREERINNR - N\FE—FEHAK
WeomEES TE - M0 A & H S
Bk ZBEBNE  ARBETE  BNLE
EESHEBMWBRTINEENENE - RAFR
H H - LADDER Dundast 17 7 < [E ©

BRETREDMEIN AEENTERFABEEE
BIEER MaRBEREEMEAS  BIEE
ABEBEHERKRERR - AKER-_Z—N
F 7] LA 653,000,000/ T R EH® S AL A 5 # 1L
RPe REZTEFA([BHe RIEIER |)B
FiragkitBERIETFAE BLHEAE
#931,372F 5 R - Z BB M E SR DB E U £
Z AREBTE WEEREREFFBEE N - FEit
HBBALELCAFES  UWIRAZYMENTE
BEREAHEREEET -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

ETRBE(E)

As at the date of this annual report, the Group recorded
contracted sales of property investment of HK$135.0 million.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the arm-wrestling over trade between China
and the United States is not expected to come to an end
within a short time. With considerable external uncertainties,
the economy of Hong Kong will face certain downside risks.
However, a slower pace of interest rate hikes and a keen
demand for housing will play a role in propping up the property
market. The Group remains cautiously optimistic about the
prospects of Hong Kong’s real estate market. It will monitor
market changes and continue to pursue better capital gains
and investment returns for its shareholders through premium
residential and commercial development projects and property
investment business.

In respect of property investment, the Group will adopt the
asset-light strategy to increase its asset turnover rate. In April
2019 (after the year under review), the Group entered into an
agreement with an independent third party, a sizeable private
equity fund in the United States, in relation to the disposal of
50% equity interest in the then indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company holding the Lake Silver Project to the latter.
This divestment of interest not only unleashed the value of our
existing assets and enhanced the Group’s financial capabilities
but also enabled the Group to focus on the expansion of the
asset management business in its commercial projects. The
Group will further work hand in hand with its partners under the
asset-light strategy, capitalising on the Group’s strengths in its
brands and expertise in business asset management to speed
up its capital cycle and seize new opportunities.

In April 2019, the Group through acquisition of a company
which is indirectly holding a commercial accommodation of
the complex with parking spaces at The Parkside in Tseung
Kwan O at a consideration of HK$780.0 million. The total
lettable area of the property is approximately 32,564 square
feet. This acquisition will help enrich and expand the Group’s
investment property portfolio and bring additional and stable
rental income. The Group will continue to actively consider
making joint property investment with suitable strategic
investors.

RAFHBHE  AEEYEKRECFTNHER
/135,000,000 7T °

RE

REARK HFXEZANHAGEISEERKHAR
R NETRARERRS  KBKEmH —
EHTITRR - AW - MEFKEE  EESR
KEUHBEENERET  NEBHAEE
ETMSASRBRELE  BEBREMSEE
b ZEBENEEMAEERER  UAEY
EREXK  BRBRRFMEEBEARNKEGE RER
B O -

EMERETH  AKERRNEEERRE
ARABEREXR -R_ZT—NAFWA(QE
FER) AEEBE-ZBHIE=7(R—KE
BHABLBES)IT L HE  AELEERF
BiRHMe RIERB 2 ARAIHZEEZEHRB M
JB R Z50%HE s o =X MR BRI
BEEEE EALNKENYBEESD  TEB
AEBEEIMRAXEBNEEEEERK - K
SESE-TEREEERK  HAFRHE
FEE BEAKENREEZVIBRXREES
BER NMRESER LEFKS -

AEERZZF — LF M A I8 BA780,000,000%
TWE—FR2a ZARMEEZEEMNRBEER
The Parkside® &5 M E A P2 - Al HHE
BEMEH A32,564F R o ZRUEE A By Nk
RIBERARNEENREMEHREG T ALXEET
RBEHIBTNHESRA - AEBBEEERE
BEHABEEBEEESRREDE -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

In respect of property development, the Group focuses on
residential and commercial projects and developed different
types of premium properties by adhering to the multi-brand
strategy. The Group will continue the sales of completed
penthouse units of The Met. Acappella under the brand
series “The Met.”, and the pre-sale of “Altissimo” and “maya”
under the brand series “NOUVELLE” this year. We believe
that the sale of the three residential development projects with
distinct features will notch up better sales as supported by a
few favourable factors such as the sustained strong demand
for home purchase, the government’s adjustment in the public-
private flat ratio of housing supply and the lower possibility of
another rate hike.

The Group is always committed to land replenishment by way of
bidding for Government land and project acquisitions, favouring
sites with convenient transportation and comprehensive
community facilities. This is to ensure consistent brand
positioning for future property development. During the year, the
Group attained good progress in replenishing its land bank, with
the aggregate permissible area of the residential sites in the land
bank amounting to approximately 794,500 square feet.

ETEHE(R)

EWEBRRITE ASEBREEBESZ RIE
X FAMEELEEBEE BETRE
AMEEYME AEERAFEHEER
“[The Met. | X7 EBENHEFPRE 78
& [Altissimo¥l £ | X[NOUVELLE] X 7] &)
mayalg B | - —[AETRREASEEG
EEEFRREFRY BIAZRALEERL
Bl ARMEMEREEFTREZFT - 18
EHERETAIES -

AREB-—BEZ WL HEE BRI EEEZ
BREHEZLRIEBEWE  WUARBAHEM
EAREETSMNMEIEAEE  UBRBEEE
BZMERNEBR B2 REEMN - LHHEE
RERMERITER AEEMNEELIOHB
AHAIEEMEA794,500F 7R o
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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During the year under review, the Group has won the tender
for a government land plot located at the junction of Liu To
Road and Hang Mei Street, Tsing Yi (Tsing Yi Town Lot
No. 192) with a site area of approximately 14,400 square
feet, which can be used for both residential and commercial
property development with an expected total gross floor area
of approximately 90,000 square feet. The land plot is located
in the mid-levels of Tsing Yi, allowing a panoramic view of
Ma Wan Channel. Given the considerable number of branch
families in the district, the demand for middle and small flats is
rather strong. The Group plans to turn it into another exquisite
residential development under the brand series “The Met.”
with around 300 units featuring studio flats. It is expected to be
launched in 2021.

The Group also acquired old buildings with redevelopment
value for its redevelopment projects, and secured projects
by referrals of property transactions. During the year under
review, the Group acquired two urban redevelopment projects
with total gross floor area expected to be approximately
143,000 square feet. These two redevelopment projects are
traditional neighbourhoods with convenient transportation and
well-developed community facilities, leading to a continuous
upturn in the housing demand in both districts. The Group will
proactively take forward the respective redevelopment projects
with careful planning, making good use of the strengths of the
projects as such, with a view to raising the property value.

AEEREBEFA RYESEREMRKEES
EHRANE MK (FRT HERFE1925) -
WERERA /S14,400°F 5 R - BT A EEETE
#)7/390,000F 7R - AIEEERA#ER - it
REZBERFIL  AIERFTEERRE -~ 5 —
TEGBERERAEBRZOXRE  Fib#s
NRVEBMEFEREERY) - AEBEG 8 HT
#EK[The Met. ] %27 % —fgmEE®REE @ =ZH
#3000k » EATHMAEM - BAR =T = —
FHETS -

AEETUBAEREENEBUNERER
HE UEREHMEEEENERIER - AKE
REBFRAKREMETRERER @ BitdR
EHEA HL143,000F 5 R - ZMIBERIEA
BRERRAMRER  RBEMN EEXE &
EFRFEAL  AEERESHEEEEER
HE HASEE ZREBEE RBAVEE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

With a gross site area of approximately 28,500 square feet, the
project at Nos. 86A-86D Pokfulam Road will be redeveloped
into luxury houses, which is expected to be launched in the
market in 2021.

The permissible gross floor area of “maya” in Yau Tong
is expected to be approximately 272,000 square feet. This
development project is co-developed by the Group and CIFI
Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd., one of the top 20 real estate developers
in The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) by way of a joint venture
with 50% equity interest owns by the Group. The mixed commercial
and residential development project will offer a total of 326 high
quality residential units and is expected to be completed in 2020.

The permissible gross floor area of “Altissimo” in Ma On Shan
is expected to be approximately 388,000 square feet. The
Group is a co-developer of this development project together
with Country Garden Holdings Company Limited, a top five real
estate developer in the PRC, and China State Construction
International Holdings Limited. The low-density residential
project will offer a total of 547 units and is expected to be
completed in early 2021.

Aside from the above, the Group has paid close attention to
the regulations and polices implemented by the government.
By adopting a flexible investment approach, capturing other
opportunities of property acquisition, enriching the land bank
and increasing the land portfolio, the sustainable operation and
development efficiency of the Group can be maintained in the
long run. The Group will develop various types of properties
in light of the respective supply of and demand for housing in
different regions, bringing the competitive advantages of its
projects into full play.

ETEHE(R)

Z A EHMIE86A-86D 2 HE B MBI A E A
#)28,500F TR - BEMERA/REFRF B
AR —FHEEMS -

M maya BB A Z2EREEBELD
272,000FF TR - ZERIEEB A A S B Ep E
ARKMBE(THBRA])FHE - TBEEZ —
BEZER(EE)BRAR  KIGELERF
BEREENMEEERE  AKEFAZXERER
50%# e - i HRIE B KRt 326EEE E
TEMN FER_Z_TFRT -

BE& LT AltissimoBhE [T ZAEEMBEYN
388,000 F 5 R - B EIEEH A AL EEAPH
EHWERAACEELERERARARLKFTEH
BEEBEBRARARAERRE  ZEZERE
FIHEAB BIRE AT B R T —F

AN REE—ET Y8 BRAE R G &
BUR - WEREUBEENRES N - MieEMmE
WiswE  BALREHE BmtwdEs K
BERFAFBLERERYE - AKEREE
TRBENHERFR  BRAFREREYE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

ETRBE(E)

GIVING BACK TO COMMUNITY

The Group has always been active in giving back to our
communities and is committed to our corporate social
responsibility, while protecting shareholders’ values. For years,
the Group has been offering donations and support to charities
from various sectors to address the needs of underprivileged
groups such as the grassroots and new arrival families, in an
effort to practise the spirit of care and love in a community
progressed with mutual encouragement.

During the year under review, the Group participated in Project
WeCan, which aims to empower those secondary school
students who are disadvantaged in learning with opportunities,
as well as nurture their confidence and inspire them in their life
planning through programmes that will engage them, so as to
better equip them for further studies and career in the future.
Moreover, the Group sponsored a scholarship to The Hang
Seng University of Hong Kong with HK$120,000 during the year,
as an encouragement for students’ continuing effort in learning.
Also, moon cake donations were made to the elderly during
the Mid-Autumn Festival to warm their hearts with this festive
food. For details of the Group’s environmental protection, social
and governance-related work during the year under review,
please refer to the disclosure in our “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of this annual report.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

APPRECIATION

Thanks to the staunch support from our dedicated teams, the
Group was able to maintain stable and healthy development
amidst a market environment characterised by intense
competition. On behalf of the board of directors of the Company
(the “Board” or the “Directors”), | would like to express my
sincere appreciation to all the staff for their unremitting efforts
and valuable contribution over the year. | would also like to
thank all our shareholders for their trust and support to the
management team.

Chan Chun Hong
Non-executive Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 June 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s
revenue and profit attributable to owners of the parent
amounted to approximately HK$2,831.8 million (2018:
approximately HK$1,351.8 million) and approximately HK$500.3
million (2018: approximately HK$1,808.5 million), respectively.

DIVIDENDS

Based on the encouraging results for the year ended 31 March
2019, the Board has recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HKO.70 cent (2018: HKO0.65 cent) per ordinary share
and a special dividend of HK0.945 cent (2018: HK1.0 cent)
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2019 to its
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company as of Wednesday, 11 September 2019. Both
of the final dividend and the special dividend will be paid on or
around Thursday, 19 September 2019, subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on Friday, 30 August 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2019
amounted to approximately HK$2,831.8 million (2018:
approximately HK$1,351.8 million), which represented a
significant increase of approximately HK$1,480.0 million
compared with last year. This was mainly attributable to
completion and delivery of one of the Ma On Shan projects,
The Met. Blossom (Ma Kam Street, Ma On Shan) in August
2018. Profit attributable to owners of the parent for the year
was approximately HK$500.3 million (2018: approximately
HK$1,808.5 million). The reduced profit was mainly attributable
to the decrease in other income recognised from the gain
on the disposal of two indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company and remeasurement of the 50% equity interest
retained in a joint venture in the financial year ended 31 March
2018, net of the profit recognised from completion of The Met.
Blossom. The review of the individual business segments of the
Group is set out below.

BEERBHNWR DN

MBRER

HE - ZT-—hWhF=A=+—RHILFHEE "
AEBZRARTRAIEER ANEMLGF D
Bl #) £ 2,831,800,0008 L (=& — \F 4
1,351,800,000 /% T ) K& # /& 500,300,000 7 7T
(ZZ— )\ : #1,808,500,000/ 7T ) °

=)

AERNEBEE T NFZA=ZT—HILFEHE
PABENEE EFgZzREE_Z—N
FRLA+—B(ER)BINARRRELZMZ
E EREE-_ZE-AFE=A=+—HI*F
EZREERESRLEBRERH070BMW(ZF
— J\EF  0.658 1) X455 B &% & AR i
5094581 (ZF — \F 1 1.081) - RE®
ERERNREER-_ZE—NELATAB(E
B sk AT B RTT - EBSRER AR HR
ZE-NAFNR=ZFTH((EHR)BT 2 EER
REFKG LA ER - FAEE -

e JC)

BHE " Z-NAE=A=+—HIEE Xx&£H
Z W A 49 52,831,800,00058 75 (= ZF — )\ &
#91,351,800,000 7% JT) * 8 & F K18 18 0 4
1,480,000,0008 70 c EX ZHMREF —[EAF#
IWEBEBR(ARERLULERBE)R_E—N
FNABRTIERNMN -SRARIHEE ARG ARTE
€% F| 4 £500,300,0008 T (ZF— \F : 4
1,808,500,0005%& 7t) » m Fm A D EZERA R
HE—Z-N\F=A=1+—HBHUIHBREERE
EMBEARRHEL2EHEENNB AR ERA
EMBRARBRIPMEFAEERELEREDN
50%EZ (Tt R EBPHR THANER) - BH
AEEBIEBDEZOBESHNT X -




Wang On Properties Limited Annual Report 2019

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Revenue recognised in this business segment during the
year amounted to approximately HK$2,827.0 million (2018:
approximately HK$1,333.5 million) which was contributed mainly
by completion and delivery of The Met. Blossom. The Group
owns 60% equity interest in this property development project
and the results and financial position are consolidated into the
financial statements of the Group.

The Group’s another residential project in Sha Tin district, the
site at No. 7838 Tai Po Road — Tai Wai, The Met. Acappella,
has launched the pre-sales in November 2017. As at the date
of this annual report, 314 out of 336 units were sold and 298
units were delivered to the buyers. The revenue amounted to
approximately HK$2.3 billion will be recognised (subject to
audit) in the next financial year.

The Group together with CIFI Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.
have been launching a luxury residential series branded
“NOUVELLE”, by unveiling the first project “maya”, located at
No. 8 Shung Shan Street and No. 15 Sze Shan Street in Yau
Tong, since March 2019. As at the date of this annual report,
162 out of 235 units released were sold and the contracted
sales amounted to approximately HK$1.6 billion. The project
is undergoing the construction of the superstructure and is
expected to be completed in 2020. The Group owns 50% equity
interest in this property development project and is responsible
for its project management.

The Group’s Whitehead project (No. 11 Yiu Sha Road, Ma On
Shan) which is co-developed with Country Garden Holdings
Company Limited and China State Construction International
Holdings Limited, namely “Altissimo” was launched in
December 2018. As at the date of this annual report, 336
out of 436 units released were sold and the contracted sales
amounted to approximately HK$2.9 billion. The Group owns
40% equity interest in this development project.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

In April 2018, Rich United Limited, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, completed the acquisition of all
the 16 properties at Nos. 86A-86D Pokfulam Road, Hong
Kong. The demolition works were completed and the site will
be redeveloped into luxurious properties. The Group owns 70%
equity interest in this development project and is responsible for
its project management.

On 12 April 2018, the Group has won the tender for the land
plot located at the junction of Liu To Road and Hang Mei Street,
Tsing Yi (Tsing Yi Town Lot No. 192) at a total consideration
of HK$867.3 million. It intends to develop the land under the
exquisite residential property series “The Met.”, to build on
the brand’s remarkable track record, further strengthening the
presence of the Group’s residential property brand. The site
area of this project is approximately 14,400 square feet with an
expected gross floor area of approximately 90,000 square feet.
It can be used for both commercial and residential development
and will provide a public transportation terminal (minibus
station). The foundation work is undergoing in this site.

The site at Nos. 575-575A Nathan Road, Mongkok has
completed the construction works and the occupation permit
was granted in February 2018. This development project is
a 19-floor Ginza type commercial complex under the brand
“Ladder”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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As at 31 May 2019, the Group had a development land portfolio R-ZE—HERA=+—H0 ' AEE 2 HEF

as follows: HMAEWT :
Anticipated Interest
Approximate Approximate Intended year of attributable
Location site area  gross floor area usage completion to the Group
bk BALEER HOLRZER RERZ BHRIEE AREEGER
(square feet) (square feet)
(FAR) (FER)
No. 7838 Tai Po Road — Tai Wai 71,000 148,000 Residential 2019 100%
AR E-KEBRT8385 = —E-NE
No. 8 Shung Shan Street and 41,000 272,000 Residential and 2020 50%
No. 15 Sze Shan Street, Yau Tong Commercial —E-ZF
HIE R85 R ML 155 FEREE
No. 11 Yiu Sha Road, Ma On Shan 253,000 388,000 Residential 2020 40%
SRILBYREIEE £ —E-%F
Nos. 86A-86D Pokfulam Road 28,500 28,500 Residential 2021 70%
% B 1138 86A-86D%% =z —E--fF
Junction of Liu To Road and Hang Mei Street 14,400 90,000 Residential and 2022 100%
(Tsing Yi Town Lot No. 192) Commercial -z

EHBELFEREXR (BRTILRF1925) EEREX
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The Group is always exploring different channels to increase
its land banks. During the year, the Group has acquired two
urban redevelopment projects with over 80% (less than 100%)
ownerships secured. Their ownership will be consolidated
by proceeding to court for compulsory sale under the Land
(Compulsory Sale for Redevelopment) Ordinance. In the event
that no court order is granted, the Group may not be able to
complete the consolidation of the ownership for development.
The total site area and attributable gross floor area upon
redevelopment are approximately 16,000 square feet and
143,000 square feet, respectively.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s portfolio of investment
properties comprised of commercial and industrial units located
in Hong Kong with a total carrying value of approximately
HK$809.5 million (31 March 2018: approximately HK$1,517.3
million).

During the year, the Group received gross rental income of
approximately HK$8.2 million (2018: approximately HK$22.6
million), representing a decrease of approximately HK$14.4
million over last year. The decrease in gross rental income was
primarily attributable to the disposal of several properties during
the reporting year.

On 12 April 2018, the Group entered into a preliminary
agreement to sell the entire issued share capital and the
shareholder’s loan of PT Harvest Holdings Limited which
principally held office units and carparks spaces located at
Kowloon Commerce Centre, No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, at a consideration of approximately
HK$324.5 million. Completion took place on 23 August 2018.

On 10 August 2018, the Group disposed of the entire issued
share capital and assigned the shareholder’s loan of New
Earth Investments Limited (“New Earth”) for a consideration
of HK$32.0 million. New Earth was the registered owner of the
investment properties located at Ground Floor of No. 111 Ma
Tau Wai Road, Kowloon.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENmRE D (E)

On 24 January 2019, the Group won the tender for a retail
podium comprising car parking spaces and the retail podium
of the ground floor and the level one of the residential
accommodation known as “Lake Silver” located at No. 599
Sai Sha Road, Ma On Shan, Sha Tin, New Territories, Hong
Kong from Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation, at a total
consideration of HK$653.0 million. The podium will be further
refurbished to optimise the tenant mix and rental income and
is expected to broaden its prospect and thus, increasing
the future rental value, thereby enhancing the future capital
appreciation. On 29 April 2019, the Group has disposed 50%
equity interest in this investment project to an independent third
party. Completion of the acquisition took place on 16 May 2019.
Details of the transaction were set out in the joint announcement
published by the Company and Wang On Group Limited
("WOG”) on 24 January 2019 and 29 April 2019 and the circular
of WOG dated 27 March 2019.

On 30 April 2019, the Group entered into a provisional
agreement with an independent third party to purchase the
entire issued share capital and the shareholder’s loan of
Pearl Limited at a consideration of HK$780.0 million. Pearl
Limited is the sole shareholder of Hermitage Investments
Limited (“Hermitage”), Hermitage is the registered owner of
the commercial accommodation of the complex named “The
Parkside” located at No. 18 Tong Chun Street, Tseung Kwan
O, New Territories, Hong Kong together with 49 car parking
spaces and 5 motor cycle parking spaces. This investment
property will be further refurbished for the enhancement of the
Group’s investment portfolio. On 21 June 2019, the Group
has disposed 50% equity interest in this investment project
to an independent third party. Completion of the acquisition
is expected to be taken place on 4 July 2019. Details of the
transaction were set out in the joint announcement published by
the Company and WOG dated 1 May 2019 and 21 June 2019.

The Group acts as the asset manager of the above two
investment projects for a management fee comprising a fixed
based fee and an incentive fee determined with reference to,
among other things, the rental return of the above investment
properties. This new recurring income stream will stabilise the
cash flow and development of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

In May 2019, the Group has won a tender for an investment
property as Shop D, On Ning Building, Nos. 47-55 Ma Tau
Kok Road, Ma Tau Kok, Kowloon in a consideration of HK$62.3
million from an independent third party. The property will be
renovated to enhance the rental yield. Completion took place on
28 June 2019.

The Group will continue to review and expand our portfolio of
investment properties for both the recurring income and capital
appreciation.

Reference is also made to the prospectus of the Company
dated 30 March 2016, in which it was stated that as at 21
March 2016, the parent company of the Group, WOG and
its subsidiaries (excluding the Group) owned a total of 48
residential investment properties (“Excluded Properties”)
which were not injected into the Group as part of the spin-
off listing of the Company in April 2016. The Company has
been informed by the WOG that 34 out of these 48 Excluded
Properties had been sold as of 25 June 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s total assets less current
liabilities were approximately HK$7,281.9 million (2018:
approximately HK$6,746.7 million) and the current ratio
was approximately 1.85 times as at 31 March 2019 (2018:
approximately 2.09 times). As at 31 March 2019, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$1,878.9 million
(2018: approximately HK$1,558.8 million).

Aggregate bank borrowings as at 31 March 2019 amounted
to approximately HK$3,850.4 million (2018: approximately
HK$3,224.0 million). The gearing ratio was approximately 44.2%
(2018: approximately 41.0%), calculated by reference to the
Group’s total bank borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents
and the equity attributable to owners of the parent. As at 31
March 2019, the Group’s property, plant and equipments,
investment properties, properties under development and
properties held for sales, with carrying value of approximately
HK$91.1 million, HK$787.5 million, HK$3,216.4 million and
HK$668.2 million (2018: approximately HK$94.4 million,
HK$1,497.3 million, HK$1,168.3 million and HK$576.5 million)
were pledged to secure the Group’s general banking facilities.

The Group’s capital commitment as at 31 March 2019
amounted to approximately HK$925.6 million (2018:
approximately HK$1,564.4 million). In addition, the Group’s
share of joint ventures’ own capital commitments amounted
to approximately HK$806.5 million (2018: approximately
HK$1,118.2 million). The Group has given guarantee to banks
in connection with facilities granted to the two joint ventures
up to HK$2,440.4 million and were utilised to the extent of
HK$1,297.5 million as at 31 March 2019.

The Group strengthens and improves its risk control on a
continual basis and adopted a prudent approach in financial
management. Financial resources are under close monitor
to ensure the Group’s smooth operation, as well as flexibility
to respond to market opportunities and uncertainties. The
management of the Group is of the opinion that the Group’s
existing financial structure and resources are healthy and
sufficient for the Group’s needs in the foreseeable future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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DEBT PROFILE AND FINANCIAL PLANNING E&RRE &% R E

As at 31 March 2019, interest-bearing debt profile of the Group R_ZT—hE=A=+—0  KEBZHEE
was analysed as follows: BRADITT

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

—E-AEF —ZE—)N\#F
=A=+-—H =R=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T THET

Bank loans repayable: ARUTREER ZRITER
Within one year —F R 1,260,228 780,223
In the second year F_F 1,200,570 878,382
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZEHF(REEEMT) 1,389,641 1,385,649
Beyond five years hF & - 179,778
3,850,439 3,224,032

Other loans repayable ARUTHEEE ZH EMER

Within one year —F R - 13,397
In the second year E_F - —
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZERF(BIEEREME) 187,570 —

4,038,009 3,237,429

The effective interest rate of bank loans is approximately 3.4% $R{TER 2 EBREM XY AIA4E(ZF— N\
per annum (2018: approximately 2.8%) and other loans carries 4 : #J2.8F)  MEM E X AL E T 7| X6E
at a fixed interest rate 6%. B e

TREASURY POLICY B 78 B R

The Group's treasury policy includes diversifying the funding AEB ZHBEBRELEDEHE TR - RilE
sources. Internally generated cash flow and interest-bearing HiffIA @ R ELE 2R ERENTEBRITRE
bank and other borrowings during the reporting period were fEEIHREANEBEKLSEBIREHES Y — K
the general source of funds to finance the operation of the &4 KR - KREFEFTHEIAIEESRT -
Group. The Group regularly reviews its major funding positions NEREE X ECHEERUNBITETKEE T -
to ensure that it has adequate financial resources in meeting its

financial obligations.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The management of the Group is of the opinion that the Group
has no material foreign exchange exposure. All bank borrowings
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The revenue of the
Group, being mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
matches the currency requirements of the Group’s operating
expenses. The Group therefore has not engaged in any hedging
activities during the year.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 120 (2018: 101) employees
in Hong Kong. The Group remunerates its employees mainly
based on industry practices and individual performance
and experience. In addition to salaries, the Group provide
discretionary bonuses based on individual performance and our
business performance, medical insurance coverage and a wide
range of leave entitlements. The Group also provides a defined
contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund as required under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for eligible employees of the
Group in Hong Kong.

RISK FACTORS

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of
operations and growth prospects may be affected by risks and
uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s
businesses, including the following highlighted risks:

° our business is dependent on the economic conditions in
Hong Kong, particularly the performance of the property
market in Hong Kong;

° we may not be able to identify and acquire land
bank which is suitable and desirable for our future
development;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

we generate revenue principally from the sale of
properties, which depends on a number of factors
including the schedule of our property development
and the timing of property sales. Our profitability may
fluctuate significantly between different periods, as our
financial performance for a particular period depends on
the mix of properties available for sale;

we may be unable to obtain, or may suffer material delays
in obtaining, the relevant government approvals or be
unable to take possession of the land parcels for our
property development projects due to factors outside of
the Group’s control;

we rely on external construction companies for the
construction-related works of our property development
projects and these construction companies may fail to
provide satisfactory services which adhere to our quality
and safety standards and in a timely manner, or at all;

our results of operations may be adversely affected by
labour shortages and/or the increase in the costs of
labour; and

we are subject to certain restrictive covenants and risks
normally associated with borrowings which may limit or
otherwise materially and adversely affect our business,
results of operations and financial condition.
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PROSPECTS

During the reporting year, the Centa-City Leading Index has
firstly decreased from a historical high level by nearly 10%
and started to rebound in the first quarter of 2019. The upside
trend is benefited from the conservative pricings offered by the
developers and caution approach on the interest rate policy
taken by the US Federal Reserve in early 2019. However, under
the uncertainty of US-China trade negotiation and high volatility
of stock markets, both the investors and end-users would take
a more discreet assessment on the property market. The Group
is cautiously optimistic on the property market and will keep
monitoring the market changes closely.

The Group has achieved approximately HK$4.9 billion contract
sales of residential and commercial properties as at the date
of this annual report. It secures and stabilises the revenue and
development of the Group in the coming years. To continue the
growth momentum, the Group replenishes the land bank and
investment properties strenuously. In addition to public tender,
the Group is seeking for old building acquisition and land use
conversion.

The Group will keep looking for opportunities in property
acquisition and collaboration with strategic partners to
strengthen the real estate business.

The Group continues to capture every opportunity for
its development and aims to achieve solid returns to our
shareholders.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yiu Hung Gary, aged 63, has been appointed as an
executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company
since 3 December 2015. He is also appointed as an authorised
representative, the chairman of the executive committee and
a member of the remuneration committee of the Company.
Mr. Wong is primarily responsible for strategic planning and the
overall management and supervision of operations of the Group.
He also serves as a director of most of the subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Wong joined WOG in February 2004 as the general
manager of the property department (sales and marketing) until
February 2008. He subsequent acted as a director of Easy One
Financial Group Limited (“Easy One”), a company listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), during the period from 13 February
2008 to 10 July 2015, where he was responsible for property
development and sales and marketing in the PRC. Mr. Wong
then re-joined WOG in December 2013 as the director (sales
and marketing) of the property development department. He has
over 32 years of experience in property development, leasing,
sales and marketing. He plays a strategic role on property
acquisition, investment and development in both commercial
and residential properties, especially in Hong Kong property
market. Prior to joining WOG, Mr. Wong held various senior
positions in reputable and sizeable property developers.
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EXERSREERE(H)

Mr. Tang Ho Hong, aged 32, has been appointed as
an executive Director since 3 December 2015. He is also
appointed as a member of the executive committee and the
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Tang is primarily
responsible for the overall management and supervision of
operations of the Group, including overseeing property sales
and leasing, asset management and investment, and strategic
planning on long and short term development. Mr. Tang has
over eight years of experience in property and land matters.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Tang worked with WOG
in January 2011 as assistant general manager where he
focused on property acquisition in Hong Kong and acquired
his experience in the property development, management and
investment businesses. Mr. Tang graduated from The University
of Washington with a degree of Bachelor of Arts in Business
Administration. Mr. Tang is a member of the Henan Provincial
Committee of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference.

Ms. Ching Tak Won Teresa, aged 37, has been appointed as
an executive Director since 25 June 2019. She is also appointed
as a member of the executive committee of the Company.
Ms. Ching is currently the general manager of the Group’s
property development division and is responsible for the sales
and marketing of the Group. She obtained a degree of Bachelor
of Business Administration in Marketing and Management of
Organisations from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and a degree of Master of Science in Real Estate
from The University of Hong Kong. She has more than 14 years
of experience in the property industry in Hong Kong. Prior to
joining the Group in 2016, Ms. Ching joined WOG in 2008 and
acted as the assistant general manager (sales and marketing) of
WOG.
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Mr. Chan Chun Hong, aged 55, has been appointed as the
non-executive chairman of the Company since 23 December
2015. Prior to the listing of the Group, Mr. Chan has been
working for WOG as an executive director since March 1997.
He is also appointed as an authorised representative, the
chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. He is primarily
responsible for formulating overall strategies and the overall
corporate development of the Group. He is also the managing
director of WOG, an executive director of Wai Yuen Tong
Medicine Holdings Limited (“WYT”), the managing director and
the chairman of Easy One and the chief executive officer and the
chairman of China Agri-Products Exchange Limited, all of which
are companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chan graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy. He was
admitted as a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Li Wing Sum Steven, aged 62, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director since 17 March 2016.
He is also appointed as the chairman of the audit committee
and a member of the remuneration and nomination committees
of the Company. Mr. Li was admitted as an associate of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in April 1986
and subsequently a fellow member in April 1991. He was
also admitted as an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in May 1986 and subsequently a
fellow member in December 1993. He was admitted as a fellow
member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong in January 1999.
Mr. Li has over 32 years of experience in auditing, accounting,
taxation, financial management and corporate secretarial. Mr.
Li worked for an international accounting firm and held senior
posts as group financial controller in various companies. He was
an independent non-executive director of Xinjiang Xinxin Mining
Industry Co., Ltd., the shares of which is listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, and is currently an independent
non-executive director of Allied Sustainability and Environmental
Consultants Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange, and is the company secretary
respectively of Shanghai Fudan Microelectronics Group
Company Limited, China National Culture Group Limited, both
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Sung Tze Wah, aged 73, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since
17 March 2016. He is appointed as a member of the audit,
remuneration and nomination committees of the Company. He
has extensive experience in the surveying sector for over 32
years. Mr. Sung was elected as a professional associate of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors in November 1972, a
fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors in March 1997, a
member of The Singapore Institute of Surveyors and Valuers in
April 1989, and was admitted as an associate of The Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators in April 1984. Mr. Sung was appointed
as the executive estates officer by the Housing & Development
Board of the Singapore government from October 1984 to July
1990. He was then promoted to senior estates officer during the
period of August 1990 and March 1992. Mr. Sung established
LDS International Group Limited and Lawson David & Sung
Surveyors Limited in Hong Kong in 1992 and 1996 respectively
and is currently a director of Lawson David & Sung Surveyors
Limited.
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Sr Dr. Leung Tony Ka Tung, aged 70, has been appointed ZREHELPEL 70  N_ZE—REFE=A
as an independent non-executive Director since 17 March ++ BB EZEABIIERHTES - RITEST
2016. He is also appointed as the chairman of the remuneration AZXAFHFHMEE@IFELERRIEREZE S
committee and a member of the audit and nomination K& - BER—NhhttFE—AZ—Lt/\FX
committees of the Company. He has over 42 years of ATBEEHRMNHWEHE AN \+ERE  HT
experience in the property and hotel industry through his prior BN Z B ML E R & —BE 5 T8 L8
employments with the Lands Department of the Hong Kong S22 f 2B+ ERABAHELERERBEHE
government from January 1977 to June 1978, and from the RB/E/TEHEABMIU+ —F&H - R— LM
1980’s onwards, with various prominent property developers 4 @ 2B+ RN ERTEMEBERBEEER A
as well as a leading surveyor company in Hong Kong. In 1994, &) ME BRI ABRTEE AR ZEFE - RN
Dr. Leung founded TL Property Consultants International Limited ZT——%F+-AZ - —+F X AHH - 27
and he is currently the chairman of the TL Property Group T ME{FEEEEIZERAER AT (RBEIME
companies. Dr. Leung also acted as an independent non- R ET)NEEEELERER A A (BTEMEE
executive director of South China Holdings Company Limited, Z# AR A &) (R AGEM ) 2 %8 7 3
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, #{T% % - 2B+ FZBEFEETR_ZTZT -
and South China Assets Holdings Limited (formerly known as 4 + — H EU{§Empresarial University ( % 1% 41 &
South China Land Limited), a company listed on the GEM of the A2 ITHEBEHTEF/ L2 - R_ZTETWMF
Stock Exchange, for the period from December 2012 to June +— AWEGHEFE L AEHEEHEIEEE L
2017. Dr. Leung obtained a degree of Doctor of Philosophy Efi (FKEBE)ER—NLERET_ANESE
in Business Administration from Empresarial University in X KBS EHERTSRBLER THEE
November 2002 through distance learning, a degree of Master (&)L B - 2{E+ AFBITMEE RS
of Science in International Real Estate (with Distinction) from Bi(E% HEIRHE MEXRHEEE) - M
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2004, and HES R A-ZTEAF—A(EE) R -_FT—N
a degree of Bachelor of Social Science (Hons) in Economics 4P/ A (MBIRERERMEXREEIR) o HITRN
and Business Administration from Chung Chi College of The —ZE——H® - AERTATLAIEMELEF
Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1976. Dr. Leung @B KR - ZENFNAERFAEFHERE
was registered as a professional surveyor (GP/PD/PFM) in Hong :rllEfZed Ze@ 8RR —A N \TE+—A
Kong respectively in January 2006 (GP) and April 2014 (PD ERFAEAMETHMEB2eEFEE - KR
and PFM). He was also admitted as a fellow member of The AFZBHEMEeaeR  HEMaMEERSE
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors in February 2012, a fellow /& - EAEEWHEEXRELTESZE - FHER
member of The Roval Institution of Chartered Surveyors in TG FFEHEKE  EREEQSAEE
June 2008 and a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Real B4 EERI/NAK S R EIZ -t R B2 R L
Estate Administrators in November 1985. He is currently the ZEB@iE/J4HZESZLE -

president of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, the chairman

of Surveyors Registration Board, a member of Audit Committee

of the Hong Kong Housing Society, a member of Appeal

Tribunal Panel of HKSAR, a member of the Panel of Advisors

on Building Management Disputes of Home Affairs Department

and a member of the Planning Sub-committee of the Land and

Development Advisory Committee of the Planning Department.

* EREF
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Mr. Yeung Yiu Man, is the director of the quantity surveying
division of the Group. Mr. Yeung is responsible for managing
various property developments of the Group, and has overall
responsibility for all aspects of cost and quality control of
construction works. Mr. Yeung obtained a degree of Master
of Science in Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He was admitted as a member of the Chartered
Institute of Building in May 1992 and elected as a member of
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors in November 2008.
Mr. Yeung possesses a wide spectrum of experience in the
property industry and has been active in property developments
for more than 33 years, in which 11 years was gained from a
major Hong Kong listed property developer.

Mr. Chan Cheong Shing, Bryan, is the director of the project
planning division of the Company. Mr. Chan is responsible
for managing the planning, design and works of property
developments projects of the Group. Mr. Chan obtained a
degree of Bachelor of Arts (Architectural Studies) in 1993 and
a degree of Master of Architecture in 1996 respectively from
The University of Hong Kong. He is a registered architect of
Hong Kong, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects,
as well as an authorised person in Building Department’s
Register under the list of architects. He has also obtained the
qualification of People’s Republic of China Class | Registered
Architect. Mr. Chan has more than 22 years of experience in
property development projects and he was the director of an
architect’s firm prior to joining the Group in 2016.

Mr. Ip Shu Pui, is the legal counsel of the Group. Mr. Ip
obtained a Bachelor of Laws with Honours Degree from The City
University of Hong Kong. He has been qualified as a solicitor in
Hong Kong since December 1996. Mr. Ip worked in WOG since
2005 prior to joining the Group in 2016.

Ms. Wong Chin Han, is the financial controller and company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Wong is responsible for
the accounting and financial functions, internal control and
secretarial affairs of the Group. She graduated from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology with a degree
of Bachelor of Business Administration. She is a member of
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms.
Wong joined WOG in 2008, where she, in addition to financial
management and reporting matters, also participated in the
preparation of WOG'’s regulatory announcements and circulars.
Prior to joining WOG, Ms. Wong worked for another listed
company and an international accountancy firm. She has more
than 22 years of experience in professional accounting.
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OUR BUSINESS

The business of the Group focuses on Hong Kong and the
scope of business primarily covers property development and
property investment.

B Property Development
MEER

Holds a balanced portfolio,
including the development
of residential property and
commercial property in
Hong Kong
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B Property Investment

MERE

Investment property
portfolio includes
commercial and industrial
properties in Hong Kong

REMHEBEEBIELR
FRNARRIEDE

Percentage of segment revenue

DERBE DL

The property investment business of the Company commenced
in 1997, and property development business started in 2004.
Regarding residential property development, in addition to
luxury homes “Meister House” and “Godi XI”, the Group has
successfully developed an exquisite residential series “The
Met.” that targets small families and young home buyers.
Besides its trendy design and layout, “The Met.” series is
advantageously located with convenient transportation and
living facilities and offers options such as “The Met. Focus”,
“The Met. Sublime”, “The Met. Delight” and “The Met.
Acappella”. Moreover, the Group has also successfully
launched “The Met. Blossom”, “The Met. Bliss”, “maya”
under the “NOUVELLE” series and “Altissimo” in collaboration
with well-established property developers. Meanwhile,
“LADDER Dundas”, a multi-storey Ginza type commercial
complex (Nos. 575-575A Nathan Road) under the “LADDER”
series has also been launched.

KARIMYEREEBERN —NLNLLEFE Iy
EUREKNBR _ZTTMF - FE2E 3
BRAA BREZEBEBIRIXKIEBEI &
ERNITEDENRERFE-—REEZAL
ZHEMETE — [The Met. | &7 + 8 LA i
RETMMGRE  UAREERBREERMERR
EEBeEOMENMNEEEN  BERREIE
BB [ERHIRESE]S I
AEBATERETEAREZHEZREND
HHIEB] [ [NOUVELLE] X 7| &
[mayal& 2 | 2 [ AltissimoBL 2 | - F R - F i
4R e R B R 575-575A%7 [ LADDER ] % 71| B9
[LADDER Dundas] °




Wang On Properties Limited Annual Report 2019

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

R HERERESE (&)

ABOUT THE REPORT

This report is the third Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “ESG Report”) issued by the Group, which contains
the policies, measures and performance of the Group in respect
of ESG to allow better understanding of each stakeholder on the
progress and direction of the Group’s sustainable development.
The Report has been prepared in both English and Chinese and
uploaded to the HKEXnews (www.hkexnews.hk) and the website
of the Company (www.woproperties.com) under “Investor
Relations”.

Scope of This Report

This ESG Report focuses on the property development and
property investment businesses of the Group for the period from
1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 (the “Year”). The scope of this
ESG Report covers the operation of the Group’s headquarter
office in Hong Kong and the residential project The Met.
Acappella, excluding other properties projects.

In order to perform the Group’s environmental and social
obligations as a real estate development enterprise in a more
comprehensive manner, the reporting contents not only cover
the operation of our headquarter office, but also strongly focus
on the initiatives and performances of its under-development
projects. Compared with the environmental, social and
governance report of 2018, this ESG Report included the
environmental and social performance of the construction stage
of The Met. Acappella. The Group will regularly review the
scope of report based on the principle of materiality to provide
more comprehensive and accurate information to investors and
other stakeholders.
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Reporting Standards

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the “Comply
or Explain” provision set out in Appendix 27 “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “Guide”) to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) with its four reporting principles, i.e.
Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency, on which
the preparation is based. In order to allow each stakeholder
to have a more comprehensive understanding of the Group’s
environmental, social and governance performance, in addition
to disclosure of environmental key performance indicators under
the “Comply or Explain” provision of the Guide, certain social
key performance indicators under “Recommended Disclosures”
set out in the Guide are adopted for this Report.

Confirmation and Approval
All the information cited in this ESG Report is sourced from the
official documents and statistical data of the Group and has

been reviewed and approved by the Board on 25 June 2019.

Feedback

Opinions and recommendations from stakeholders can help
the Group to establish more detailed and sound sustainability
strategies in the future. If you have any questions or
suggestions about the content or reporting form of this ESG
Report, you are welcome to contact the Company via email
(pr@woproperties.com).
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
GOVERNANCE

The Board upholds a high level of corporate governance and
believes that sound corporate governance practices can lead
the Group to formulate and achieve long-term strategies and
objectives in an efficient manner and guide the company seize
and deal with opportunities and risks arising from sustainable
development.

Governance Structure and Management Measures

The content of environmental and social issues is broad, which
covers various scopes of operation. The Group regularly holds
business meetings, where responsible officers of various
principal departments also discuss environmental, social and
governance matters, for taking account of relevant factors into
business decision. In the year 2019, the Group will conduct a
comprehensive review to current policy documents regarding
environment protection and community care in accordance with
the guidance of its parent company, WOG, and commence the
drafting of the Environmental, Social and Governance Policy
(the “ESG Policy”). Such policy will incorporate management
approach for different aspects of the Group’s sustainable
development and further provide the employees with working
instructions and specific approaches for establishment,
implementation and review in line with their local business and
operating conditions.

Environmental and
Natural Resources
RERRKARER

Use of Resources

BERER

Emissions

295 &)

Supply Chain
Management
e EE

Employment

&R

In order to improve the overall governance level, the Group is
planning to set up an environmental, social and governance
working group consisting of senior management members in the
next financial year, and to establish clear terms of reference, so
as to lay down the basis of governance for formulating long-term
sustainability strategies in the future.
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Risk Management and Internal Control Structure

Being the highest level decision maker and management
authority of the Group, the Board, with the assistance of the
audit committee of the Company, will review and oversee our
corporate risk management and internal control on an on-
going basis. Our management, as delegated by the Board, is
responsible for the design, maintenance, implementation and
control of our risk management and internal control system,
to ensure sustained suitability and effectiveness. In addition,
the Group has engaged an external consultant company to
examine the effectiveness and efficiency of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system, whose findings and
recommendations have been reviewed by the audit committee
of the Company and the Board. Moreover, annual review will be
carried out by the Board to our risk management and internal
control system and procedures, covering all material control,
including finance, operation and compliance, to ensure the
effectiveness of our risk management system.

Risk management is a part of the daily management processes
and a crucial element of good corporate governance. The Group
has established risk management and internal control system,
and formulated relevant policies and procedures:
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Our management will identify risks in relation to the Group’s
business by taking various internal and external factors and
events into consideration, such as political, economic, technical,
environmental, social and staff related issues, and will evaluate
and prioritise these risks according to their respective impact
and possibility of occurrence, and implement risk management
strategies by reference to their category: curbing and reducing
risk, risk prevention, risk sharing and diversification and risk
transfer.

As a property developer, the Group understands that
construction processes by contractors conducted in the wrong
order or loopholes in site management may result in quality
and safety issues, and in turn affecting health and safety of
our customers. In order to standardise the quality assurance
criteria of all construction projects, we have established a new
set of building quality criteria consisting of twenty-five scopes
of standards. Furthermore, the Group conducts inspection to
projects upon completion and follow up with contractors in
case of any construction defects to ensure compliance of our
property development projects with the highest quality standard.
The Group also conducts annual performance assessment
to contractors to ensure their performance in terms of site
management, construction craftsmanship and other aspects.

The Group recognises that its current risk management and
internal control system does not cover all sustainability issues in
relation to operation. Going forward, the Group plans to conduct
annual environmental, social and governance risk assessment
based on business nature, to ensure timely identification of
relevant risks and determination of corresponding solutions.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values communication with stakeholders and
believes that the views of stakeholders will guide the Group to
a more comprehensive sustainable development strategy. The
stakeholders of the Group include groups and individuals who
have significant impact on or will be affected by its business.
Such stakeholders include, but not limited to, employees,
investors and shareholders, business partners, suppliers and
contractors, customers and tenants, the Government and
the community. The Group communicates with important
stakeholders through different channels and has an in-depth
understanding of their views and expectations in order to
continuously improve the operation of the Group.
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Material Environmental and Social Issues

The Group has appointed an independent consultant to assist
with the coordination of the ESG Report, during which time, the
consultant assisted the Group in reviewing the environmental,
social and governance issues in the Guide, and identify material
issues based on its importance to stakeholders and the
influence of the Group on society and environment. According
to the results of the review, the management considers that the
Group’s material issues for the year include:

Health and Safety
fERETE

BT AR

Labor Standards
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Anti-corruption

R&ER

The Group understands the importance of stakeholder
communication, and the material issues analysed based on
stakeholders’ views can lay the foundations for the development
of strategies in the future. In order to establish a more efficient
and accurate communication channel, moving forward,
the Group will continuously enhance the interaction with
stakeholders, explore more diversified channels (such as regular
meetings with internal and external stakeholders), create wider
access to stakeholders and create a win-win relationship.

CARING OUR EMPLOYEES

The Group strives to create a healthy, safe, friendly and equal
working environment for employees.

Percentage of
newly recruited
employees
B T

76.67%
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Work-related
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The Group concerns the healthiness and safety in the
workplace. Internal policies and regulations are put in place
for our employees to attain mental and physical health and
prevent themselves from the threats of occupational diseases.
As for offices’ operation, neatness and pleasant environment
are essential for our employees’ health and safety. If our
employees identify any approach in practice or any facilities in
the workplace that may cause undesired accidents, they could
report the findings to supervisors and the department of human
resource as stated in the Staff Handbook for further follow-
up action. During the year, three injury cases were reported
to the Group, which are incidents primarily related to falls and
falls from height. The Group has carried out investigation and
taken follow-up actions promptly. To prevent the recurrence of
similar accidents and safeguard employees’ safety, the Group
will formulate a health and safety management system and
offer trainings on occupational safety and health to mitigate the
potential risks imposed in the workplace.

As a responsible property developer, the Group collaborates
with contractors to enhance the safety measures, which comply
with laws and regulations. As for the subcontractors working
at the construction site, the Group requires them to submit the
safety management plan before commencement for approval
and implementation. At the same time, to minimise those risks
of safety in the construction site, an independent safety officer
for overseeing the safety management plan would be engaged
for safety inspections, he/she would identify any deficiencies
found and offer suggestions.

During the Year, 13 injured cases happened in the construction
site of the residential project The Met. Acappella; the
contractor has taken follow-up actions to avoid recurence of
accidents.

The Group complies with the laws and regulations in the area of
occupational safety and health, for instance, the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance and other applicable laws and
regulations. During the year, the Group was involved in one
incident relating to health and safety, and paid a fine of
HK$10,000.
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Employment System B1EHE

The Group is committed to creating a pleasant working ZAEEHHAETILE—EERN ITIERE -
environment for our employees and ensure the protection of FERHEEARML THFZESIHRE - BBREEL
fundamental labour rights. The Manual on Human Resource THME#EZNEET (ADHBREEFTMIFE
Management and the Staff Handbook for office operations set FRPRAEEEMN(E T FM)7I AR EEE
out arrangements for remuneration and dismissal, recruitment B K fR{E - FRIE R B - TIER S - BE - F
and promotion, working hours, holidays, equal opportunities, ZH#&  KRIEFEEUALREMETBREN T EH R
anti-discrimination as well as other benefits and welfare of the  #E

Group to ensure that our employees understand their rights and

responsibilities.

Remuneration and benefits

M EF

The Group determines and reviews the remuneration based on factors such as employee qualifications,
performance, company policies and market trends of remuneration.

In addition to annual fee for professional association membership and subsidy training scheme, the Group
also offer diversified benefits to its employees, including shopping discount for products of the brand WYT
for qualified employees, preferential price for participation in physical examination, dental care and family
outpatient medical concession scheme.

AEERBEETERE TERR  AABRETEHFNBEFERER] LB HH -

BRTEXES@RFELENECEDFEN AEERETRESZ T/EN  BEAERET
BMETUTZEERBEES UESE2EHERRE  FRRFRE RBAZEBERESE -

ERCEAS S

~|~lu

Equal opportunities and diversity

FERERS T

The Group is committed to providing equal opportunities for current and future employees who will not be
treated unequally in the course of recruitment, on-job , training, promotion and dismission due to their gender,
marital status, pregnancy, family status or disability.

In order to promote a diverse and harmonised working environment, apart from the Board diversity system,
the Group’s drafted ESG Policy also includes the diversity system applicable to all employees during the Year.

AEBYNREREAKEIRHETERSG BT TSEEMR  BEAR - B2  REMUIEKRER
BAR B BAEZHBETSFEYES -

REEZTLEABNTIERE BTESESZTHEN AEERAFEERN(RE HEKkER
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Labour standards

%I AR

Employment of child labour or forced labour is strictly prohibited in the Group and is regulated with the
Manual on Human Resources Management. For the prevention of recruitment or appointment of personnel
who do not meet the age requirement, the human resources department should check the original
identification document of the applicant to review the age.

In respect to the prevention of forced labour behaviours, the Group stipulates the relevant provisions
on compensation for employees’ overtime in the Staff Handbook. At the same time, the Group provides
employees the rights of voluntary resignation.

AEEBRETEALARGSTIETS  WEREBCANEREEFMIMNARE - BB ELHREXERRTEF
REXNABR  ANERVBEBREERBENGNERAXMHLELR  UBEFK -

RPILEH S TR AEENEIFM)IAHEE TMMINBEBHEERE AN AEEHLTETAH
BB R

Communication with staff

SETEE

The Group attaches great importance to keeping close communication with employees and has established
a number of staff communication channels, such as staff newsletter, staff survey, whistleblowing mechanism
and staff meeting.

In addition, the Staff Handbook sets out complaint procedures, and the employees can file complaints to the
responsible managers or the human resource department. After receiving the complaint, the human resource
department should report to the managing director for the determination of solution.

NREIRE -

goh - (BT FM)IIAREGFERF  BTARMBEIERXANERMBENF - ANERMZEEHHFR - BARE
FHREEREHBN URETRENER -

The Group complies with relevant laws and regulations in AEEETHEBHEBEIEZNEN  0EHFE
relation to employment, such as Employment Ordinance, <{{EEEM) - E E & EIEH) - (I R R
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance, Sex Discrimination &%) - (KR BB AIEH) - (K EE &L AR 1§
Ordinance, Disability Discrimination Ordinance, Family Status ) ~ ({E A &R (5L ) & H1) & B 3@ B %
Discrimination Ordinance, Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance & KRR o ZNE[F - 7N £ B M 2 15 (£ (1] A B 1%
and other applicable laws and regulations of Hong Kong. R&EEMNBFEZE  ULKEEFEHEBENEZE
During the Year, the Group has identified no claims related to  E R EZ% o

discrimination or harassment, nor any breach of employment-

related laws and regulations.
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Development and Training

The Group values its employees and is always ready to listen to
their voices so as to understand their development and training
needs.

The human resources department seeks to understand potential
training needs through surveys with department directors and
employees for the aim of setting up further training goals and
formulating detailed training programs. In order to unify training
management, we have also stipulated the management system
of training in the Manual on Human Resources Management,
with specifications in different areas, such as training purposes,
principles, contents and forms, procedures and administration,
implementation and assessment, fees and information
management, ensuring employees in different positions enhance
the knowledge and skills necessary for their career development
and realise their potential.

Furthermore, employees may file their claims with the human
resources department for fees of continuing education training
programmes certified by Education Bureau, and may apply for
examination leave and education leave. The Group also offers
funding for membership of professional institutes to employees.

HONEST OPERATION

The Group strongly upholds the belief of “making progress
while ensuring stability to strive for perfection”, strives to
optimise supply chain and quality management, and complies
with integrity and ethics in business while ensuring comfortable
and safe premium properties. The Group has commenced the
drafting of “Environment, Social and Governance Policy”, which
involves a series of policies related to anti-corruption, product
responsibility and supply chain management.
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P —

Anti-corruption REF

REBEBRETREARSG TERZRA - HEM
FERER R HEREBENERTR
ERZTARKEE -

The Group strictly maintains integrity and complies with moral
principles and adopts a zero-tolerance approach against
corrupt practices involving bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

e All office employees shall comply with the anti-bribery
guidance in Staff Handbook.
FANAREETIKABFEIFM)R AR IEHEEAES -

e Employees shall avoid conflicts of interest and accept
hospitality from clients or business partners subject to the
approval of director of human resources department.
BETRBENEER WHAEBANERMBAEIER - F
AESEPAEBBRHEZTORET -

e The Group invites representatives of The Independent
Committee Against Corruption to give presentations
to employees from time to time, so as to improve their
awareness and knowledge of anti-corruption laws and
practices.
RAEBETRKEFRBIAZNRKRAETETER  URESMH
PERESERRTROE B NAR -

Training
523

e Employees are encouraged to report suspicious acts of
corruption to Management via whistleblowing procedure.
SEETRAERRFRRETF MEEBRREFE T

e Management will conduct researches on such reporting.
In the event of confirming the case as a corruption event,
management will take disciplinary actions accordingly based
on the circumstances or report to the Police. Whistle-blower
and relevant information will remain confidential.
EREERERERALZ WHERAEESEH  EEEBR
BEARERDERLCEESDTTHRBERIE - BRAKINA
BEMRE -

Whistleblowing

Procedure

RFEREF

The Group complied with relevant laws and regulations, such as
the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” of Hong Kong and other
applicable laws and regulations. During the year, the Group was
not aware of any illegal case involving corruption and did not
face any litigation in respect of any corruption case concerning
the Group and its employees.
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Product Responsibility

The Group places great emphasis on the quality of buildings
and services. As the Group outsources the construction-related
work in our property development projects to independent
construction companies, it is essential to establish an excellent
supply chain management. Furthermore, the Group implements
respective management and control measures in various stages
and aspects of operation, including customer safety, property
sales information, customer particulars, service quality, etc.,
in order to safeguard the interest of customer and enhance
satisfaction.

Construction
phase
e T P Ex

Sales phase

EmEE
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Construction Work Tendering BEITRBE

The Group maintains a transparent and fair tendering process to  AEBFEFFEAR AN F 2B EREF  LUHEED
carefully select contractors. The Group has established a Tender E&AZERE - AEBECDKUAREZZB S ([
Review Committee (the “TRC”) and formulated “Comprehensive BRERZEG ) ULGE(ZERFFM) @ &
EHREREEREUEHERBERERZEH
HERRE URREIEQATFTAEHHERRE
BEH W AEETHETRILESR &
NBBERABEER -

Procedure Manual” to control the contracts procurement
process ranging from compilation of tenderers lists to tender
recommendation, to ensure such tendering matters conducted
fairly and impartially by our employees. In addition, the Group
conducts review and monitoring process regularly and strives to
enhance tender management continuingly.

STRUCTURE OF TRC
BEEREESRE

TRC
BREZZES

Senior
management

Department
representatives

PR

BRERE

Finance and Site
account management
department department
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RE  #HE8RERARE (FH)

Tendering Procedure

BERR

1 Tenderer list
compilation

RRREERE

2 Tenderer review
BERBRESE

3 Tender review
and assessment

BERRAEERES

Compiles after referring to the Group’s standard list, consultants or
other relevant parties

BEREBZREFE BERIEMEBALTZERGR

¥

Conducts pre-qualification of tenderers which is further reviewed by
TRC for tender invitation through site visits, job reference analysis,
feedback from consultants, review of annual returns and claims
records

ZREWMER IREZ2Z50W BEHERE ZFHEFERREZR
Bask HREEFLETHEE  IABSEERZEQE—FTERMNU
EITHER

A

Reviews and assesses the tenders in both commercial aspects and

technical aspects:

HEEEBRMMAEEZRIGHERES :

e  Commercial aspects: reasonableness of pricing, compliance
with tendering terms and corruption or other offence records
BAEZER: REAEN REKRKETRERBSXHME
V40 8%

e Technical aspects: for example, programme, site layout,

method statement, inspection and test plan, for the technical
aspects, project planning department and site management
department conduct a technical assessment of tenderers
on six criteria, including technical and professional strength,
relevant previous experience in similar project, knowledge
of site restrictions and scope of work, strength of proposed
project team for this project, quality assurance experience
and relevant certificate/award attained, reference from clients,
consultants, etc.
BMZR - st d  RIIRE FEFA  wkEASE
2 MEMAIE - EAARABI KR ERBGREANAEL
HEREEETRNE aERNMREEE D  HUEBERZ
HEBTAR HMWRRHRITFEE AT REE - ETH
BEVZEZEEEBR ER FMEGBCZEERELH XIEH
BERE BF EBERRHEMATZER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Construction Phase

R -HEREARS (&)

It T P& £R

The Group regularly monitors the working progress and quality ZAEEFHAERAZHNEIEE 2 TREE
of our contractors during the construction phase. To deal REE - AEMEMEIEFMEEZTEET
with any issues in respect of building design and construction [E  AEBEAZELREEEFRESZEY
effectively, the Group maintains close communication with our &3 > WHEEAEFEF T T E & LB
contractors and services providers. For instance, we attend Ffffst & o

regular onsite meetings and site co-ordination workshops with

contractors.

Building materials and
project designs

BEMHKRERRE

To ensure potable water quality, we use authorised plumbing materials
and implement sampling and testing to ensure the quality of potable water
meeting the referenced drinking water quality standards at all point of use.
RERKAKEE  EARANEBMHERTHENS  URERMEES
WEZHKBKREATELERAKMERE -

To provide residents with a pleasant living environment, we enhance indoor
environmental quality through project designs, for instance, increasing
natural light, enhancing natural ventilation installations, providing fresh air
system for air-conditioned indoor spaces and preventing moisture.

FREARMIEAZAREER WRABAN BBEBABEAREG A
ERNEFHRERHEFTEERZS HHSE REFPERHRENEERER -

Quality control

BEEEH

To standardise the quality assurance of each construction project, we
have established the new building acceptability criteria spanning twenty-
five aspects, ranging from floor tiles, ceiling lines, electrical appliances to
drainage system.

RE—FREHEECEERFGRE RULFTEFERETE  REME
REME BFRBZMUZRFRKERE_THEERE -

Conduct completion inspection on project; If any defect is found, we will
require contractors to follow up and give advices, ensuring our property
development projects meet the highest quality standards.
RTEERIRSE  MBEERE BEREAEAREVREMER  UEE
MEERBEEFAESEERE -

We evaluate the performance of the contractors, on a yearly basis, in
various aspects such as site management and workmanship.
BFERMBRERREETES L HAEB Y AEZHRBFEL TG -
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RE HERERESE (&)

Sales phase and after-sales service

During the course of sales of our properties, the Group complies
with the Residential Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance
to ensure that all marketing materials provided to customers
are accurate and that there is no misrepresentation and
dissemination of false or misleading information. Meanwhile, the
Group attaches great importance to protecting the confidential
information of our customers and business partners. As
stipulated in the Staff Handbook, all employees are prohibited
from disclosing any confidential information of customers to
others and are not allowed to misuse confidential information for
their own monetary advantage or private purposes. The Group
always maintains communication with its customers and has
established various channels for its customers to voice their
opinions and seek help at any time.

The Group complies with relevant laws and regulations
relating to product responsibility, such as Buildings Ordinance,
Residential Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance, Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance and other applicable laws and
regulations of Hong Kong. During the year, the Group was
not aware of any incidents of non-compliance with laws and
regulations concerning health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to our products and services.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Environmental sustainability is one of the key concerns of
the Group in fulfilling its corporate social responsibility. As a
property developer, in addition to the operation of its office, the
Group is also obliged to monitor the environmental performance
of our contractors during the construction phase, so as to avoid
and minimise the risks and impacts on the environment from
our business operation. The Group is now drafting relevant
environmental policies to establish work guidelines, monitoring
mechanism and specific measures on the three major aspects
covering emissions, use of resources and the environment and
natural resources.

Electricity
Consumption

HERRERERRS

EMEHEBRRT AKEETEE(—FE
EMEHEEGD)  UTRERNTEPREH®ZMA
LHERDEERE  WEILHRERMRER
ERAREUEN - AEBERBEREPIE
BREHREZEHNNRE  TEB(EIFMR
EBRREMBEEIMINERF 2EAREE
B Y TNBERRZER  ABREREEN RN
ERARZE - AKRERAAZFRFBE ¥
REBBRE BEFPEBREHEARSKE
8 o

AEBEBTHEMBETRABERNIAN  0E
BCEEMEE) (—FEEZWMEHEED) -
CIEAE R (RLER) 5 1) B Bt 38 FR #) R 722 Ko 4R

(I o AN [ AN 5 3 4 B R B R T AR A )
RERZE EE SERLEFEAMEO0E
ERAMER -
RERE

RENAKELRAKEBRTELELEEEN
ENEIRE ERUMEBRRD KRTAE
IMARELE AKETEEEEEAZAR
M TR ERMIRIRARIR - AR DM D X5 &8
BREFEKNERNTE - AEEEERER
RIERE  UWELREBRY  ERER - A
EEREMAABER=-KBIBN TIERES - BRI
ARG -

Water
Consumption

FEKE

Waste
‘Generation
BREYELE

1 l6tonnes

NI

73m3
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Office Operation
Energy and Emissions Management

The Group is fully aware of the importance of controlling
greenhouse gas emissions. During the year, the Group
commissioned an independent consultant to conduct a carbon
assessment, which is for quantifying greenhouse gas emissions
from our operation, and assisted in its regular supervision
and inspection on the emissions. The quantitative process is
based on guidelines prepared by the Environmental Protection
Department and Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
of Hong Kong' and international standards such as ISO14064-1.
In order to have a more comprehensive understanding of the
impact of the Group’s operation on the environment, the Group
expanded the carbon assessment to Scope 3 - Other indirect
greenhouse gas emissions in the reporting year.

P

MAEEE

RERREHERE

AEEFRAZEHAZEREHERNEEN - X&
BEXRFEZAB LEXEBRETRTME
NEEEMNAREREBHEN  HBEEHENK
EETHEZRNBRE 2N BRELXEERE
RERESAMETIRERERENESI UK
ISO14064-1 LB R IREHIT - RERXE T HA
SEEEHRREKNOTE  AEEBEREKRT
HWEHE =  AAREFEEAMBEERIAZEAE
PERR ©

Total
(tonnes of CO,
equivalent)
Greenhouse Gas BERHE wE(M_StHmES
Scope 1 Emissions #HEHEW 0
Scope 2 Emissions # [E28F he 52.9
Scope 3 Emissions # E3HE W 9.9
Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions BRERBHHREE 62.8
Intensity of Greenhouse Gas Emissions (by B = REHKZE 2.16
thousand square feet of gross floor area (NEBTFEHFREEAEETE
(‘GFA”)
Scope 2: includes greenhouse gas emissions generated by electricity & [E2: BIEE W EEMELD S EREHEK
consumption.
Scope 3: includes greenhouse gas emissions generated by disposal of & [E3: BEHAZTEMAEE « B/KMGKEIE KL

paper, drinking water and sewage treatment in the office, and
the Group’s business travel by plane

1 Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions
and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional
Purposes) in Hong Kong

7N S [ 7 TS R AT RS SRR MR = RS R

' (EERED(BE EEZRAMABINRE
BB RRROZENREES)D
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RE #HERERRS (H)

During the year, the Group’s total carbon emissions were 63
tonnes of CO, equivalent, which are mainly from electricity
consumption in office operation. To reduce greenhouse
gas emissions generated from electricity consumption in
office operation, the Group has adopted a series of energy
conservation and greenhouse gas emission reduction measures:

uses LED lighting devices
£ A% — B E(LED)E &

installs motion detectors in
office rooms, conference rooms,
pantries, restrooms, etc.
THRIERERNPFLEEMH
CROKME C EFHEEF

Resources and Waste Management

The Group places a great emphasis on reducing resource
wastage in our daily operations and is cautious on the disposal
of solid waste arising from business activities. As such, we carry

out the following measures:

Measures on Resources and Waste Management

Save Water

¥ i1g Ak

AEE - AREOBHRPEMS63M — ALt g
E - IZXREMRETLENENHE - BRD
MAEEEENHERMELNBEEREBHW -
AEBEERT — RFIEN K 8E TR Srl A8 = R 68
PER e HE i

divides office area into different
zones and controls their lighting
systems separately

BR AR 8 o 18 3 DA 4% ) M8 Bl BR BB R &

installs video conference devices
and reduce the number of business
trips by plane
HERGEEERB

R = IR

R B IR

aFRENEE
AREERERHEETROERRE - L

HEBLEFELEMEBEY  BUETEE
25

BRRENEEEE

e Will consider utilising water-saving taps

* To conduct inspection and maintenance of water pipes
and water taps regularly to prevent any water seepage
from water taps and gasket or other problems found in
the water supply system

e To posting sighages to remind and encourage
employees to save water

s HEEEMEIKER
o EHETTKE RIKEE SRR A M

iR K BESR AN B R K - DA R B Al
S AP

o RERFB RERIMEBE TEHHMK
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R HERENR

wE(E)

Reduce the Use of Paper

I, 2 4 5 1 A

e To encourage internal communication conducted in
electronic means

e To encourage duplex printing or reusing the paper
printed one side

e To reset printers and fax machines’ default settings on
printing

e WEMUBEFHIAETAMER

e HEFAEENEMEM@ARLTE

o HEIEIMREAEKKRBITHNRE

Waste Treatment

&Y m

° Place recycling bins and the recycled materials to be
collected regularly by the appointed collector

° A few hazardous wastes are generated in office (such
as waste batteries, waste mercury-containing lamps,
compact fluorescent lamps, waste flat panel display)

o All wastes (including hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes) are disposed by the property management
company

The Group has not conducted measurement on hazardous
wastes generated from office operation during the Year. In
the upcoming year, the Group will collect data on hazardous
wastes and disclose relevant data.

o MEMDUAEI EFEE W E B KEE

e MAEELLEBEEEYW(WEE
o BKIBEXE  BEE - -ETH
N

s FMEEEM(BERAERETEED)
BRaMEEERQREIE

AREREASBEHAUBRAELEMELN
BEBEEWMER - KF AKEBHE
EREVELETRA LB ECEREEE -

Construction Sites of Property Development Projects

All construction-related projects of the Group are outsourced
to independent contractors, therefore, to properly regulate
the environmental performance of our property development
projects at the construction stage is of crucial importance.
To ensure our compliance with relevant environmental laws
and regulations, the Group imposed a series of regulatory
requirements on contractors, such as ensuring proper emission
of related fumes and exhaust gas, collecting wastewater and
properly discharging it into main municipal sewage pipes, etc.

MEBRRBRENEET

AEEMEREMBIRYINA THEL AR
AR XEEEVMEERRBEREIRR
ZRERALEBZ - AEEHAEZHET—
RIMEERK - mERARER MEREXZ
P WERBEKEKEZEHRRETAIFK
FRITEEES  UHERETHBERRERE
e
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RE #HERERRS (H)

Construction Waste and Water Consumption Management

All contractors are required to collect and separate waste
properly. Wastes are collected and treated by eligible contractors,
including disposal to landfills and recycling as public fill. During
the Year, “The Met. Acappella”, our residential project,
generated 28,958 tonnes of waste, including general waste,
metal and construction and demolition waste. In order to reduce
construction waste, contractors are encouraged to use pre-
fabricated concrete facades, to minimise the use of traditional
timber formwork. In addition, for water usage, “The Met.
Acappella”, our residential project, in aggregate consumed
8,651 cubic meters of water resource during the year.

The Group abides by relevant laws and regulations on
emissions, such as Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Water
Pollution Control Ordinance and Waste Disposal Ordinance of
Hong Kong, and other applicable laws and regulations. During
the Year, no violation of laws and regulations related to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste was found.

The Group believes that complete and accurate statistics enable
us to review the effectiveness of current measures regularly.
The Group will continue to evaluate, record and disclose its
greenhouse gas emission and other environmental data every
year, using the statistics during the Year as the basis for a
comparison with subsequent statistics in the future, so as
to examine the effectiveness of current measures and to set
emission reduction targets.

BEBRYKRAKER

AEBEXMAABNEZEREEM I ET
D RAAEREARBKEREE  BEEZE
EEHERBIERIEARERAR - AFE -
[E& (X808 EL28,058MiREEY) » B4 —
Mk  eBUARBEMFHER - BRLE
EEYPELE AEBEEEPANRBFERAERER
BN - R A ERAEREARAMER o o - A
KAE®E BB IEEHERAFEXERK
8,65137 75 3K o

AEBEETEERYBENEZRRAG - W0
BB M(ERFREHEO) - OO RE H 5
BIYRCRE R B GRDI) - A KR E M E A r AR
RBO - AFE  IEEREEIALBERE
PR KR EHEEES  AEREEERY
MELHEBENEZERESR -

AEERARTEMERNBIBERDAEETH
BMEBRTHEEIRY - AKESEETE &
BLBFREEAREREFMEEMERRR
U NAFENBURFEEE  UERKREB
R E BARBIE - R RITREMR - AR
B ETR R B AR
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=z d _
RE HE8RER/RBRE(E)
Environment and Natural Resources RERRXARER

The Group pays a great attention to the influence of its business
operation on the environment and natural resources and
performs its corporate responsibilities. In terms of property
development, the Group is aware of the impacts of varying
levels on the environment and natural resources arising from
activities in each stage of property development, from planning,
designing, material procurement, construction to operation. The
Group has incorporated elements of ecosystem protection in
the process of designing, development and construction of our
projects, such as reducing the impacts of the development on
in-situ trees and offering compensation for felling in-situ trees. In
addition, the Group has installed energy-saving lighting systems
in the common area of buildings and utilised machineries,
electrical systems and pipe systems that are in accordance with
the latest Building Energy Code. We also installed water-saving
taps to help mitigate the impacts of building operation on the
environment.

As for our offices, its daily operation causes no significant

adverse impacts on the environment. The Group has promised
to take measures to reduce the influence of its operation on
the environment, such as purchasing paper certified by Forest
Stewardship Council and other environmental-friendly office
consumables.

AEEERAEEBEEHRBERRAERY
FE CURBTLEEE EWEZERI@E -
AEERBEMERBEEBRLE S ERR (K
RE B PHEBE BENZZEE)NE
E'@%%ﬁﬂ@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁ§%%
c AEBRIBEER BERMFEBEFRY
jJD)\%LTE ERGIREM TR - W D E R A
Kiﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ TE B REH
REBEY AR T LREMEEERPRS - KA
FERM(EEVEREE TN HW - B8
REBRG  ARLTEGKKERS B
EYELSEHRYRENTE -

k=

HEWAEEm - HAF ¥
TR L - REEEAF G b
REMNFE MEBAZTMNER
MEMEMRRROPBAEZEEMR °

RETEEKX
ﬁﬂﬁMiﬁ
%

BEE
:_éi_/

S & o 5%
= 5 b g
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R HERERESE (&)

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Upholding our passion-centered business ambitions, the Group
values its commitment to social responsibility with concerns
over the needs of local communities to bring about positive
impacts on society. The Group is committed to promoting the
idea of living with contentment through our own professionalism
in property development, construction of communal facilities,
donations and volunteering services. During the Year, the
work in community investment of the Group is focused on four
areas: property development projects with the consideration
of community needs, support youth development, community
connections and care, as well as support for underprivileged
groups.

The Group had taken into account the demographic
characteristics of local communities during the designing phase
of property development projects, such as construction of
additional gardens for communities with more elderly people
and diversified clubhouse facilities for young couples, in order to
build a comfortable community satisfying their needs.

To support our youth development and encourage students to
strive for better academic performance, the Group launched
a “Wang On Property Outstanding Academic Scholarship in
Business Management “scheme, which provided an aggregate
of HK$120,000 as scholarships to eligible university students
during the year. Students receiving the fund were even given an
opportunity to take up internship in the Group. Moreover, the
Group joined Project WeCan, a two-year academic scheme,
during the year to finance HK$500,000 for Caritas Yuen Long
Chan Chun Ha Secondary School, including students potential
enhancement activities, purchase of teaching material, training
scheme and career planning, etc.

HtES A

RENESANBELRRE AEHERELE
BEEMNAE BIMEHHRNTE  ALE
TREEAFE ASEBEEFEVEER
MEX BRUEBRE BREEIRBSHE
M BOEBLRELE REFER - AKE
Wit RBRETHEZEIROERE - MEERR
BEZEHRTBE IHEFER HEBER
B AR FEBEE -

REBUEYEZERBEERATRBREZEE i
MHEHAORR  WARZREMNLEIZ NG
BEH% hAFEXGERHEZ LM MR
MEE - DA —E AT E Reem B A P Skt
& o

BYRBEFERE ULBBBEES NESBER
BEFEREARE  AEEHELZTHETR
ERSIMBERES [HE RAFEAAE
BAEARMEES H120,0008 7T 0 REB)
BLAFAREINAEEEE - I AEER
AEE2HEABHMFIERLE TS - BBEE
JCEABR B 2 4R £ & B)500,00078 7T B
RABAEENEE  BEHM  FJITE -
BEBREFHER -
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Community connections and care

The Group attaches importance to its relationship with
communities in which its projects operate and works closely
with associations in the community through various activities.
In recent years, the Group has focused on properties in Ma On
Shan and Sha Tin districts. Accordingly, during the Year, we
partnered with the social welfare organizations in Ma On Shan
and Sha Tin, including the Yan Oi Tong Hong Kong Toi Shan
Association Neighbourhood Elderly Centre and the Sister of the
Immaculate Heart of Mary Pak Tin Elderly Home, to particularly
organise the “Mooncakes for the Community” initiative where
low-sugar and healthier mooncakes were delivered to solitary
individuals and the elderly in need to express our care. The
Group will continue to show our care to individuals from different
sectors of the community through various forms of warmth
giving initiatives. Besides, the Group also participated in the
Cookies Run 2018 and part of the proceeds generated will be
donated to Healthy Hong Kong, so as to finance the provision of
free Chinese medication and social services to those in need.

Support for underprivileged groups

While Hong Kong is a generally affluent society, there are still
many people who live below poverty line. In order to raise funds
for helping the disadvantaged groups, the Group organised a
charity dinner and raised a total amount of HK$360,000 in the
event. The aggregate proceeds will be donated to the Hong
Kong Children and Youth Services to support the Special
Educational Needs (“SEN”) Child Financial Assistance Scheme
for aiding the low-income SEN children and their families at the
grassroots level. In the long run, the Group hope to raise the
concern for underprivileged groups in the community as a whole
and further promote social integration.

he e 250 8

o ' B
[t a0

HEBRBKEBE

AEESEREETEEMAELENRER 1B
BIAREHEZENEHBRTHE - IF K
SERSRLE PHMEF HERESR At
AFEERFERSHLULPENLEERBESE
[BXEBLAB1TE  ETRECEERBS
LEmeREHEsPORESZLCEAATEY
R BEFENBEALREEX HLEEREE
A8t MMREBRE - AEESHEUTR
FAMKETE AU TEBEEE LBIZE -
SN AEBE2ET A E2018] - A
Pz EERes T  UEhABSE

TRENEEREREESRE -

XEBHEEHE

ZEEHEEEBEL BHAETLALERE
ERET REEECKPBEHRE  A&E
BRT-BARBRERE FREH -HESH
360,000 TER TEERABTHBREREL
FLERBE  XFHIEREBBFHZ(ISEN])R
BEEEE] REENEBRASENEERAER
AREZE -REMS - AREFLEERESE
SERUPIHENRELT £ REMLER
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OVERVIEW OF KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

HARANEREARE

Environmental Performance? RIERR?
Environmental Key Performance Indicators Quantity Unit
REBRBENER HE B
Total greenhouse gas emissions and intensity
BMERBAHHEREE
Total greenhouse gas emissions 62.8 tCO.e
RERBEBHERES W —F R E 8
Scope 1 0.0 tCO.e
& [E]1 M| E 8
Scope 28 52.9 tCO.e
& [E 23 W —EAHE 8
Scope 34 9.9 tCO.e
& [E 3¢ W —EAHE 8
Intensity of greenhouse gas emissions (in terms of GFA) 2.16 tCO,e/thousand square feet
BRERBYREE(ARERENHE) Wo_StiREE/ FTEAR
Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity
FELEBRERZYLEREE
Total non-hazardous waste produced 1.6 tonnes
FFEXREEEDES 158
Intensity of non-hazardous waste (in terms of GFA) 0.06 tonnes/thousand square feet
BEEEDEE(AREMETE) Wg,/FFHR
Energy consumption by types and intensity
REDEASNEREREEREE
Total energy consumption — purchased electricity 103.6 MWh
BEREREE —IEEN JK FL B
Intensity of energy consumption (in terms of GFA) 3.57 MWh/thousand square feet
EREAZE(UNEEEEE) KER,FFEHR
Total water consumption and intensity
BEKERRE
Total water consumption 73 m3
BWIEKE SR
Intensity of water consumption (in terms of GFA) 2.5 m3/thousand square feet
MKEE(ARERBEAE) NHEKSFERR
2 Only includes office data. 2 RABERQESIE

3 Scope 2 includes greenhouse gas emissions generated by electricity ¢ #HE2BRIEST W EEMELNE =R EHN
consumption.

4 Scope 3 includes greenhouse gas emissions generated by disposal ¢ HESIBEHAEEMAEE - RAKFISKEIE
of paper, drinking water and sewage treatment in the office, and the RASEEEBIRTERREAREREBHEN
Group’s business travel by plane
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Social Performance HEXRE

Social Key Performance Indicators Unit Quantity
HERBRENER By HE
Workforce Total headcount 120
BT BETI A
By Age Group
7 F g F &S
30 or below 24
30p% A T
31-50 56
31E50%%
Above 50 40
507% A =
By Gender
715 & 5
Male 83
S
Female 37
M
By Professional Profile
BREXEF S
Management staff 24
EREEET
General staff 96
—fMRET
By Employment Type
BEEBEEE S
Full time 100
28
Part time 0
& i
Temporary/Contractual 20
AP
Ratio of Male to Female Employees 2.24:1
BB T AEH
Employee New Hire Rate % 76.67%
B T X
By Age Group
7 F A5 & 5
30 or below % 87.50%
30 IA T
31-50 % 69.64%
31E505%
Above 50 % 80.00%
505% A £
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Social Key Performance Indicators Unit Quantity
HERERENER B HE
By Gender
#7152 5
Male % 79.52%
S
Female % 70.27%
i
Employee Turnover Rate % 45.00%
BTInmAE

By Age Group

% F ik 40 B &) 5
30 or below % 25.00%
30K IA T
31-50 % 37.50%
31 =508
Above 50 % 67.50%
508% A £

By Gender

714 5 & 5
Male % 56.63%
Xl
Female % 18.92%
M

Health and Safety Employees

BERZT2 BT
Work-related Fatalities 0
TEHERTEW
Work-related Injuries 3
THEEW
Work-related Injury Rate % 2.50%
IHE=x
Lost Days Due to Work-related Injury 77
EILEEAIIERH
Workers of Construction Contractors
BEAPHLA
Work-related Fatalities 0
THBFRTEW
Work-related Injuries 13

ITHBER
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Social Key Performance Indicators Unit Quantity
HEERENER B HE
Employee Training Percentage of Employee Trained % 34.17%
& 8 &3 XINETED
By Gender
715 & 5
Male % 33.73%
S
Female % 35.14%
g
By Professional Profile
BEXEFZ S
Management staff % 87.50%
BIEEETL
General staff % 20.83%
—fMRET

Percentage of Employees Receiving
Regular Performance and Career

Development Reviews % 80.83%
EXTHAEMKBEZRRBENET
ALt
Community Donation Hong Kong Dollars HK$13,200,000
Investment B® T 13,200,000/% 7T
HERE Volunteer Headcounts 16
ET AR
Volunteering Hours Hours 74

& TR H N
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REPORT CONTENT INDEX HwEARNBRL
Subject Areas Content Page Index
FTEHE AR R
A1 Emissions
AR Y
General Disclosure Information on: p.54, p.58

— BB B

ERBERKRERBHR mMAKRIHMHHES BER
BEEERVNELSH

(a) the policies; and

BE &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
BTHBETABEAZENEBEZELRINER

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste

$54H © £58H

A1 The types of emissions and the respective emissions data  There is no gas emissions
as the office of the Group
did not involve any usage
of motor vehicles
HERU ) 1 R K A8 B HE P BUR AEEBRAETSREE
8 FA -+ I % 48 R RE SRHE AR
Al1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity p.54-55, p.62
BRERBAENELTE $£54%55H * 628
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity The Group will collect data
in the coming year
MEXEEREEVHEERTE N TN NES ET 87
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity p.54, p.62
MErEEEZEVRERTE $E64H - £62H
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results  p.54-56, p.62
achieved
AU R HE B B i R PTE R FH4E56H 628
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes  p.54, p.57-58, p.62

are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved
HEEEEREEREYN AL REELEENEE
TSR R

i

$£548H  F57E588
628
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RE -#HEakE8®E (A)

Subject Areas Content Page Index
FTEEHE A BB ES
A2 Use of Resources
A2ERER
General Disclosure Policies on efficient use of resources including energy, p.54
—MREE water and other raw materials
BERERABR(BIEEIR  KREAMERME) B R F548
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total  p.54, p.62
and intensity
RENESWEER SHEEREEERTE 548 - $£62EH
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity p.54, p.62
wEXKERTE £54H - £62H
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results  p.54, p.56, p.62
achieved
B R0 A A s 5T B R P AR K R %548 - $56H ' £628
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing p.54, p.58, p.62: The Group
water that is fit for the purpose, water usage efficiency does not have any issue in
initiatives and results achieved sourcing water
A SKEBGER KR R BEMEE  URRABKKRZE $548H £58H £62
AEIRFTIERR B A& B SREGE A K
IR AT {a] R RE
A2.5 Total packaging materials used for finished products and The Group’s operation

with reference to per unit produced

HEmAERMHNBEERBLEEENGE

does not involve consumption
of packaging materials
AEBXEBL TS RBE
R (£ A

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

ABERIRERRARER

General Disclosure
— B H =

A3.1

Policies on minimising the issuers’ significant impact on
the environment and natural resources
WRBITAHRERAAEREKEAZEZNHHE

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them
HREBEHHRERRAERNEAZERDRNE
BEBETENTH
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE  #HE8RERARE (FH)

Subject Areas Content Page Index
TEEHE RS R
B1 Employment

B1{E &

General Disclosure Information on: p.46-47
—RIKE ERFMEERE BEREAN ITHERH RE - FF  F46E47H

e Zial REKRAREMEFERENE

(a) the policies; and
BE &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
MTHBITABTEAREWEMARE BRI 0E R

that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group  p.63
and geographical region
BRI EEEE  FRANERMES HHESRHE $63H

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and p.64
geographical region
RS FERARN MR E S HEEBRKL X

hi
o)
s
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Subject Areas Content Page Index
TEEHE RS R
B2 Health and Safety

B2 FHE%Z 2

General Disclosure Information on: p.45
—RIKE EAREZ2TERERREREEHEBEMLEN © F458

(@) the policies; and
BE &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
BTHETABEAZENHEBEEZRAMND
&k

relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities p.64
ETIEREMIE T AB KL #6458

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury p.64
FAITGERTIERR E64H

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures p.45

adopted, how they are implemented and monitored
AT AN ERRERELT 2N U REARTRE F458

R/7E
B3 Development and Training
B3% & & &3
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills  p.48
— MBI E for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities
EHARARERITIFEREN MBI RENEE - it $£488
=l D)
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and p.65

employee category

R MEBBRAEDNZIEET DL

e
&
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE  #HE8RERARE (FH)

Subject Areas Content Page Index
TEEHE RS R
B4 Labour Standards

B4% T %8|

General Disclosure Information on: p.47

— BRI E BRADILE Tmb s TH : F47TH

(a) the policies; and
B M

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

BFUBTABEAYEORBERRAI0E R

relating to preventing child or forced labour

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices  p.47
to avoid child and forced labour
Ml BEEMNEEARSETREH ST F4TE
B5 Supply Chain Management
B5 1 fE 2 5 32
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of p.48, p.51-52
—REE the supply chain

BIHEENRE e R B EBUR 488 © F51E528
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Subject Areas Content Page Index

TEEHE RS R

B6 Product Responsibility

B6E m &H E

General Disclosure Information on: p.48, p.50-54: The

—REE EHEREERMERSMNEERELZS - ESE 28 XF Company’s operation does
BEEARERED not involve labelling relating

(@) the policies; and
BE &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

BTHETABEAZENHBEIZRRINER

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress

to products and services
E48H  F50E54H K
DA EBA S & E MR
BIEK

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedure

WiiEERTBRENERDKER

p.50-53: The Group’s
business does not involve
recalls of product or service
£50%53H - AEEE

A% Ko EE on A AR %5 [ Ui
B6.5 Description of customer data protection and privacy p.54
policies, how they are implemented and monitored
HAOBEBEEERNRERLBRE  UREBRITRER %548

RS
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE  #HE8RERARE (FH)

Subject Areas Content Page Index
FEEHE A BB ZES
B7 Anti-corruption

B7TRES

General Disclosure Information on: p.49
—RIKE BREGILHE $R MEREREN F498

(a) the policies; and
B M

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
BTHBETABEAZENEBEZERRRONER

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt p.49
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases
RERAASETANEEERETEEANEGHA F498
RUNBE RFABER

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing  p.49
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored
MM SEERRRET  UREERNTRERFE F498

B8 Community Investment

B8t E &R &

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the p.40

— B H = needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests
FRANMELERTHREEMCHERTEMNBRAEY F408
EBEERTERMNEOBR

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution p.60
BITERERE F608

B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area p.60-61, p.65

EEIHRBMEBAER F60ZE61H * F658
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
governance and is committed to achieving a high standard
of corporate governance within a sensible framework with a
strong emphasis on transparency, accountability, integrity
and independence. The Board believes that good corporate
governance practices are fundamental and essential to
the success of the Company and the enhancement of its
effectiveness and corporate image.

The Company adopted the principles and complied with the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Board
had reviewed periodically the compliance of the CG Code and is
in the view that throughout the year ended 31 March 2019, the
Company had complied with the applicable code provisions set
out in the CG Code.

The Board continues to review periodically the compliance of
the CG Code so as to safeguard and maximise the benefit of the
stakeholders of the Company.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, as amended from
time to time, (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed,
following a specific enquiry by the Company, that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the year under review.

The Company also adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions on no less exacting terms than the
Model Code by the relevant employees of the Group who are
considered likely to be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information in relation to the Company or its securities
pursuant to code provision A.6.4 of the CG Code. To the best
knowledge and belief of the Directors, all relevant employees
have complied with the required standards of such code.
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BUSINESS MODEL AND CORPORATE
STRATEGY

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of
developing residential and commercial properties for sale and
investing in commercial and industrial properties for investment
return and capital appreciation. The Group’s strategy for
generating and preserving shareholder’s value in the long
run is to invest prudently in projects and opportunities which
maximise return to the shareholders. With respect to property
development, the Group actively explores opportunities and
increases its land portfolio which forms the basis for generating
gain in the property development. To cope with the dynamic and
uncertain property market conditions, the Group mainly focuses
on projects with shorter development cycle in order to provide
greater turnover cycle, flexibility and reduction of business risk.
On the other hand, the Group continues to maintain a balanced
portfolio of property investments, regularly review its tenant mix,
with an aim to maximise rental yield and secure a stable stream
of income to support the recurring operations of the Group.
Overall, the Group adopts a proactive and prudent approach in
developing its business.

In short-term, the Group continuously reviews and updates its
strategies to provide better clarity on direction and business
models. The Group takes active and prompt measures to
meet market changes through adjustment of business strategy
and control over costs. Further, the Group strives to maintain
a healthy financing structure and devotes effort to securing
banking facilities which is regarded as an important element for
supporting continuous business development of the Group.

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and the Senior
Management

The Board is responsible for formulating of corporate strategies
and internal control, reviewing and guiding the business and
affairs, monitoring financial and operating performance and is
individually and collectively accountable to the shareholders
of the Company for the success and sustainable development
of the Group. The independent non-executive Directors
(the “INEDs”) only account for various industry expertise
and overseeing the Group’s business, whilst the general
management and day-to-day management are delegated to
the executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company, they will meet regularly to review the performance
of the Group and to co-ordinate overall resources among the
development of the Group.

EBEAREERR
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Apart from these, the Board will consider and make decision
for any major acquisitions and disposals, review of interim and
annual financial results, appointments/removals of directors
and auditors, evaluation on the performance and compensation
of senior management, any material capital transactions
and other significant operational and financial affairs. With a
review to maintaining an appropriate balance of authority and
responsibility, such functions are either carried out directly by
the Board or indirectly through various committees established
by the Board, with respective functions set out in their terms of
reference. Currently, there are four Board committees, namely
executive committee (the “Executive Committee”), audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”).

All Directors will ensure that they can give sufficient attention
to discharge their responsibilities to the affairs of the Company
and the Directors have disclosed to the Company the identity
and nature of offices held in any public organisation and other
significant commitments on an annual basis.

During the year, regular Board meeting were held four times to
review, consider and approve the, among others, annual and
interim results and to review the business operations and the
effectiveness of internal control systems of the Group. Apart
from these regular Board meetings, Board meetings are also
held, as and when necessary, to consider major issues. Notice
of at least 14 days for each regular Board meeting is given to all
Directors. All such minutes are kept by the company secretary
of the Company and are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director. Apart from the
regular Board meetings, the chairman of the Company also
met with the INEDs without the presence of executive Directors
during the year.

Composition

The Board currently has seven Directors comprising three
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
INEDs. The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yiu Hung Gary, Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Tang Ho Hong

Ms. Ching Tak Won Teresa (Appointed on 25 June 2019)
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Non-executive Director
Mr. Chan Chun Hong, Chairman

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Li Wing Sum Steven

Mr. Sung Tze Wah

Sr Dr. Leung Tony Ka Tung

There are no financial, business, family or other material
relationships among the Directors. The biographical details of all
Directors are set out on pages 31 to 35 of this annual report.

The Board possesses a mix and balance of skills and experience
which are benefit for the requirements of the business of the
Company. The opinion raised by the INEDs in Board meetings
may facilitate the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices. The Board has three INEDs, representing more than
one-third of the Board, and at least one of the INEDs has the
appropriate professional qualification and/or accounting and
audit experience and expertise as required by Rules 3.10(1)
and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. A balanced composition
of executive and non-executive Directors also generates a
strong independent element on the Board, which allows for an
independent and objective decision making process for the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders. All Directors are
aware of the required levels of fiduciary duties, care, skill and
diligence under Rule 3.08 of the Listing Rules.

In compliance with code provision A.3.2 of the CG Code, an
updated list of the Directors identifying their role and function are
available on the websites of the Company (www.woproperties.com)
and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk). The Company will
review the composition of the Board from time to time to ensure
that the Board possesses the appropriate and necessary expertise,
skills and experience to meet the needs of the Group’s business
and to enhance the shareholders’ value.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration as set out in note 8 to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 is set out
below:
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BRIRBESELE &
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Number of

Remuneration to the Directors = = 5 individual
AE

Below HK$500,000 500,000/ JT A T~ 4
HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000 500,000 7t 2= 1,000,000/ 7T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T £ 1,500,000/ JT -
Over HK$1,500,000 1,500,000 T A 2
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company held by Mr. Chan Chun Hong and Mr. Wong
Yiu Hung Gary, respectively, are separate to reinforce their
respective independence and accountability. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly segregated, Mr. Chan Chun Hong is
primarily responsible for formulation of overall business strategic
planning and leadership of the Board and Mr. Wong Yiu Hung
Gary is responsible for the day-to-day business operations
and implementation of the business strategies adopted by the
Board.

Appointment and Re-election of the Directors

All INEDs are appointed for a term of not more than three
years with specific term set out under respective letters of
appointment which may be terminated by giving one-month
notice. The non-executive Director is appointed for a term of not
more than three years with specific term set out in the letter of
appointment which may be terminated by giving three-month
notice. The executive Directors are appointed for a term of not
more than three years commencing from the date of listing of
the Company with specific term set out under respective service
agreements which may be terminated by giving six-month
notice. One third of the Directors, including those appointed for
a specific term, are subject to retirement by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the annual general
meetings in accordance with the Bye-law 84(1) of the bye-
laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). In addition, Directors
who are appointed by the Board to fill casual vacancies or as
an addition to the existing Board are subject to re-election at
the first general meeting of the Company or the next following
annual general meeting of the Company, respectively after his/
her appointment.

Independence of INEDs

The INEDs are required to confirm their independence upon
their appointment and on an annual basis. The Company
has received from each INED an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the
year ended 31 March 2019. The INEDs would not participate
in the Group’s daily operation and they would abstain from
voting on any resolution(s) in which he had any interest and,
therefore, the Company continues to consider all the INEDs to
be independent for the year under review and up to the date of
this annual report.
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Corporate Governance

The Board has undertaken the responsibility for performing
the corporate governance duties pursuant to code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code and is committed to ensuring that an
effective governance structure is in place to continuously review,
monitor and improve the corporate governance practices within
the Group with regard to the prevailing legal and regulatory
requirements.

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Diversity
Policy”) stipulating the composition of the Board, reviewing the
policies and measures on the Group’s corporate governance,
reviewing a code of conduct applicable to the Directors and
employees, monitoring the Company’s legal and regulatory
compliance, training and continuing professional development of
Directors and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and the disclosure in this annual report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the
Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.

Board Diversity

The Company recognises increasing diversity at the Board
level as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its
strategic objectives, sustainable and balanced development. In
March 2016, the Company adopted the Diversity Policy which
sets out the approach to diversify the Board.

In designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The Nomination Committee will also consider factors
based on the Company’s business model, specific needs and
meritocracy from time to time in determining the optimum
composition of the Board.

During the period under review and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board comprises seven Directors, including
three executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
three INEDs, thereby promoting critical review and control of
the management process. The Board is also characterised by
significant diversity, whether considered in terms of professional
experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Diversity Policy and the Board’s
composition, the Nomination Committee is satisfied that the
requirements set out in the Diversity Policy had been met.
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Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. The company secretary of the Company regularly
circulates training materials or briefings to all Directors in
respect of the updates on, among other things, the Listing
Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) or guidelines, the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and financial
or accounting standards which may be of the interest to
Directors.

In addition, the company secretary of the Company also
provides and circulates to the Directors with monthly and regular
updates relating to the Group’s business, financial position and
business environment, in which the Group operates. During
the year, all Directors have complied with the code provisions
in relation to continuous professional development, apart from
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business, director’s
duties and responsibilities.

The company secretary of the Company continuously updates
Directors constantly on the latest developments regarding the
Group’s business and other applicable regulatory requirements,
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

During the year, all Directors have provided to the Company with
their training records on a regular basis, and such records have
been maintained by the company secretary of the Company for
accurate and comprehensive record keeping.

Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has arranged for appropriate directors and
officers liability insurance to indemnify its Directors against
liabilities arising out of legal action on corporate activities. Such
insurance coverage is reviewed and renewed with consultant
advice on an annual basis.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including
the Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, each of which has
the specific written terms of reference that will be reviewed
and updated, where necessary. Minutes of all meetings
and resolutions of the committees are kept by the company
secretary of the Company and open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director. Each
committee is required to report to the Board on its decision and
recommendations, where appropriate.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been established since March
2016 with specific terms of reference with authority delegated
by the Board, which are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The Executive Committee is
responsible for general management, supervising the day-to-day
management, performance and operations in accordance with
the business strategy and keeping under review strategy and
business development initiatives of the Group and monitoring
their implementation. Currently, the Executive Committee
comprises three members, namely Mr. Wong Yiu Hung Gary,
Mr. Tang Ho Hong and Ms. Ching Tak Won Teresa. Mr. Wong
Yiu Hung Gary takes the chair of the Executive Committee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since March 2016
with specific written terms of reference, stipulating its authorities
and duties in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules,
which are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. Currently, the Audit Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely, Mr. Li Wing Sum Steven, Mr. Sung Tze
Wah and Sr Dr. Leung Tony Ka Tung and Mr. Li Wing Sum
Steven is appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The functions of the Audit Committee is, among others, to assist
the Board to review the financial reporting, including interim and
final results, to supervise over the Group’s internal controls,
risk management and to monitor the internal and external audit
functions, the appointment, the re-appointment and removal
of auditors and to make relevant recommendations to the
Board to ensure effective and efficient operation and reliable
reporting. The functions of the Audit Committee will be reviewed
regularly by the Board and amended from time to time, as and
when appropriate, in order to be in compliance with the code
provision of the CG Code (as amended from time to time).
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The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and may access to independent
professional advice according to the Company’s policy, if
considered necessary.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee members
met twice with the Group senior management and the external
auditors of the Company to discuss and review the following
matters:

(@) the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2018 and
the interim results for the six-month ended 30 September
2018 to ensure for full, complete and accurate disclosure
in the aforesaid financial statements pursuant to the
accounting standards and other legal requirement for
presenting the same to the Board for approval;

the term and remuneration for the appointment of Ernst
& Young as external auditors to perform the agreed-
upon procedures on the final results for the year ended
31 March 2018 and the interim results for the six-month
ended 30 September 2018;

the independence of the external auditors especially for
those non-audit services;

the continuing connected transaction(s) of the Group;

the overall effectiveness of internal controls and risk
management systems; and

the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff, the accounting and financial reporting matters and
their training programmes and budget.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with, inter alia, the audit fees,
effectiveness of the audit process, independence and objectivity
of Ernst & Young and has recommended to the Board the
re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company’s external
auditors for the ensuing year at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established on 17
March 2016 with specific written terms of reference, as revised
from time to time, stipulating its authorities and duties in
compliance with code provision of B.1.2 of the CG Code, which
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely, Mr. Li Wing Sum Steven, Mr. Sung Tze
Wah and Sr Dr. Leung Tony Ka Tung, one executive Director,
namely Mr. Wong Yiu Hung Gary, and one non-executive
Director, namely Mr. Chan Chun Hong, and Sr Dr. Leung Tony
Ka Tung is appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. Majority of the Remuneration Committee are INEDs.

By reference to the corporate goals and objectives of the
Company, the primary roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
a remuneration policy on the basis of basic salary and
allowances, discretionary bonus and share options;

to review and approve the senior management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management of the Company, including,
but not limited to, benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments for loss or termination of their
office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the directors’
fee of the non-executive Director and INEDs with
reference to the range of remuneration of other non-
executive directors in the similar industry and allow any
out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the
performance of their duties;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;
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to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management of the Company for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that
it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair
and not excessive; and

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct
to ensure that they consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and may access to
independent professional advice according to the Company’s
policy, if considered necessary.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting, in which it reviewed the existing remuneration
policy by reference with the market research, communicated
with the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company
and recommended amendments to the existing remuneration
policy and performance-based bonus and approved the
remuneration package and performance-based bonus paid to
other Directors and senior management of the Company. No
Director took part in any discussion or determination about his
own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has discharged or will continue
to discharge its major roles to, among other things, approve
the terms of the service agreements of the Directors and the
senior management of the Company, make recommendations
with respect to the remuneration and policies of the Directors
and senior management of the Company and to review the
remuneration package and recommend salaries, bonuses,
including the incentive awards for Directors and senior
management of the Company.

Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5, the annual remuneration
of other members of the senior management by bands for the
year ended 31 March 2019 is set out below:

Remuneration to the senior management
by bands
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established on 17 March
2016 with specific written terms of reference, as revised from
time to time, stipulating its authorities and duties in compliance
with code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code, which are available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely, Mr. Li Wing Sum Steven, Mr. Sung Tze Wah and
Sr Dr. Leung Tony Ka Tung, one executive Director, namely
Mr. Tang Ho Hong, and one non-executive Director, namely
Mr. Chan Chun Hong, and Mr. Chan Chun Hong is appointed as
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

By reference to the corporate goals and objectives of the
Company, the primary roles and functions of the Nomination
Committee are as follows:

(@) to review and evaluate the structure, size and composition
(including diversity, skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations
to the Board on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships;

to assess the independence of INEDs;

to monitor the continuous professional development of the
Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company;

where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an
individual as an INED at the general meeting, the
Nomination Committee should set out in the circular to
shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying
the notice of the relevant general meeting:

the process used for identifying the individual why
the board believes the individual should be elected
and the reasons why it considers the individual to be
independent;
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— if the proposed independent non-executive Director
will be holding their seventh (or more) listed company
directorship, why the board believes the individual
would still be able to devote sufficient time to the
Board;

— the perspectives, skills and experience that the
individual can bring to the Board; and

— how the individual contributes to diversity of the
Board.

(9) the chairman or another member of the Nomination
Committee shall attend the Company’s annual general
meetings and be prepared to respond to questions raised
by shareholders on the Nomination Committee’s activities
and responsibilities.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and
process and the Board succession planning considerations in
relation to nomination and appointment of Directors and aims
to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and
the continuity of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board
level. The Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election
of Directors at general meetings. The selection criteria and
nomination procedures set out in the Nomination Policy as
follows:—

1. Selection Criteria

— in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate,
the Nomination Committee will consider the factors
(as reference), including reputation, integrity,
accomplishment and relevant experience in relation
to the principal businesses of the Company from
time to time, commitment in respect of available
time and relevant interest, diversity in all its aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age (18 years
old or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. These factors are for reference
only, and not meant to be exhaustive and decisive.
The Nomination Committee has the discretion to
nominate any person, as it considers appropriate;
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retiring Directors are eligible for nomination by the
Board to stand for re-election at a general meeting.
For those who have served as INEDs for a period
of nine consecutive years standing for re-election,
the Nomination Committee will consider the
independence of such Director for nomination by the
Board to stand for election at a general meeting and
state the reason in the circular to the shareholders of
the Company for the re-election;

candidate(s) will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information in a prescribed form, together
with their written consent to be appointed as
Director(s) and to the public disclosure of their
personal data on any documents or the relevant
websites for the purpose of or in relation to their
standing for election as Director(s); and

the Nomination Committee may request candidate(s)
to provide additional information and documents, if
considered necessary.

Nomination Procedures

the secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call
a meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidate(s) from Board members if
any, for consideration by the Nomination Committee
prior to its meeting. The Nomination Committee may
also put forward candidate(s) who are not nominated
by Board members;

for filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board’s consideration and approval. For proposing
candidate(s) to stand for election at a general
meeting, the Nomination Committee shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation;

until the issue of the circular to be sent to the
shareholders of the Company, the nominated
persons shall not assume that they have been
proposed by the Board to stand for election at the
general meeting;
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— in order to provide information of the candidate(s)
nominated by the Board to stand for election at a
general meeting, and to invite nominations from the
shareholders of the Company, a circular will be sent
to the shareholders of the Company. The circular will
set out the lodgment period for the shareholders of
the Company to make the nominations. The names,
brief biographies (including qualifications and relevant
experience), independence, proposed remuneration
and any other information, as required pursuant to
the applicable laws, rules and regulations, of the
proposed candidate(s) will be included in the circular
to the shareholders of the Company;

— the shareholder of the Company can serve a notice
to the company secretary of the Company within
the lodgement period of its intention to propose
a resolution to elect a certain person as Director,
without the Board’s recommendation or the
Nomination Committee’s nomination, other than
those candidate(s) set out in the circular to be sent
to the shareholders of the Company. The particulars
of the candidate(s) so proposed will be sent to all
shareholders of the Company for information by a
supplementary circular;

— a candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidature
at any time before the general meeting by serving
a notice in writing to the company secretary of the
Company;

— the Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidate(s) to
stand for election at any general meeting; and

— as there may be more candidate(s) than the
vacancies available, and the “gross-vote” method
will be used to determine who shall be elected
as Director, the resolutions proposed for the
candidate(s) by the shareholders of the Company
shall therefore take the same form as the resolutions
proposed for the candidate(s) recommended by the
Board.

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and may access to independent
professional advice according to the Company’s policy, if
considered necessary.
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During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held
one meeting to discuss and review the following matters:

(a)

(0)

the Nomination Policy;

existing structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Group and to
make recommendations on any proposal changes, if any,
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

the Board Diversity Policy; and

recommend the retirement by rotation and the re-
appointment of Mr. Tang Ho Hong and Sr Dr. Leung
Tony Ka Tung as an executive Director and an INED,
respectively, at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

i S AR

(a)

(0)

REBEFER REZECRIT—XNEE 7
pa NAIEE
REWE
BEEORTEE - RERKEAK (R
FERE NEBERER)REEREAEEE
BEE TR ARDBIDEERRZ(EM
EREF(na)NESeRHUEERS
BEECLZLLEE &

EEBRELERZRBELASMRAK
NEIEEBRRAEFAS FHEETLD
PIEEETHITESERBYIIENITES -

RER

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT VARIOUS EERZEHEIHEREBR
MEETINGS
Details of the attendance of individual Directors at Board #HZ_-_Z—hFE=A=+—HILtFE " @RE
meetings, committee meetings and shareholders’ meetings held ZEREEZ g%  ZEC€xZkREREZH
during the year ended 31 March 2019 are as follows: BEHEEBEHRTE
Annual Special
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General General
Name of Directors Board  Committee = Committee = Committee Meeting Meeting
EEpA Exg EHRZEEE FMZEE REZEE RRBEEXE REBHAS
Wong Yiu Hung Gary 4/4 N/A 1/1 N/A 11 0/1
HIZlE i TER
Tang Ho Hong 4/4 N/A N/A 1/1 1/1 0/1
R i TER
Ching Tak Won Teresa N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
BER i f i TER TER i i
Chan Chun Hong 4/4 N/A 11 1/1 1/1 1/1
BRI 2 i
Li Wing Sum Steven 4/4 2/2 11 1/1 1/1 1/1
KR
Sung Tze Wah 4/4 2/2 11 1/1 1/1 1/1
RIFE
Leung Tony Ka Tung 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 11 0/1
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditors, Ernst & Young, for the year ended 31 March 2019 are
set out as follows:

A

TERELAHRSE (F)

ShEE R BLEN 2 B &
BE-T-AF=A=+-BLFE £2H

2R INEE A BB L ok & AT S A 2 B
THEHIWT

Fees paid/
payable to
Services rendered for the Group 7 £ B 12 it 2 AR 7% Ernst & Young
e BN
ZXKE5HED
EXzER
HK$’000
TR T
Audit services % 8 AR 15

— annual financial statements — FEPHHRE 2,700

Non-audit services: EZE R
— agreed-upon procedures —BEEF 250
— taxation and professional services — MBRBEERS 278
— other professional services — HEMEBEERE 40
Total: mEr 3,268

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT BEREZ

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation
and publication of the timely financial statements which gives
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and
ensure that they are prepared in accordance with the statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. In preparing
the accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019, the Directors
have adopted suitable accounting policies which are pertinent to
the Group’s operations and relevant to the financial statements
and have presented an understandable assessment of the
Group’s position and prospects.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
the accounts is prepared on a going concern basis and they are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to the events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The Directors continue
to explore any opportunities with potential investors to enhance
its financial position and business development of the Group by
way of refinancing, extension of borrowings and/or fund raising.

A statement by the independent auditors about their reporting
responsibilities is set out on pages 114 to 120 of this annual
report.

EXAARFAERBEYTEZEERAFIR
MRS SR B B ISR 2 B M IS Rk 0 AZARER
MBRERDBRBEZEERLLER G ELR
HoRHEBE_T-NF-A=1t—HLFE
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MEHRRBBIEREFBER L2JHAE
B2R AT RELZNERE TG -

EERA IHRSFLEL VS EEREKM
AR 2ERERE  RENRBELEEER
%'HﬁSMTﬂ¥EEHEKT%%$#Y
ARRAABESARBZFHERLERLNHRAEARE
1 BEREYVETMNRBEREELTZD
BOUEBAERE TEREER/XEESH
X RERNEEZHBARAREHEREAMR
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy adopted by the Company in November 2018
is intended to be prudent and sustainable, and will be evaluated
from time to time and there is no assurance that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount for any particular period.
Subject to compliance with applicable rules and regulations,
the Board may, at its discretion, determine the declaration
of payment of dividend(s) to its shareholders in any amount,
frequency in any financial year depending on, among other
things, the Company’s operation and financial performance,
liquidity condition, capital requirements, future funding needs,
contractual restrictions, availability of reserves and prevailing
economic climate.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has undertaken the overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives
and ensuring that the Group established and maintained
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems during the year under review, whilst the Audit
Committee was overseeing and monitoring the effectiveness of
these systems. The management of the Group was responsible
for implementing and maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control system that safeguard the
Group’s assets and stakeholders’ interest in aspects including
operation, financial and compliance.

The Group has established risk management procedures to
address and handle the all significant risks associate with the
business of the Group. The Board would perform annual review
on any significant change of the business environment and
establish procedures to response the risks result from significant
change of business environment.

The management would identify the risks associate with
the business of the Group by considering both internal and
external factors and events which include political, economic,
technology, environmental, social and staff. Each of risks has
been assessed and prioritised based on their relevant impact
and occurrence opportunity.

R EBE
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The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks.
The risk management and internal control system are designed
to mitigate rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the year under review, the Company appointed external
advisers to undertake the internal audit function and perform
the ongoing monitoring of the systems of internal control of the
Group and has reported their findings and recommendations
to the Audit Committee and followed up the status of
implementation of the recommendations to ensure all significant
control activities are properly in place within the Group. The
Group has adopted a risk-based approach in developing the
annual internal audit plan to cover business activities with
material risks across the Group. The rotation basis would be
applied to operations with similar risk associated so as to
enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal audit. All
findings and recommendations on internal control deficiencies
for the year have been communicated to the management, who
are required to establish remedial plans to correct those internal
control deficiencies within a reasonable time period. Post-audit
review is performed to monitor those agreed recommendations
having been implemented as intended and on a timely basis.
Based on the audit and post-audit review, the advisers reported
that there was no significant deficiency on the internal control
system of the Group for the year had been noted.

Review on Risk Management and Internal Control
System

The Company has conducted annual review on the effectiveness
and efficiency of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the
management confirmed that there is no significant deficiency
and weakness on the internal control system has been identified
by the external advisory firm for the year ended 31 March 2019.
The Board has reviewed with the Audit Committee and satisfied
and confirmed that the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems in respect of financial, operational, compliance,
risk management and adequacy of resources were effective and
adequate.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company aims at promoting and maintaining effective
communications with shareholders and investors (both
individuals and institutions) to ensure that the Group’s
information is disseminated to the stakeholders and investors
in a timely manner and enable them to have a clear assessment
of the enterprise performance. A shareholders communication
policy has been adopted by the Company and the same is
available on the website of the Company. Other major means of
communications includes:

Disclosures in Corporate Website

Extensive information on the Group’s activities and financial
position will be disclosed in the annual reports, interim reports,
announcements, circulars and other corporate communications
which will be sent to shareholders and/or published on the
website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company (www.woproperties.com). Other inside information is
released by way of formal public announcements as required by
the Listing Rules and Inside Information Provisions under Part
XIVA of the SFO.

General Meeting with Shareholders

The Company also acknowledges that annual general meetings
and various general meetings are valuable forums for the Board
to communicate directly with the shareholders of the Company
and members of the Board and the members of various
committees are encouraged to attend and answer questions at
such general meetings.

In order to let shareholders of the Company to make an
informed decision at the general meetings, sufficient notices
with not less than ten (10) clear business days for every general
meeting and twenty (20) clear business days for every annual
general meeting were given to the shareholders of the Company
pursuant to code provision E.1.3 of the CG Code, the Bye-
laws and any other applicable laws. The chairman of general
meetings will explain the detailed procedures for conducting
a poll vote during the proceedings of meetings and answer all
questions raised by shareholders. All resolutions put to vote
at general meetings are taken by poll and the poll results are
posted on the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange
immediately following the holding of the general meetings.
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Investor Relations

The Group also has a proactive investor relations programme
that keeps investors and shareholders of the Company
abreast the Group’s latest development and discloses relevant
information to the public in a timely manner. During the year, we
held various meetings with investors and participated in investor
and press conferences.

Shareholders’ Rights of Convening a Special General
Meeting

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, shareholders holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company, to require a special general meeting
(the “SGM”) to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and the SGM shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists themselves
may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3)
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the said date.

The requisition (i) must state the purpose of the SGM; and
(i) must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
principal place of business of the Company at Suite 3201,
32/F., Skyline Tower, 39 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong (the “Principal Place of Business”) for
the attention of the company secretary of the Company. The
requisition will then be verified with the Company’s Branch
Share Registrar and Transfer Office and upon its confirmation
that the requisition is proper and in order, the company
secretary of the Company will forward the requisition to the
Board and inform the Board to convene a SGM by serving
sufficient notice to all shareholders of the Company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting or a
SGM, the shareholders of the Company shall submit a written
notice of those proposals with the detail contact information to
the company secretary of the Company at the Principal Place
of Business. The request will be verified with the Company’s
Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office and upon its
confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary of the Company will ask the Board to include
the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting. Moreover,
the notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the proposals submitted by the shareholders
concerned varies as follows pursuant to Bye-law 59(1) of the
Bye-laws:

(@) for an annual general meeting and any SGM at which the
passing of a special resolution is to be considered, it shall
be called by not less than twenty-one clear days’ notice
(the notice period must include twenty clear business days
under the Listing Rules’ requirement); and

for all other general meetings (including a SGM), they may
be called by not less than fourteen clear days’ notice (the
notice period must include ten clear business days under
the Listing Rules’ requirement).

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for proposing candidate(s) for election as director(s)
at a general meeting are set out in the “Corporate Governance”
under section headed under “About Wang On Properties” on the
website of the Group at www.woproperties.com.
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Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders and stakeholders of the Company may send
their enquiries and concerns, in written form, to the Board
or the company secretary of the Company by email to
pr@woproperties.com or by addressing their enquiries to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company in the following
manners:

In respect of the corporate affairs:

Company Secretary/Senior Manager of Corporate Affairs &
Investor Relations

Wang On Properties Limited

Suite 3201, 32/F., Skyline Tower

39 Wang Kwong Road

Kowloon Bay

Kowloon

Hong Kong

In respect of the other shareholding/entitlement affairs:
Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy to facilitate
the achieving of high possible standards of openness, probity
and accountability. Procedures are formulated to enable
individual employees to disclose internally and at a high
level, information which the individual believes that it shows
malpractice or impropriety within the Group. During the year
under review, no incident of fraud or misconduct was reported
from employees that have material effect on the Group’s
financial statements and overall operations.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Chin Han, is an employee of the Company who was
appointed as a full-time employee company secretary of the
Group, reports directly to the Board and is responsible for, inter
alia, providing updated and timely information to all Directors
from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, Ms. Wong has complied
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group acknowledges our corporate social responsibility to
share some burden in building the society where our business
has been established and thrived. During the year, the Group
has participated different charity activities, e.g. Cookies Run
2018, Donation of charity mooncakes with WYT, Dress Causal
Day, etc. The Group will keep the passion on the contribution of
resources and caring to the society.

The Group is conscious of its role as a socially responsible
group of companies. It has made donations for community
wellbeing from time to time, supports the communities and
encourages its employees to participate in any charitable events
and caring services.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Group has taken measures to promote environmental-
friendliness of the workplace by encouraging paper-recycling
culture and energy-saving culture within the Group. The Group
also participated in the BEAM Plus assessment scheme, a
comprehensive environmental assessment scheme for buildings
recognised by the Hong Kong Green Building Council, for the
development of some of our properties, including The Met.
Bliss, The Met. Blossom, and The Met. Acappella, by
engaging a third-party consultancy company for the provision
of services in respect of BEAM Plus Certification and other
environmental assessments.

For all the development projects, the design and specifications
of the Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing (MEP) systems
conform to latest Building Energy Codes. The Group also
outsourced all of the construction-related work for our property
development projects to independent construction companies.
Qur contractors in relation to our property development
business are subject to various environmental laws and
regulations, including those relating to waste disposal, water
pollution control, air pollution control, drainage control and
noise control. They are also required to submit for approval
and to subsequently implement a waste management plan for
all construction sites of the development projects to ensure the
compliance.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of
this annual report, there was no change in the constitutional
document. The Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws
of the Company are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company at www.hkexnews.hk and
www.woproperties.com, respectively.

CONCLUSION

Going forward, the Group will continue to review its corporate
governance practices regularly to maintain high level of
transparency, to enhance the Company’s competitiveness and
operating efficiency and to ensure its sustainable development
and to generate greater returns for its stakeholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
comprise property development and property investment in
Hong Kong, details of which are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019
and the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 121 to 246.

The Group’s revenue and profit attributable to owners of
the parent for the year ended 31 March 2019 amounted
to approximately HK$2,831.8 million (2018: approximately
HK$1,351.8 million) and approximately HK$500.3 million (2018:
approximately HK$1,808.5 million), respectively.

Based on the encouraging results for the year ended 31 March
2019, the Board has recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK0.70 cent (2018: HK0.65 cent) per ordinary share
and a special dividend of HK0.945 cent (2018: HK1.0 cent)
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2019 to its
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company as of Wednesday, 11 September 2019. Both
of the final dividend and the special dividend will be paid on or
around Thursday, 19 September 2019, subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on Friday, 30 August 2019.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set
out on page 248 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND ANALYSIS OF KEY
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The business review and the key financial performance
indicators to the businesses of the Group, including, among
other things, the information set out below, are disclosed in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 19 to 30 of
this annual report:—

(@) a fair review of the Group’s business;
(b)  principal risk factors;
(¢) an analysis using key financial performance indicators;

(d) key relationships with its employees, suppliers, contractors
and customers; and

(e) future development in the Group’s business.

The corporate social responsibility, environmental policies and
performance of the Group are disclosed in the ESG Report set
out on pages 37 to 72 of this annual report.

As far as the Board is concerned, the Group has complied in
material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefore,
are set out in notes 28 and 29 to the financial statements of this
annual report, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which
the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 March 2019.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, every Director and other officers
shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, losses or liabilities which they may incur or sustain by
or by reason of any act done about the execution of the duties
of their respective office or otherwise in relation thereto. The
Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and other officers of
the Group for the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to equity holders of the parent, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), amounted to approximately HK$3,168.9
million (2018: approximately HK$2,530.9 million), of which
approximately HK$106.4 million and HK$143.6 million have
been proposed as a final dividend and a special dividend,
respectively, for the year ended 31 March 2019.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2019, sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 3.1% (2018:
approximately 5.0%) of the total revenue and the sales to the
single largest customer accounted to approximately 1.3% (2018:
approximately 1.5%). Acquisition cost of land/properties and
cost of services certified by authorised person of the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 36.5%
(2018: approximately 91.4%) of the total acquisition cost of
land/properties and cost of services certified by authorised
person of and the single supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 26.3% (2018: approximately 53.8%) of the total
purchases for the year.
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None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s total number of issued
shares) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yiu Hung Gary, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Tang Ho Hong

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chan Chun Hong, Chairman
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wing Sum Steven
Mr. Sung Tze Wah
Sr Dr. Leung Tony Ka Tung

Subsequent to the financial year ended 31 March 2019, Ms.
Ching Tak Won Teresa was appointed as an executive Director.
In accordance with Bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws, Ms. Ching
Tak Won Teresa will retire and, being eligible, will offer herself
for re-election as an executive Director at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with Bye-law 84(1) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Tang
Ho Hong and Sr Dr. Leung Tony Ka Tung will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as an executive
Director and an INED, respectively, at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Li Wing Sum Steven, Mr. Sung Tze Wah
and Sr Dr. Leung Tony Ka Tung, being all INEDs, pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 31 to 36 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in notes 8 and 39 to the financial statements,
no Directors nor a connected entity of a Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company, the holding company of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors nor their respective associates had an
interest in a business, apart from the businesses of the Group,
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant to Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules during the year.

EEREREEEEREGBN

EERAEESREEBZEEFBHNAKSE
¥HWEI1E368H ©

EE2RBEL

BRARAEERRBEFAGLERZESM
EEARN A HEERMBRFETZARF AR
R—FARNEECEPIRE ZBERIN) MR
LZ2RBEL -

EERXE  RBEHEN T z2EE

GRS ImR I MO BEEIN - TR -
BEEFNEFTCHEERERAHEREAE
BXBBEREARRA  ARAHEAERKE
RAIEFRREMBERAR ZERRBBITHNT Z2E
AR5 ZHRRANPHERBEEANEL -

EERNBFEREB2ER

iR ETRBIESA0N  RERN  RAREE
B BEEERESEAIHEANSEL
TR EERMERAEEEGRT 2 2GR
B -



REMERRAF

—E-hEER

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 March 2019, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company and/or any of their
respective associates had any interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code under the
Listing Rules:

Long positions in the underlying shares of share options
of Easy One, an associate corporation of the Company:
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares or underlying shares in,
or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them, or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) with the approval of the shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting held on 9 August
2016 for the primary purpose of providing incentives or rewards
for the eligible persons for their contribution or potential
contribution to the development and the growth of the Group.
The Share Option Scheme became effective on 9 August 2016
and, unless otherwise terminated earlier by the shareholders in a
general meeting, will remain in full force for a period of 10 years
from that date.

Under the Share Option Scheme, share options may be granted
to any Director or proposed Director (whether executive
or non-executive, including INEDs), employee or proposed
employee (whether full-time or part-time), secondee, any holder
of securities issued by any member of the Group or holding
company or any substantial shareholder or any company
controlled by a substantial shareholder, any person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological support
or any advisory, consultancy, professional or other services
to any member of the Group or any substantial shareholder
or company controlled by a substantial shareholder, or any
company controlled by one or more persons belonging to any of
the above classes of participants.

The Board may grant share options to eligible participants to
subscribe for shares of the Company for a consideration of
HK$1.00 for each lot of share options granted which must be
accepted within 30 days from the offer date. Share options
do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings of the Company.
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The maximum number of share options that may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is the number, upon their
exercise, not in aggregate exceeding 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time, excluding any shares
issued on the exercise of share options. The total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the number of shares in
issue, as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant (except for a substantial shareholder
or an INED or any of their respective associates) under the
Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the number of shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of such limit
must be separately approved by shareholders with such eligible
participant and his/her associates abstaining from voting. Share
options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company (or any of their respective
associates) must be approved by the INEDs (excluding any
INED who is the grantee of the options). Where any grant of
share options to a substantial shareholder or an INED (or any
of their respective associates) will result in the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of Share Options
already granted and to be granted to such person under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) in any 12-month period up to and including the
date of grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares
in issue, and having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares at each date of grant, in excess
of HK$5 million, such further grant of share options is required
to be approved by shareholders in a general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Listing Rules. Any change in
the terms of a share option granted to a substantial shareholder
or an INED (or any of their respective associates) is also required
to be approved by shareholders of the Company.

The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i) the official
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange on the offer date
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing prices of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.
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As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
1,520,000,000 shares, representing 10.0% of the share capital
of the Company in issue at the date of this annual report.

During the year, no share options were granted, exercised,
lapsed, cancelled or outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note
29 to the financial statements of this annual report.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO
showed that the following shareholders, had notified the
Company and the Stock Exchange of relevant interests and
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company:
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WOG (1) Interest of controlled corporation 11,400,000,000 75.0
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Mr. Tang Ching Ho 2) Other interest 11,400,000,000 75.0
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Notes:

M

WOG held the entire issued share capital of Wang On Enterprises
(BVI) Limited (“WOE”) which in turn held the entire issued share
capital of Earnest Spot Limited (“Earnest Spot”). Earnest Spot
directly held 11,400,000,000 shares of the Company. Under the
SFO, each of WOE and WOG was deemed to be interested in all
the aforesaid shares held by Earnest Spot for the sole purpose of
Part XV of the SFO.

Under the SFO, Mr. Tang Ching Ho was deemed to be interested
in approximately 55.9% of the total issued share capital of WOG
through (i) his personal interest; (ii) his spouse’s interest in WOG;
(iii) his corporate interest via Caister Limited, a corporation
controlled by him; and (iv) his interest being an appointer of a
discretionary trust, namely Tang’s Family Trust. Ms. Yau Yuk Yin,
spouse of Mr. Tang Ching Ho, was also deemed to be interested
in approximately 55.9% of the total issued share capital of WOG
through (i) her personal interest; (i) Mr. Tang Ching Ho’s interest
in WOG; and (i) being a beneficiary of the Tang’s Family Trust.
Therefore, each of Mr. Tang Ching Ho and Ms. Yau Yuk Yin were
deemed to be interested in all 11,400,000,000 shares of the
Company held by WOG for the sole purpose of Part XV of the
SFO.

The relevant percentages have been calculated by reference only
to the aggregate number of shares of the Company in issue of
15,200,000,000 shares as at 31 March 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, there were
no persons, other than Directors or chief executive of the
Company who had an interest or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

(A) Connected Transaction A BEXRS

Disposal of 30% Interests in a subsidiary

On 19 April 2018, Silver Surplus Limited (“Silver
Surplus”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an agreement for the sale and
purchase (the “SP Agreement”) with Kam Wah Ever
Rich Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, pursuant to which Silver
Surplus agreed to sell 30% of the entire issued share
capital of Golden Noble Investments Limited (“Golden
Noble”) and assign the benefit of the shareholder’s loan
owed by Golden Noble (the “Disposal”). The consideration
for the Disposal was HK$103.8 million. Golden Noble and
its subsidiaries (collectively as the “Golden Noble Group”)
is holding a property development project of certain
properties on Pok Fu Lam Road, Hong Kong.

The Board considered that the Disposal would result in
the sharing of the development costs of the property
development project undertaken by Golden Noble
Group and also enhance the Company’s cashflow
position for other potential projects. The net proceeds
of approximately HK$103.6 million (after deducting the
related expenses in relation to the Disposal) would be used
for the Group’s general working capital.

Pursuant to the SP Agreement, the completion of the
Disposal took place immediately upon the execution of the
SP Agreement, upon which the Golden Noble Group has
become an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.
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WOG was the indirect controlling shareholder of the
Company holding 75% of all the issued shares in the
Company. Kam Wah Ever Rich Limited was an associate
of Mr. Yeung Fun Bun (“Mr. Yeung”) who was a director
of each of New Rich Investment Limited (“New Rich”)
and Grandwall Investment Limited (“Grandwall”),
which are indirect non wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, and Mr. Yeung is also beneficially interested
in 40% of the entire issued share capital of each New
Rich and Grandwall, each of which is a single purpose
and project specific company formed to participate in
property development project in Hong Kong, Kam Wah
Ever Rich Limited is qualified connected person under
Rule 14A.06(33) of the Listing Rules. Further, the Disposal
constitutes a connected transaction for the Company and
is subject to reporting and announcement requirements
and is exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Further details of the Disposal are set out in the
announcement jointly issued by the Company and WOG
dated 19 April 2018.

Continuing Connected Transaction
WOP Office Sub-Licensing Agreement

Immediately upon Wai Yuen Tong becoming a subsidiary of
WOG on 29 September 2016, entering into following office
sub-licensing agreement became continuing connected
transaction for the Company during the year under
review:—

On 19 September 2016, Daywin Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of WYT), as the licensor, entered
into the office sub-licensing agreement (the “WOP Office
Sub-Licensing Agreement”) with Wang On Properties
Services Limited, as the licensee (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) in respect of the sub-
licensing of office premises at units 01 and 07 to 12, 32/F.,
Skyline Tower, 39 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong to the Group for a term commencing
from 18 September 2016 and expiring 17 July 2019 (both
dates inclusive) at a monthly license fee of HK$414,672,
exclusive other charges, including management fee and
air-conditioning charges, rates, Government rent and
others (subject to increment of not exceeding 5% each
year).

(B)

ESEHRE(E)

REBARBBEEREBER - HELAQ
AEE D EITIRMDT75% - Kam Wah Ever
Rich Limited B EWEE((HBEE]) 2
HBA  BAEREBKREBRAR([8
BHESMEEERAR(EM B
MES  ZWEARHYALRRRMEEER
BMBNNBAR  BEENDIESHE
EREBEEMEILDEHITRANLI0%N @ &%
WEARSEARE—BEMBEBEEIE
ERAR - DASEBBYWHEEREIEER
A 37  Kam Wah Ever Rich Limited% t
MBI E14A.06@83) 6 TH & B R EE A
T i HEEEBERARFTMBEER
5 BIELEMRAEI14AE - HETHRF
RAMBTE - R BB TE IR R I E
HE BHEHESENEZHFBHNEA
ARELZBATIZEABEAE T — \FN
A+ NLBHQH -

KERERS

ZERLNEDHIGZE

N

EBUTER T —~"FLAZT+NH
KERRZZHMBARE  THRHAZESHE
BRI LNEEFEAKNBERG Z
SERER S ¢

RZZE—R"FLATIE  ARBRAF
(NrEzHEZ2EBANMERR) (1E
AEENBERWERKER QT (1E
BEBAN)(BARRZEEZEREN
MBARRAASESBARES NLE
NEERNXBEIGEERESNRENEK
O7TENREZHRAEYWEMIILBAED
s ((ZRHERLAE>HEBE]) - F
HE—_T—A"FAA+NBEE-_ZT—A
FrA+tBEEmR(BEEEMA) &4
e Ba4146728 T TEEEEBRE
FAER 26 BFLBEOEMmEZ (A
BEEEF TILEETEBIB5%) °



Wang On Properties Limited Annual Report 2019

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (E)

During the year under review, the total amount of license
fee paid by the Company to WYT under the WOP Office
Sub-Licensing Agreement was approximately HK$6.7
million which was within the specific cap of HK$6.8 million.

The INEDs have reviewed the continuing connected
transaction set out above and have confirmed that this
continuing connected transaction was entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i)  in accordance with the terms of the respective
agreements governing them on terms that were
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or
from independent third parties; and

(iv) has not exceeded the specified caps.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, was engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740
Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst &
Young have issued an unqualified letter containing their
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transaction disclosed above by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.
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Save as disclosed above, further details of other related party
transactions undertaken by the Group in the ordinary course of
business during the year, which fell under Rule 14A.73 of the
Listing Rules, are set out in note 39 to the financial statements.

The Company has complied with the requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and save
as disclosed above, there were no other transactions which
need to be disclosed as continuing connected transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

As disclosed in the Prospectus, WOG and the Company entered
into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed”) under which
WOG had undertaken, among other things, to make an annual
confirmation as to compliance with the terms of the Deed. The
Company has received a confirmation from WOG that it has
complied with the terms of the Deed for the year ended 31
March 2019 and INEDs have reviewed the compliance by WOG
with the Deed for that period.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
totaling approximately HK$13.2 million (2018: approximately
HK$7.2 million).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy for its employees is set up and
approved by the Remuneration Committee and the Board on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee and the Board, as authorised by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company,
having regarded to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
Share Option Scheme are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Details of the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 73 to 97 of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient prescribed amount of public float as
required under the Listing Rules up to the date of this annual
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules on 17 March 2016. During the year, the Audit
Committee met twice with the management and the external
auditors to review and consider, among other things, the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, the
financial report matters (including the agreed-upon procedures
on the audited consolidated financial statement for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and the review of consolidated interim
results for the period of six-month ended 30 September
2018), the statutory compliance, internal controls, continuing
connected transaction(s) and the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function as well as their
training programmes and budget.

The Audit Committee, comprising three INEDs, namely Mr. Li
Wing Sum Steven, Mr. Sung Tze Wah and Sr Dr. Leung Tony
Ka Tung, has reviewed the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2019 with the management and the
external auditors. Mr. Li Wing Sum Steven was elected as the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

EEER

ARRBOEFEKRKIZIEEERTR - BH
ARAMRAEEERERZAFBERAFR
FIBEITAZEFEEAME o

AREZARERE

BBARRARAAGZEMRRESZHRA -
ERNFHAH ZK’“TE}EPZE?%J:W%EHUF)’T
MELRRFRE -

BEREES

&9|\E?TZ§KEW$TTW/7\’§E§ A 2 B
(HFBHE)UTEE  AEERMNZE aﬂf?\E\'J
RER  UBEREE(BERBE_T—A
F-AZT - HUEFEZEBRBEAVBHRE
ETHERF RBHBEE_FT - N\F 1A
_-I—EIJt/\{IHHHF'ﬁZZ*AE!J,Hﬁ%%E) PR
B NEEE  KEWERS  RARAE
AR BERBE ZER E\IEF&M@%
BRR  ARRFZHIFEREE

BERZEEH-RBIUFATESHEK © D5l
BEXRELE REEALERRFIRBLIAE
il REEEEMIMNEZBMERMEBE_F
—NFZA=Z+T-—HALFEZHEEMBERSE
FARELCEERERZEGZIRE -



RERBWERBRAT —ZT-NFFR

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD WMEHEREER

Details of significant events of the Group after the reporting ZAEBERBE %R 7 EAETEFBEHN MR
period are set out in note 43 to the financial statements. M 5E43 -

AUDITORS % B Em

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended #HE_ZT—NF=ZA=+—HBILFEZHEH
31 March 2019 have been audited by Ernst & Young, who will BBERELKSAMEBAEZ - LK G
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment HZHBABRARARZEEBRERFEAE HER
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. ERf WRHEEKRLEEETERE -SH@ER
A resolution for re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditors LK @M EHEHAETRD G ZEMz RAESR
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual #RARBIZEEREFAFAE LIER -
general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board RREES
Chan Chun Hong Eay
Chairman B iR BR

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019 'S —ET-NFX~AZ+HAA
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To the shareholders of Wang On Properties Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wang
On Properties Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 121 to 246, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BERMWERERAARR
(RERZAME L HRL A])

=R

R B ERFEI21E246E 2 FLHESR
RAR([ERARDRENBAG (U THBIE
EBDZEAVHHRER  LEEMBRRVIE
RZE-—NF=ZA=Z+—HAZEAWBRKRLE
HEZZALFEZ2RABEREME2ERE
R BARZEHRANGABEEGRER UK
BRAEMBHRENGTE BEIEZSHBEEBE -

BHRR  REERAMBRREREFTEG
REEMIKBEVBBREEIDEEMS S
T BEER-_T-NF=ZA=+—H
ZHEEMBRARARBEZRLEFEZHEME
FARGERERE  YEBREB(RAIK
FIYZREREZ BERE -



WwEARAA

i

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

BB RS ()

RRzE®

HMERBEEESITMASEMI(EER
ERDETER  RAEZFEATAEZE
EEEARREZ A0 FA 26 M HmER A
BEZEEIMOTHEE-—FEL - REFEES
SRR G R ZCEXRFEERTRDUAT
BRI HZMBLIX E£E8 Y2E
TR 2 EMERERE

T - HMEE - &
PAESZE BREREARREESHEM
BREHER -

HRESEE

MREFTFEERERMACEXRHE  RAY
FHEEMBRRIBAR/EREZEE ° %
SREERAEUGAVBRRBBETERILAR
HRKERZER TETREN  RPATHZ
SEREHEBZER - HMETAE—FA
EEGFTFRAFNEHZEEEUER/ER -

g= A

BMERBT T ARG B RBA AR
BHRERAFEZEEIFOBEZEE BFRE
ZEEHMABIET -HER  BRAZEFT
FERATREHFGMEAV B RRENER
R MRt 2 BRTEF - RPRITHRARE
FzER BREEHTAEEMATZIERF
REMZEEMBRRBEREFTELRHRTE

o o



Wang On Properties Limited Annual Report 2019

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B % RE & (4])

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

AR ETEE

BRESSEHE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRMzEt R ERRETER

Valuation of investment properties

REWELE

The Group holds various investment properties
in Hong Kong for rental-earning purposes. Such
investment properties are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period and the aggregate
carrying amount of these investment properties
was HK$809,500,000 as at 31 March 2019, which
represented approximately 18% of the net assets of
the Group.
EEEREEREZEREDERDRES - ZF
REVMERSRESHREAFTEFTE RZ-ZF
—NWE=ZA=+—H Z5EREVEFEREAR
809,500,000 7T * 1 EHEEEEFEL18% °

Significant estimation is required to determine the
fair values of the investment properties, which
reflect market conditions at the end of the reporting
period. The Group engaged an external valuer to
perform the valuation of these investment properties
as at 31 March 2019 and where applicable, in the
absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the external valuer considered
information from a variety of sources such as
current prices of properties of similar locations and
conditions.
EETREVERMBERRTRAZATFERELE
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The accounting policies and disclosures in relation to
the valuation of investment properties are included
in notes 2.4, 3 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.
ERAREMEMEZEABRRRBERARN G NB
HRM 2.4 3K%14 -

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
investment properties included the following:

BAFEREDEGEEZETEFEBRATER ¢

° obtaining and reviewing the valuation reports
prepared by the external valuer engaged by the
Group;

e HNIFREHN ESEMZENBHEEMGRZMEE
wE

° assessing the external valuer’s qualification,
experience and expertise and considering the
external valuer’s objectivity and independence; and

o FHEINEEERMCERE KBLEEXEND  ALEZE
HESMEBIM &

o involving our internal valuation specialists to assist
us to assess the valuation methodologies applied
and the key assumptions and estimates adopted in
the valuation.
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FEARFIERz EEBFZEMEE -



WwEARAA

i

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B % RE & (4])

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is CHUNG, Ho Ling.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

25 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REeEEREMEERER

Year ended 31 March 2019
BHE-_ZT—NF=-ZA=+—HLEFE

2019 2018
—ZE—-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B = F#& T FHET
REVENUE A (5} 2,831,757 1,351,843
Cost of sales 5 & B AR (1,683,036) (845,417)
Gross profit EF 1,148,721 506,426
Other income and gains, net N NS E k] 5 61,755 1,742,612
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (127,034) (75,980)
Administrative expenses THHX (119,197) (106,348)
Finance costs [N 7 (87,315) (62,943)
Fair value gains on investment BEWMEAFHERS FHE
properties, net 14 70,583 2,081
Share of losses of joint ventures EHEEENEEIE (35,576) (895)
Reversal of write-down of BOFIELEME Z MR
properties held for sale 16 88,856 —
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B Bt A1 33 R 6 1,000,793 2,004,953
Income tax expenses TS HE X 10 (170,550) (60,582)
PROFIT AND TOTAL rEERNR2ENRBERE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 830,243 1,944,371
Profit and total comprehensive income J&{f & F| K 2 HE U 25 42 58 -
attributable to:
Owners of the parent NAEER A 500,302 1,808,456
Non-controlling interests R E RS 329,941 135,915
830,243 1,944,371
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBREZEEAEN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BRERN
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT 12
Basic and diluted EARAR S LGRS HK11.90 cents

3.297% 1l

11.90% 1l



Wang On Properties Limited Annual Report 2019

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e M BAARR K

31 March 2019
—®-AF=A=1-A

Notes
B 5

NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BENREHE 13
Investment properties EYHE 14
Properties under development BRPYE 15
Investments in joint ventures KREEEDLE 17
Loan receivable B E R 18
Prepayments, other receivables FERNFIE - EMERFKIER

and other assets Hih&EE 19
Deferred tax assets ELEFIBEE 27
Total non-current assets BIEREEE
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Properties under development BERPYE 15
Properties held for sale FIELEWE 16
Loan receivable ERE R 18
Prepayments, other receivables and  FE{+ 518 - £ b i U 2008 &

other assets HEE 19
Cost of obtaining contracts EBEHZKAR 20
Tax recoverable EIRLQEIE R
Cash and cash equivalents HehkREeFERIEE 21
Assets of disposal subsidiaries SEAFELEZ

classified as held for sale HEHRBRAREE 22
Total current assets BRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade payables FE A BR3X 23
Other payables and accruals HtENRERESER 24
Deposits received and receipts in 2z e kB W RIE

advance
Contract liabilities aHaE 25
Interest-bearing bank and other loans &t 2 4R 1T} H il & &% 26
Tax payable FE TR IR
Liabilities directly associated with the DB AKIELEEE Y B

assets classified as held for sale HEAaE 22
Total current liabilities ‘REasE
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFHE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAE

LIABILITIES

2019
—E-hF
HK$’000
FET

96,910
809,500
1,355,318
1,385,441

402,078
23,041

4,072,288

3,328,595
687,167
600,000

387,311
115,779
292
1,878,905

6,998,049

6,998,049

118,043
195,848

4,547
1,955,928
1,260,228

253,862

3,788,456

3,788,456

3,209,593

7,281,881

95,476
759,000
152,997

1,413,350
600,000

7,320
18,592

3,046,735

2,599,460
719,080

1,463,650
260
1,553,803

6,336,253

764,714

7,100,967

159,187
32,814

2,276,270

537,402
84,037

3,089,710

311,322
3,401,032

3,699,935

6,746,670
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
BRI R (E)

31 March 2019
—E-hAF=ZA=1+—H

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B & FET FHET
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HMEERARBERS
LIABILITIES 7,281,881 6,746,670
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAEE
Other payables H fth FE < 3B 24 13,184 164,958
Interest-bearing bank and other loans &+ B R 1T & B & & 26 2,777,781 2,397,053
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIAE G 27 1,460 745
Total non-current liabilities MIERBREE 2,792,425 2,562,756
Net assets BEFE 4,489,456 4,183,914
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of BARBEEAEMLER
the parent
Issued capital B2EITRA 28 15,200 15,200
Reserves G 30 4,446,167 4,044,544
4,461,367 4,059,744
Non-controlling interests FERER 28,089 124,170
Total equity = B 4,489,456 4,183,914
Wong Yiu Hung Gary Tang Ho Hong
ERE BEE
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
meEEREEX

Year ended 31 March 2019

BE-T-NE=A=t+-BLFHE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREEARLE
Share Non-
Issued premium  Contributed Capital Merger Retained controlling Total
capital account surplus reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
ERTRE ROEEE EHERH®  EREG  AHEE  REEA & FBREE  ER4E
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TiEn FAL T AL T TAL ThL ThL ThL
(note 30()  (note 30(il)  (note 30(i))
GEE I GER R GERI)
At 1 April 2017 RZE-+F
KA-H 15,200 316,389 1,553,914 (431) - 517,787 2,403,359 (11,745) 2,391,614
Profit and total TEERHR
comprehensive income for 2 EHEE
the year - - - - - 1,808,456 1,808,456 135,915 1,944,371
Deemed contribution from  BERR &
Wang On Group Limted ~~ ERATF([E
(WOG") Zl)2iE 2 = = = = (71) - (M) - (M)
Special dividend declared  EERREMZ
and paid ERIRS 11 - - - - — (1520000 (152,000 - (152000
At 31 March 2018 and RZE-N\E
1 April 2018 ZA=t-Ak
“E-0\F
MA-H 15,200 316,889 1,553,914 431y My 2,174,243 4,069,744 124,170 4,183,914
Profit and total EEERTR
comprehensive income for 2 EWHLE
the year - - - - - 500,302 500,302 329,941 830,243
2018 final dividend declared 25 RE
and paid “E-0\F
FE%E 11 - - - - - (98,800) (98,800) S (98,800)
Dividend paid to non- BRFEER
controling shareholders REREE - - - - - - - (426,000) (426,000)
Disposal of partial interest ~ HE-BHBLA
in a subsidiary Bhes 3 - - - 121 - - 121 22) 9
At 31 March 2019 RZE-N0E
=f=t-H 15,200 316,889 1,563914* (310 (1) 2,575,745 4,461,367 28,089 4,489,456
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZEREREELREEEMBMRRIERNZE

HK$4,446,167,000 (2018: HK$4,044,544,000) in the consolidated B & 1 4,446,167,000 8 (=T — N\ &F :
statement of financial position. 4,044,544,000% 7T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

Year ended 31 March 2019
BHE-_ZT—NF=-ZA=+—HLEFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income from bank deposits

Interest income from a loan receivable
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries, net

Gain on remeasurement of the 50%
equity interest in WS Group
retained by the Group and
classified as a joint venture

Share of losses of joint ventures

Fair value gains on investment
properties, net

Depreciation

Write-off of property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of write-down of
properties held for sale

Accrued rent-free rental income

Loss on disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment

Decrease/(increase) in properties held for e EWER L~

sale

Decrease/(increase) in properties under

development
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets

Increase in cost of obtaining contracts

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

Decrease in contract liabilities

Increase/(decrease) in other payables
and accruals

Decrease in deposits received and
receipts in advance

Cash used in operations
Profits tax paid

2019 2018
—2-A%E  ZE-\E
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B & FTET FATT
RELEEBZEERE
B %4 B 8 I 1,000,793 2,004,953
EHRAELNTRIE:
B & B AN 7 87,315 62,943
RITFERZFBUMA 5 (18,092) (12,747)
—JHEWERZF B WA 5 (15,487) (4,448)
HEMBARZ WS FE 5 (9,140) (1,247,461)
BN ERAEERRER
DHEAE—BAEDEY
WSE B 2 50% 08 4 2
Wz 5 - (467,039)
BEEELEZER 35,576 895
BEWMEZAFAE
U %5 3 88 14 (70,583) (2,081)
e 6 4,074 891
ME BB RRE M
6 740
BRFIELEME MR
16 (88,856) =
2 eHEES WA 14 83 1,513
LEME BER
RBEEZER 6 20 =
925,703 338,159
() 120,768 (719,080)
BRERAYERD (M)
(1,803,252) 319,279
FENFHIE - HEMERZER
HMEERD
() 616,427 (547,815)
BSEH 2R ZAE N (48,523) =
FEfTBR FR3E a0, CRi4) (41,144) 113,824
aEHaBERL (325,954) =
H g RIE R ERTE A
m/ CRd) (3,060) 21,146
Bz e RBU FHE R D
(69,940) (427,884)
KEXBMARS (628,975) (902,371)
B FER (3,581) (2,076)

Net cash flows used in operating
activities

REXBAAREREFHE

(632,556)

(904,447)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
RERERER(E)

Year ended 31 March 2019
BHE-_ZT—NWF=-ZA=+—HLEFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E—N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
M 7 FET FH&T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REKEGFHZHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 U F B 31,185 12,747
Additions to investment properties mﬁ&ﬁ%% 14 - (12,849)
Purchases of items of property, plant and A BE &ZHHEB
equipment 13 (5,539) (799)
Proceed from disposal of items of HEWE  BENMREEE
property, plant and equipment 2 P18 E 11 =
Acquisitions of subsidiaries that are not a W JEE K —TH XK~
business B B8 1 &) Uk 32 - (943,543)
Proceeds from disposals of subsidiaries {1 & i B A & 2 Fi 1§ X 1E 33 781,559 2,519,994
Net cash advanced from/(to) joint Bl (HEEREZ
ventures Re FE (7,667) 523,395
Net cash flows from investing activites B EEBFBHE SR EF5E 799,549 2,098,945
Net cash flows from investing activities & EEFREHE SR EFE 799,549 2,098,945
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RKERMEEB HERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid [=ENEESS (117,012) (117,986)
Repayment of bank loans EBERTER (1,439,925) (2,370,306)
Repayment of other loans BiEH M E R (197,539) (27,848)
New bank loans HIBEBITER 2,060,528 1,662,858
New other loans ML E A E R 268,011 12,400
Dividend paid EATIRE (98,800) (152,000)
Dividend paid to non-controlling ERFEFERRRERE
shareholders (426,000) —
Proceeds from disposal of partial interest & — & W B 2 7] 38 9 #& =
in a subsidiary ZFF{ BRIE 34 103,800 =
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing &t é /E G/ (FTA)R:
activities mEF R 153,063 (992,882)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RekReFREBZ
EQUIVALENTS 3 hNF 58 320,056 201,616
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#RE & KR EERER
of year 1,558,849 1,357,233
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FREeRAEERAER
END OF YEAR 1,878,905 1,558,849
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH fﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ Bz
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RN
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in %l )\,iv? AEFBEMRREKZ
the consolidated statement of financial R4 KBS ZRIEE
position 21 1,878,905 1,558,803
Add: amounts included in the assets m:st AP EAEELEEZ
classified as held for sale éf EZ A 22 - 5,046

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in =~ S| AGAMERERZ
the consolidated statement of cash RekAEERIEAER
flows 1,878,905 1,558,849
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Wang On Properties Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda on 19 November 2015. The
registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at
Suite 3201, 32/F., Skyline Tower, 39 Wang Kwong Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 12 April 2016.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) were principally
engaged in the property development and property
investment businesses.

In the opinion of the directors, Earnest Spot Limited
(“Earnest Spot”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”), is the immediate holding company
of the Company, and WOG, a company incorporated
in Bermuda and listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, is the ultimate holding company of the
Company.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:

B 75 ¥R R B &

31 March 2019
—2-AF=A=+-8

ARREEEH

REWEBRARARR-ZZE—AF+—
AT+ hBAEBREdMAZLZBERA
B) ° AR 8]z 7 it 3 = & i A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda ° A AR 2 F B XM IR T
BN E R K BI9IR B KN E 53218
3201 % o

KRARBRHR=_ZTE—"FEA+=BE
BEBMAERIMARAB (B E
LT e

FR-ARAREMBRR (B AL
BMOEIZREVEEREDERERR -

E £ A  Earnest Spot Limited ([ Earnest
Spot N (—HIRERBHEBRHEHS ([RE#
BRESHEMKZZAR)AERAREZ
BEEERAR  mAR(—HRBHEET
ML REBRATERETZ AR AR
NAZEBRBERAR -

FENBLARAZEHR

ARAEEWBRARAZFEDT :

Place of Issued
incorporation ordinary Percentage of equity Principal
Name and business share capital attributable to the Company activities
o i B 3L
£ =S BRTEERA ARAEERZEOL TEEK
Direct Indirect
B &
City Global Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 — 100 Property
investment
RABRAA £ ERBRIET NERE
City Target Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 Property
investment
ABBR DA £ TRRIBT MERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S 7% & My = (3

31 March 2019
—®-AF=A=1-A

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION (Continued)

PEAIREBER £)

FENMBLARAZER(E)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of Issued
incorporation ordinary Percentage of equity Principal
Name and business share capital attributable to the Company activities
af M A 3 ]
#18 =E 3 BROEERA ANRELEEEDL TEXK
Direct Indirect
Hi 8 %
East Run Investments Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 S 100 Investment holding
RE#ARES TRKIER REZR
Ever World Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 — 100 Property
development
XEBRADA BE ERRIET MEER
Grandwall Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 - 60 Property
(“Grandwall”) development
BRMREERRA(ISM]) BB E@MR10078 T MELRE
Joint Hope Limited* Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 — 100 Property
development
)l YN e TRERIET MEERE
Longable Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 — 100 Property
investment
HERRAA BE TRRIET NERE
Miracle Cheer Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 100 — Investment holding
HE#ARES TRRKIER REER
More Action Investments Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 Investment holding
ERARRES LTBRIER REZR
New Rich Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 - 60 Property
(“New Rich”) development
EBREFRAA([8E] BB E@Mk10078 T MELRE
Newex Limited* Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 — 100 Property
investment
HERRAF R TRRIET NERE
Rich United Limited” Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 — 70 Property
(“Rich United”) (note 34) development
KEERAR([RE]) (HE34) FE ERBRIET MEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S 35 ¥R & MY = (4R

31 March 2019
—2-AF=A=+-8

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. REIREBER &)
INFORMATION (Continued)

FENMBLRZER (&)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of Issued
incorporation ordinary Percentage of equity Principal
Name and business share capital attributable to the Company activities
af i A 3 I
#8 X BROTEERA AAREAEZEDL TEXK
Direct Indirect
Hi &
Sky Earth Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 Provision of
financial services
BRAR DA £ TRRIET R ERY
Sparkle Hope Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 100  Investment holding
LE#ARES TRRKIER REZR
Stadium Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 Property
investment
ETERARAA 3 LTEmoET MERE
Swift Prosper Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 100  Investment holding
ARFRAA LEg#ARES TRRKIER REZR
Top Harmony Limited* Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 Property
development
ZEBERAR 3 TERIET MELR
Vincent Investments Limited* Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 Property
development
KEREERA A B LTEmoET MELR
Wang On Properties Services Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100  Provision of
Limited management
services
ERMERKERRD A B TER1IET REEERE
Wang On Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100  Provision of
management
services
ERRBAERRA B TER1IET REEERE
Wise Ocean International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 Property holding
(“Wise Ocean”)
BEEBRERARAIEF]) £ LTEmoET REWE

Certain bank loans of the Group are secured by share

charges in respect of the equity interests of these

subsidiaries (note 26).

REEE TR
R B0 R D R IR AR (KT RE26) ©

TERMZENE TR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S 7% & My = (3

31 March 2019

- =
— =

1.

21

—hF=A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Details of the subsidiaries disposed of during the year
are summarised in note 33 to the financial statements,
respectively.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for (i) investment properties which have been measured
at fair value; and (ii) disposal groups held for sale which
are stated at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell, as further explained in note 2.4 to
the financial statements. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 March 2019. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

2.1

PEAIREBER £)

FENMBLARZER(E)

FRACHEZHBRARFBE S IR YB
& M EE33 ML -

EERR/LERMINZARBMEBRR R
REEEEFREAFZELR/AEEHE
EFEITERD - EFZARFINHMmH
BRAAIZEMBSREBARITE

mREXE

ZEVBREREREREGAMAG(E
BEER®]) B2 BBWBREER
(IFEMBRELE D (BREMAERER
BWEER  FEGFERN([FEGTE
Al ERE) BEARGHRARER
RAMGPIZ WEBRERE - BT HHEK
MiaEo. 4 — FFill - ROERAFEEZ
BREWE  R)zEEREERAFECA
BEERE)RDEXRRINRZFHELE
ZHEARII ZEMBHRRDRBES
A ERmEL - R R BEREN » ZEWH
HBEABT(ETZ2Y > MABHEE
MEEEREOTME -

REEE

RAMBBRERBRARALENE QA
BE_ZT-NhF=ZA=+—-HLEFEZ
MERKR - WBRRR/RARAEEAHEE
ZHcER(BREBEER) - EXAKH
FHELABRUBDZ2ERBEUREBKFAE
ZAEDE - Bt BRHREBRZEN
(B FAKERAENTEREHRA
MEB BT RMNZEZSEDRE - B
EUIS#2 il #E -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 21 mEEEm)
Basis of consolidation (Continued) mEEE(E)
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it MAREFLEHRB AR Z5H# - B
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and IHRERNZMB AR ZEE(BEFE) R
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any BE - ()EREERER 2 REE &)
non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative translation EmANRES R REEZE  RERO)D
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair WREZAFE - (FIRETEAEKREZA
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of FEREESERFENALEEZ B
any investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or EA - KRN EMEEREAER AN
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components SEEGHLIEFI>BEEZERNRE R
previously recognised in other comprehensive income F(mEE)  IRIECEERAEEERE
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as HENBEEXBEBMSHKREERER -
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 B BRREEZE2E

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 2

BB R EERE25
(B3] A)
Amendments to HKFRS 4

BN B REENF4HE(ETAR)

HKFRS 9
BAEMBGREERBIR
HKFRS 15

BEBMBHREERE155

Amendments to HKFRS 15

BEEPBHRELERFE155 (BEFTXR)

Amendments to HKAS 40

BB G ERFE40% (BETA)

HK (IFRIC)-Int 22

AR (BB BRE2RE
ZE®)—RZEFE2R

Annual Improvements 2014-2016
Cycle

—E—WEFERER F—NF
PR FENEIEH

AEBCHRAFREZHMBHRERE KRB
TOFR] REEFT B EMBHRELR -

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

KR BERINAR BB E

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts

JEREBHNBHREEREIN g T AH
BB BHEERE4H RS

Financial Instruments

=T A

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

KEEFEHZHA

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

EEEBHBHREEREISHEKEERE KA

Transfers of Investment Property

KEYEEZE

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

SNER ZRFEST 1B

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28

EAVBHREEUNFEIRRE LS LR F28HR ZEFT



2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 4 and Annual
Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle, which are not relevant
to the preparation of the Group’s financial statements, the
nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are
described below:

()

Amendments to HKFRS 2 address three main
areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction; the classification of a share-based
payment transaction with net settlement features
for withholding a certain amount in order to meet
an employee’s tax obligation associated with the
share-based payment; and accounting where a
modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment transaction changes its classification
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments
clarify that the approach used to account for vesting
conditions when measuring equity-settled share-
based payments also applies to cash-settled share-
based payments. The amendments introduce an
exception so that a share-based payment transaction
with net share settlement features for withholding
a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction
when certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that if the terms and conditions
of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction
are modified, with the result that it becomes an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction,
the transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled
transaction from the date of the modification. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group as the Group
does not have any cash-settled share-based
payment transactions and has no share-based
payment transactions with net settlement features for
withholding tax.

RERBWERBRAT —ZT-NFFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2019
—®-AF=A=1-A

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, bringing together all three aspects of the
accounting for financial instruments: classification
and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting.

There was no transition adjustments recognised by
the Group against the applicable opening balances in
equity at 1 April 2018. The comparative information
was not restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 39.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group’s
loan and receivables continue to be measured at
amortised cost and there was no significant impact
on the measurement and classification of financial
instruments on the financial position, including the
effect of replacing HKAS 39’s incurred credit loss
calculations with HKFRS 9’s expected credit losses
(“ECLs”).

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and
related interpretations and it applies, with limited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide
a more structured approach for measuring and
recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total
revenue, information about performance obligations,
changes in contract asset and liability account
balances between periods and key judgements and
estimates. The disclosures are included in note 5 to
the financial statements. As a result of the application
of HKFRS 15, the Group has changed the accounting
policy with respect to revenue recognition in note 2.4
to the financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(©)

(Continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the
modified retrospective method of adoption. Under
this method, the standard can be applied either to
all contracts at the date of initial application or only
to contracts that are not completed at this date. The
Group has elected to apply the standard to contracts
that are not completed as at 1 April 2018.

The cumulative effect of the initial application of
HKFRS 15 was recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits as at 1 April
2018. Therefore, the comparative information was not
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS
11, HKAS 18 and related interpretations.

Set out below are the amounts by which each
financial statement line item was affected as at 1
April 2018 as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15:

RERBWERBRAT —ZT-NFFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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22 B BHERBEEZEH (&)

(&)

AEBECEBERKEREPHRM
ERABT BB REERE155 -
BB T A ZBENERBRI A
FERAHNAERANNEERRNE
BHRHATHRNGH ANEBEEES
ZEEAEAR-_ZT—N\FHA—
B ARTERNEL -

BEXERBEAYBHRELERFEI55R
ZRAZENER/ER=_F—N
FOA—BZFRBENGHRZ
HE-FHN HBREHALEET
WHERBEREBGERE115R
EEGHERE 18 L EERER
| e

ATEINSHMBHRERBER T
—NFHA—BRERBEE MG K
SEAUFIGREMEIFENESR ¢

Increase/
(decrease)
®im, ORd)
Notes HK$’000
B 5 F& T
Assets BE
Properties under development BRPYE (i 54,262
Cost of obtaining contracts BBEH KR (ii) 67,256
Prepayments, other receivables TER IR - H A EUCRIE R
and other assets H&EE (ii) (67,256)
Total assets BEEBRE 54,262
Liabilities =R
Contract liabilities aHEaE (i), (iii) 2,257,289
Deposits received and receipts B Wize kB R FHIE
in advance (i), (iii) (2,203,027)
Total liabilities BfERE 54,262
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(¢) (Continued)

Set out below are the amounts by which each
financial statement line item was affected as at
31 March 2019 and for the year ended 31 March
2019 as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15. The
adoption of HKFRS 15 has had no material impact
on other comprehensive income or on the Group’s
operating, investing and financing cash flows. The

first column shows the amounts recorded under
HKFRS 15 and the second column shows what the

amounts would have been had HKFRS 15 not been
adopted:

Consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year

ended 31 March 2019:

22 B BEREREBEECRE (&)

(c) (#&)

ATHINZHBHERRBEER T
—WEFE=ZA=Z=+-—BR#E_Z
—hWE=ZA=1T—-BLFEHAKER®R
ERUBRELNBISFMEZE

W HKANBEVBHREELNSE
155F ST E i 2 H N SR S AN & B 1) &
2 RERBRERERELE|ERKR

FE - FE-WBETBESBMBE®R
/EE'J%%%JTEEﬁ“E’J%%E mes =

== wﬂmmﬂT%ﬁmﬁﬁ:

BE_T-NAF=ZA=1t—HL#F
EH A TE S5

Amounts prepared under

REUTEARRNE R

Previous
Notes HKFRS 15 HKFRS Increase
EAMEBRE BEETEBMK
B = % B 551555 & ZE 8 ¥
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A& T TET TE T
Revenue I@N 2,831,757 2,764,492 67,265
Cost of sales 5 & AR (1,683,036) (1,615,771) (67,265)
Gross profit EF 1,148,721 1,148,721 —




2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(©)

(Continued)

RERBWERBRAT —ZT-NFFR
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22 B BHERBEEZEH (&)

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31

March 2019:

(c) (%)

RZE-NAF=ZA=+—HNOESE
SRR K

Amounts prepared under

REUATEGENEE
Previous Increase/
Notes HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
ERUBRE BEBSBYMEK ®m,
Bt 5 Z B 155 W& ZEA CRL2)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAE T TFHET TET
Properties under BRPYE
development (i) 4,683,913 4,672,324 11,589
Cost of obtaining ESAHRKA
contracts (ii) 115,779 S 115,779
Prepayments, other TERTFRIE - E b FE UL
receivables and RERHEMEE
other assets (if) 789,389 905,168 (115,779)
Total assets BEE 5,589,081 5,577,492 11,589
Deposits received and B Wiz KB IE
receipts in advance (ifi) 4,547 1,948,886 (1,944,339)
Contract liabilities aHEaE (i), (iii) 1,955,928 - 1,955,928
Total liabilities BEHER 1,960,475 1,948,886 11,589

The nature of the adjustments as at 1 April 2018
and the reasons for the significant changes in the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019
and the statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 March 2019 are described below:

K= \FMA—BFEAES
BEEURR =B AF=A=+—
ANHBRRERBE-T—AE
SASt-RALFENANREX
DRSS LR
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31 March 2019
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(©

(Continued)

(i)

Financing component

HKFRS 15 requires property developers to
account for the financing component in a
contract separately from revenue if the financing
effects are significant, subject to a practical
expedient where the period between the
payment and delivery of properties will be less
than one year. Currently, (i) the Group offers
property buyers a discount if they opt to pay
the purchase price in full within 120-180 days
of signing the provisional agreement of sale and
purchase; and (i) it is expected that the length
of time between the payment and delivery of
properties of the Group’s projects will exceed
one year. Accordingly, the financing component
is considered to be significant.

The amount of the financing component is
estimated at the contract inception and the
payment plan is confirmed by the property
buyer by using a discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer taking
into account the credit characteristics of the
Group as well as any collateral or security
provided. Interest expense is recognised only
to the extent that a contract liability (receipts
in advance) is recognised in accounting for the
contract with the customer.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group has
recognised and capitalised the interest on the
sales proceeds received from customers in
connection with the pre-sales of properties
and this led to the increase in properties
under development of HK$54,262,000, with a
correspondence increase in deposits received
and receipts in advance (contract liabilities) as
at 1 April 2018.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(©)

(i)

(ii)

(Continued)

Financing component (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, under HKFRS 15,
properties under development increased
by HK$11,589,000, with a correspondence
increase in contract liabilities as at 31
March 2019. Revenue and cost of sales
were increased by HK$67,265,000 and
HK$67,265,000, respectively, for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

Cost of obtaining contracts

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
paid commission to the sales agents when
the agreement for sale and purchase is signed
with a property buyer and recorded such sales
commission as a prepayment. Capitalised sales
commission was charged to profit or loss when
the revenue from the related property sale is
recognised and was included as selling and
distribution expenses at that time.

Except for the reclassification of prepaid
sales commission of HK$67,256,000 from
prepayments, other receivables and other
assets to cost of obtaining contracts, the
adoption of HKFRS 15 has had no significant
impact on the recognition of sales commission
in 2019 and opening retained profits as at 1
April 2018.

As at 31 March 2019, under HKFRS 15,
cost of obtaining contracts increased by
HK$115,779,000, with a correspondence
decrease in prepayments, other receivables and
other assets.

31 March 2019
—NF=ZA=+—H
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(©

(Continued)

(iii) Consideration received from customers in
advance
Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
recognised consideration received from
customers in advance as deposits received
and receipts in advance. Under HKFRS 15, the
amount is classified as contract liabilities.

Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the
Group reclassified HK$2,203,027,000 from
deposits received and receipts in advance to
contract liabilities as at 1 April 2018 in relation
to the consideration received from customers in
advance as at 1 April 2018.

As at 31 March 2019, under HKFRS 15,
HK$1,944,339,000 was reclassified from
deposits received and receipts in advance to
contract liabilities in relation to the consideration
received from customers in advance for the
sales of properties.

Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify when an entity
should transfer property, including property
under construction or development, into or out of
investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or
ceases to meet, the definition of investment property
and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere
change in management’s intentions for the use of a
property does not provide evidence of a change in
use. The amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(e

HK (IFRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to
determine the date of the transaction when applying
HKAS 21 to the situation where an entity receives
or pays advance consideration in a foreign currency
and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability. The
interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate
to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) is the date on
which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary
asset (such as a prepayment) or non-monetary
liability (such as deferred income) arising from the
payment or receipt of the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance
of recognising the related item, the entity must
determine the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration. The
interpretation has had no impact on the Group’s
financial statements as the Group’s accounting policy
for the determination of the exchange rate applied
for initial recognition of non-monetary assets or non-
monetary liabilities is consistent with the guidance
provided in the interpretation.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

23 BEMENRENS EEHBH
& % B

-+ A

AEBMAEIRNZEMHHRERAERH T
ERMGERRERIFTREETERE
PR E LR -

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BRI BHREEREIR (EE])
Amendments to HKFRS 9
BB HREEREIR (BFT)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 (2011)
BEEVBHRELERFE105% &

BB ERFE8HE (=T ——F)

Definition of a Business?

EHZ T

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’

ABEBWHEZEATITHEFE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture*

REZHABLENAIXEELEZHZEEL G2 )T E

(1&3T)
HKFRS 16 Leases’
BEBMBREERE165 HE
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts3

BB HRELERNETIR R & #°
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8  Definition of Material?

BEREHERNEIRR
BRI EAFESR (BET)

Amendments to HKAS 19

BEA SR EAFE195% (BE])

Amendments to HKAS 28

BB G ERE285% (1£5])

HK (IFRIC)-Int 23

AR (AR BREREEZES
— REF23

Annual Improvements 2015-2017
Cycle

—E-RFE_T-LFHEBZ
FEohE

BEAMZE#?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’
FFEIEET - HE R S A E

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures’
RBERNFREETLR R EZ

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

HrieB ez THEE L

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and HKAS 231

FEAVBHEEAEIN BEMBEHRELNF R - BESFHE

Q1258 R BB G T E R 2358 (B R])

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January TR IE-NEFE-A—BEERBCEE
2019 H A A 2

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RZITE-_EF-—A—HRZERBZEE
2020 B A3

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January S MRZIEZ_—F—A—HZRBRABKZFE
2021 BRI A K

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for 4 MAEBTRHEMNBE - BRHERA
adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

AR —SERERIT -

BHERARAKEZZEEAMBRE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets
to be considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to
assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to permit
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS
10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in
January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2019
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EEMEMARER 2T B BER

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK (IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK (SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK
(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees
to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. The
standard includes two elective recognition exemptions
for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term
leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will
recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease
liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition
of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class
of property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently
increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability and
reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required
to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease
liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such
as change in the lease term and change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS
16 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose
to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or
a modified retrospective approach. The Group will adopt
HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in
HKFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial
adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at 1 April 2019 and will not restate
the comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply
the new requirements to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and measure the
lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The right-
of-use asset will be measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to the lease recognised in the
statement of financial position immediately before the
date of initial application. The Group plans to use the
exemptions allowed by the standard on lease contracts
whose lease terms end within 12 months as of the date of
initial application.

During 2019, the Group has performed a detailed
assessment on the impact of adoption of HKFRS 16. As at
31 March 2019, the Group had non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$1,924,000 as disclosed in
note 36(b). A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all
these leases.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
April 2020. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EEMEMARER 2T B BER

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or
joint venture to which the equity method is applied and
does not include long-term interests that in substance
form part of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture, to which the equity method has not been applied.
Therefore, an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS
28, including the impairment requirements under HKFRS
9, in accounting for such long-term interests. HKAS 28
is then applied to the net investment, which includes the
long-term interests, only in the context of recognising
losses of an associate or joint venture and impairment of
the net investment in the associate or joint venture. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments on 1 April 2019
and will assess its business model for such long-term
interests based on the facts and circumstances that exist
on 1 April 2019 using the transitional requirements in the
amendments. The Group also intends to apply the relief
from restating comparative information for prior periods
upon adoption of the amendments.

HK (IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often
referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of
HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements
relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain
tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses
(i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments
separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii)
how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses,
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts
and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use
of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of applications an adjustment to the opening equity at
the date of initial application, without the restatement of
comparative information. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation from 1 April 2019. The interpretation is not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of joint ventures
is included as part of the Group’s investments in joint
ventures.

Upon loss of significant influence over the joint control
over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of joint venture upon loss
of significant influence or joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

B 35 ¥R R Y & ()

31 March 2019
—2-AF=A=+-8

24 TEETHERHME

REGEDLZE

RELEEBAZELY  BLRHEAXH
REGHEZTOT RS EREZE
EFERBREN - KREGRIZEE D%
EH—ERBAREA 2ES - AEEHE
EEREHREREZRIEHR TN
H—BRABZRERFFE -

AEERALELXIREDNEAKTER
BEREDEFIAEGEEEFERETMRE
BEREAMBEARKIIK -

WA EFEEFM AT 2 BE e
FHRABREE - -

AEBEEEEELFRNBREGREM
PEBENRFAGECREEREMEE
WK o o MR B ELEZREER
BRED  AAKEERNGRAREEHR
BEREERATMNES(HER) - A5E R
EECERMRIELEZABRBEK A
AEERGELRZRERRYE - MK
AERBEEASMEREEREBEZRER
BRoh - WEBEEEEMELAZEHBDAA
EREEREELEZRE—HD -

REHALOERRENRZEATE

& AEERAVEFERERTMRE
BRE - KREBAFENHARZFRERS
SEEIEREERERELRHEMERX
BZAVFEZREMEZRENEERER -



Wang On Properties Limited Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S 7% & My = (3

31 March 2019
—®-AF=A=1-A

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEHHREME(#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

When an investment in a joint venture is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.

Asset acquisitions and business combinations

Where a property is acquired, via corporate acquisitions
or otherwise, management considers the substance of the
assets and activities of the acquired entity in determining
whether the acquisition represents the acquisition of a
business. The basis of the judgement is set out in note 3.

Where such an acquisition is not judged to be an
acquisition of a business, it is not treated as a business
combination. Rather, the cost to acquire the corporate
entity or assets and liabilities is allocated between the
identifiable assets and liabilities (of the entity) based on
their relative values at the acquisition date. Accordingly, no
goodwill or deferred taxation arises.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEHHREME(#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, properties under development,
properties held for sale, financial assets, investment
properties and non-current assets/a disposal group
classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(viij a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

B 35 ¥R R Y & ()

31 March 2019
—NF=ZA=+—H

24 TEETHERBE &)

BEAL

W= RATAL RIERBESEREE
B RAE

@ “ZARBAKZALTZEBHREK
8 -ma&AL:

() #FHANEEHEREHARE
= ;

(i) HAKEBREEAZEN =X

(iy AEAEENIEBGRARZEEE
BABHEFP—FKE

%

iy —EBRE—EB(
[]

(i) FEREAKE/R-—F=7
ZRELE

vy " ERBAR—F=h2Za&d
X M —EBRZBE=ZS
)R /N

v ZEEBRASEXBEASEM
BEERREBRNMRIL B
BiREANEE

(Vi) % E 8 mH(a)PT Bl A I Bl X
HEEH

(i) RE@OFFBEIALTHZERE
EK CES B ER(XZE
!’AT)E;I%? BEAEBHS

— %K 8



Wang On Properties Limited Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S 7% & My = (3

31 March 2019
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEHHREME(#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings

2% or over the lease terms
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the
year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the
year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEHHREME(#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

When an operating lease contract is entered into with
another party on a property originally held for sale and
upon the commencement of the lease, the property is
transferred to investment property. The difference between
the fair value of the property at the date of transfer and its
then carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or
disposal group must be available for immediate sale in
its present condition subject only to terms that are usual
and customary for the sale of such assets or disposal
groups and its sale must be highly probable. All assets
and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group
are reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether
the Group retains a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets classified as held for
sale are not depreciated or amortised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)
Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and
financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases,
including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to profit or loss
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged
to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise construction
costs, borrowing costs, professional fees, payments for
land use rights and other costs directly attributable to such
properties incurred during the development period.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the
normal operating cycle. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEHHREME(#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)
Properties under development (Continued)

Sales deposits/instalments received and receivable from
purchasers in respect of the pre-sale of properties under
development prior to completion of the development are
included in current liabilities.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by
an apportionment of the total land and building costs
attributable to unsold properties. Net realisable value is
estimated by the directors based on the prevailing market
prices on an individual property basis.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018)
“below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”)
on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

B 35 ¥R R Y & ()

31 March 2019
—NF=ZA=+—H

24 TEETHERBE &)

RERHEMTHMEE(RETBYE
HEAFIRE-FT-NFHA—
ABERZBXR) (#)

NEEIRGE(E)
RETBEEABEHEKARIZAFETA
HemRaETrBRGE FELE
BIXNAERREEAXEFE (TSPPI)
MBRERE °

AEBEEECREENEBREAERTE
ﬁﬁ%@ié?%?iﬁ%m%ﬁﬁﬁ‘t %
BEAETHRESREREERBKE

Beng HLESWEE - iﬁ%%ﬁ

FE—REBENSREEMNIZ A (A
AEBEAFEEZEENBHY) T AR
R —REBNERR-—RMISREXE
PE-—EHHARNEENEREEER

=
=

R 8
EREEHKGH BT XUTHAW
}E .

LgERATENEREE(EKTHR)
fieh o & DA T R {1 75 5% ) S5 DA 288 S K
AETETREE

s NEERBEEREENURARIR
ERENFEHERATHANERE
F

s TMEEMNARBIRFEAHE
ENBREREERINAE RAE
BATHFE -



Wang On Properties Limited Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S 7% & My = (3

31 March 2019
—®-AF=A=1-A

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEHHREME(#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
(Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
loans and receivables, as appropriate. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets included cash and cash
equivalents, a loan receivable and financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income and gains
in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for
receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April
2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEHHREME(#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April
2018) (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEHHREME(#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEHHREME(#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
expenses in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings and payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, accruals and interest-bearing bank and other
loans.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Financial liabilities (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Loans and borrowings (Continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018)”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount
of income recognised.

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of (i) the
amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEHHREME(#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018
and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from
1 April 2018 and policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)
Income tax (Continued)

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition
(applicable from 1 April 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEHHREME(#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Revenue recognition
(applicable from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value
of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at
contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under
the contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method.
For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods
or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sales of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised at the
point in time when the purchasers obtained the physical
possession or the legal title of the completed property
and the Group has a present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.

Revenue from the provision of management service is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Revenue recognition
(applicable before 1 April 2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

(b) from the provision of services, when the services are
rendered;

(c) from the sale of properties (including properties
under development and completed properties held
for sale), by the time the properties are delivered to
the purchasers and the sale agreements become
unconditional; and

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest rate method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 April 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received a
consideration (or an amount of consideration that is due)
from the customer. If a customer pays the consideration
before the Group transfers goods or services to the
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the
payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when
the Group performs under the contract.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEHHREME(#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Contract costs (applicable from 1 April 2018)

Other than the costs which are capitalised as properties
under development and property and equipment, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised
as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(a) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

(o) The costs generate or enhance resources of the
entity that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing
to satisfy) performance obligations in the future.

(¢) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged
to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the pattern of the revenue to which the asset related
is recognised. Other contract costs are expensed as
incurred.

Costs of obtaining contracts

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract were those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a
customer it would not have incurred if the contract had
not been obtained e.g., sales commission to sales agents.
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised
when incurred if the costs relate to revenue which will
be recognised in a future reporting period and the costs
are expected to be recovered. Other costs of obtaining a
contract are expensed when incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 29 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEHHREME(#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or services conditions have not been
met, no expense is recognised. Where awards include
a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the note 11 to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements.

Classification between disposal of assets and disposal
of a business

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group entered
into sale and purchase agreements with independent third
parties for the disposal of partial interest in subsidiaries
that are engaged in property development in Hong Kong
and such disposals resulted in the loss of control by the
Group over those subsidiaries. As at the date of disposals,
management of the Company considers whether the
development of the property projects has commenced.
When the development has commenced, it is accounted
for as a disposal of a business and the remaining interests
retained by the Group are remeasured and the fair value
of the retained interests is recognised in full as the initial
carrying amount of the joint venture. On the contrary, when
the development has not commenced, it is accounted
for as a disposal of partial interest of the underlying
assets. The remaining interests retained by the Group
are eliminated against the unrealised fair value increase
of the underlying assets and therefore the original cost of
the retained interests is recognised as the initial carrying
amount of the joint venture. Further details of the disposals
of subsidiaries are given in note 33 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties including industrial and commercial
units in Hong Kong are revalued at the end of the
reporting period on a market value, existing use basis
by independent professionally qualified valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the estimation, information from
current prices in an active market for similar properties
is considered and assumptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at the end of the reporting
period are used.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the property development segment engages in the
development of properties; and

(b) the property investment segment engages in
investment in industrial and commercial premises for
rental or for sale.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/
loss before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that
interest income, finance costs, head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

B 35 ¥R R Y & ()

31 March 2019
—NF=ZA=+—H

EXEFHE R M @)

et FHABAREE

BERERBERARGA TAPREAR Z AR
REMEIERRZTEBRR (BT —FK
FEZEENBBRAEERERNFE
ZEKRER)BAMT

REWRMGE
REMEDEEBZ TERMEEMN @ B
BUYUBXCERGHEMNREDARRE
ERAgRmEEHNGE BRMGEDR
F%Fﬁ&tﬁ'A#F“*T%%lﬁ
FE OWAREEREREERER -1
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ% AEEEERERMSTE
UnERREME  LERETBRERS
HARZBEEMRIELZRK -

RETBEHR
REREMS  AEBREQARRBES S
BEBEL  METRELLEIEQT

@ MEERIBEVEZIER M

b) MERESEEREIZRABED
EAHHBEELRE -

BEENERAKEZKENREE
MWREBERDERFTERR - nBERAR
BRAmES BN BETE  mARE
DERN,/ BREZAETAREARZ
BRELATER, BB - KAERBANERN 2
AFETRRAKE ZRBATE N — B
FMBUWA - BEKAR R B E R R bR
XA BEAZEES -



Wang On Properties Limited Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S %5 ¥R & MY o (4D

31 March 2019

- =
— =

4.

—hF=A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The Group’s revenue from external customers was derived
solely from its operations in Hong Kong during the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, and the non-current
assets of the Group were located in Hong Kong as at 31
March 2019 and 2018.

Year ended 31 March

4. RBEPFER (£)

BE-_Z-NER-_ZE-NE=A=+—
HIEFE  AEEXRAMBEEZEHAZR
HEREREBZEE MR —hF
R_E-NF=ZA=+—8 XEBHF
RBEEMREE -

BZ=ZA=1+—HLEE

Property development Property investment Total
NERR NERE M@t
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NF ZB-)\f ZE-hE ZE-N\§f ZE-hE ZZ-N\%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TETL TEL TATL TEL TR TET
Segment revenue: (note 5) PEBA : (FiE5)
Sales to external customers BEFIHGER 2,826,961 1,333,515 4,796 18,328 BPREINAT 1,351,843
Other income ElA CRLER 1,693,181 55,761 34,317 AN 1,727,498
Total @zt PRLRERE 3,026,696 60,557 52,645 BACRIRSCGE 3,079,341
Segment results PEEE 1,067,050 EEPXVRT) 34,062 LEREPE 2,095,904
Reconciliation i
Interest income MEWA 33,579 17,195
Finance costs BEKK (87,315) (62,943)
Corporate and unallocated PERAIERT
eXpenses (46,583) (45,203)
Profit before tax B 5 A A 1,000,793 IPAVIIREIR
Income tax expense FEREZ (170,550) (60,582)
Profit for the year KEEEF - - LRIPYER 1,944,371
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TEER &)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &&

(Continued)

Year ended 31 March (Continued)

Other segment information: EHHEER:

Depreciation Vil

Reversal of write-down of BRERELENSL
properties held for sale s

Capital expenditure” BERY

Fair value gains/(losses) on RENERNTEAR/
investment properties, net (FR)3%

Gains on disposals of HEHBARZ
subsiclaries, net W& 58

Gain on remeasurement of the B EAEEREH
50% equity interest in the WSE B (fEB—FA
WS Group retained by the BERE) Z50%R
Group classified as a joint Bzha
venture

Share of losses of joint ventures 54402 BR 35,576 895
Investments in joint ventures REARDE 1,385,441 IRRIEAKRL]
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant
and equipment and investment properties. BYEHER -
Information about major customers EBEXEEFZEH
During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March BHE-Z

2018, no revenue from transactions with a single external
customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total

revenue.

BE=A=+—RHALEEE)

Property development  Property investment

NEBR NERE
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-AE ZE-\F ZE-AE ZE-N\%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TErn  TEn TEL Thn

287,398

(31.274) : 33,355

1,247,461

= 467,039

Unallocated
AR E
2019 2018
Z$-1f Z3-/%
HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL Tin

JA E e

831

95,662

Total
@t

2019

=
HK$'000
TER

35,576
1,385,441

2018

0%

HK§ 000
TEL

891

383,191

2,081

1,247,461

467,039
896

1,413,350

- BEXARXBHAENE BEERERE

—NF=ZA=+—HBE=-F—N
FZA=ZT—HALFE  HEEE N
BEPZXGBALAEE BB AZ10%K
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 5. WAUREMKBKARKZ EEE
GAINS, NET

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: RAEBZWRADFTAT
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FHET

Revenue from contracts with customers ¥ B EF & 47,2 A

Sale of properties HEmE 2,823,584 1,329,255
Revenue from another source B K JRZ WA
Rental income e WA 8,173 22,588
2,831,757 1,351,843
Revenue from contracts with customers BEEEH2Z2HWA
() Disaggregated revenue information () PHFBAEHR
All revenue from contracts with customers are FMERFPAHHMKAREEZH#
recognised at the point in time when the control of EBREEEPRHANREER -

the assets is transferred to the customers.

The following table shows the amounts of revenue TRERABREHARF A RS B
recognised in the current reporting period that were ZEHNEAEHNCHEARARASE -
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of

the reporting period:

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FAET

Revenue recognised that was included in  BREHTFAELEAEBEZ
contract liabilities at the BRI A
beginning of the reporting period:

Sales of properties TEWHE 1,955,621
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 5. WAUREMKBKARKZ EEE

GAINS, NET (continued) (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) BEEFEHZWAE)

(i) Performance obligations (i) BHEME
Information about the Group’s performance AEEBERHVEEHBBEER AWM
obligations is summarised below: K
Sales of properties HEYFE
The performance obligation is satisfied when the BOBEATRETMEBRIMED
physical possession or the legal title of the completed ERIBEREEFERRER -

property is obtained by the purchaser.

2019 2018

ZE-AFE 2 -N\F

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
P 5 TE T THETT

Other income and gains, net Hth AR WREZEHE

Interest income from bank deposits $E 1T 717 2 2 F 2 U A 12,747
Interest income from a loan —THRKERZFE

receivable WA 4,448
Forfeiture of deposits from R EFEZRE

customers 3,053
Management fee income EERBKA 5,807
Gains on disposals of subsidiaries, H &M B QR 2

net W28 F 8 33 1,247,461
Gain on remeasurement of the 50% & ¥t £ 7N £ [H 7 B

equity interest in the WS Group RWSE B ({E &

retained by the Group classified —HeEhE)

as a joint venture 50%% # 2 W = 33 467,039
Others Htb 2,057

1,742,612
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2018
—E—N\F
HK$'000
TB T

841,518
891

740

10,016
1,950

61,421
1,073
(11,214)

51,280

3,899

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
F& T

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BB A% F
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEEBZBRFRAEFENER,(GFA)
(crediting):
2019
—E-AEF
Notes HK$’000
B 5 FET
Cost of properties sold & W E R AR 1,680,166
Depreciation e 13 4,074
Write-off of property, plant and mE BB &
equipment % 68 g 13
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME - HE &
plant and equipment REBEEHZER 20
Minimum lease payments under KEMH s HEHES
operating leases 10,088
Auditor’s remuneration % B0 RN B & 2,700
Employee benefit expense (including BEERAMBAZ (BRIEE
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): =& (FizE8)) :
Wages and salaries TEKES 74,854
Pension scheme contributions RR & FRET 3 1,298
Less: Amount capitalised D= N o ok (10,522)
65,630
Direct operating expenses (including WHEEMEEEZ
repairs and maintenance) arising from EBEE&ZLHX
rental-earning investment properties (BREEERRE)
FINANCE COSTS 7. BMEMKK
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEXRADTOT :
2019
—E-NEF
HK$’000
FET
Interest on bank loans and other loans 81T & & i & X 5 & 136,665

Interest expenses arising from revenue

contracts
Less: Interest capitalised

BHBAEENTBFX

R R BN

24,592

(73,942)

87,315

126,864

(63,921)

62,943
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 8. EERFETHAEZHME

OFFICER’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to AEEEEMeREBIMBHR LTWH
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock B ([ EmREAI]) - BB R BMEHIZ5383(1)
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) @ (o) C)RMERAR(FEEEF=n

and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 BERDEFIE2HEENT ¢

of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2019 2018

—E—-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#& T FTHET

Fees we 660

Other emoluments: Hus -

Salaries, allowances and benefits H& - RBREYMA G

in kind 4,702

Performance-related bonuses* FRIA LA 5,840

Pension scheme contributions RIRE B R 36

10,578

11,238

* Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to e ARRETHRTESHERZBALL M

bonus payments which are determined with reference to
the Group’s operating results, individual performance of the
directors and comparable market practices during the year.

AT EFAREEELEE E=F
ZEARBEAIHERZTIGEDRE

TF o
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 8. EERFETHAEZHME (2
OFFICER’S REMUNERATION (Continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIAFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FREIMNTBILIENTESCER
during the year were as follows: m
2019 2018
—E-hE NS
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T FHET
Mr. Li Wing Sum Steven FKBREAE 140
Mr. Sung Tze Wah REFESL L 140
Sr Dr. Leung Tony Ka Tung RRFE LB =6 140
420
There were no other emoluments payable to the FAMERBIYIERITESESINA
independent non-executive directors during the year HEE (2 —N\FE : 8|) o

(2018: Nil).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 8. EERFETHAEZHME &)
OFFICER’S REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) The chief executive officer, another executive (b) THEK HtBITEER—F
director and a non-executive director IHITES
Salaries,

allowances Performance- Pension

and benefits related scheme Total

Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e 2HR Bheta

He BNFlsE RRA &% Wems

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TEL THET TEL

2019 -1
Executive directors: BTEs:
Mr. Wong Yiu Hung Gary ERELRE(TRER)
(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tang Ho Hong HERLE
Non-executive director: FHnES:
Mr. Chan Chun Hong BERLE(ZE)
(Chairman)
2018 —E-N\F
Executive directors: HTEEZ:
Mr. Wong Yiu Hung Gary ERERE(TRAER)
(Chief Executive Officer) - 3,262 3,200 18 6,480
Mr. Tang Ho Hong BERLTE - 1,440 2,640 18 4,008
- 4,702 5,840 36 10,578
Non-executive director: FNTES
Mr. Chan Chun Hong BIRRELE(ZE)
(Chairman) 240 = = - 240
240 4,702 5,840 36 10,818
There was no arrangement under which a director FRATBEESTREXIRERNELM
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during e ZH(ZE—NF: &)

the year (2018: Nil).
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9.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included
one (2018: two) director, details of whose remuneration are
disclosed in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for
the year of the remaining four (2018: three) non-director,
highest paid employees are as follows:

BELEREHES

FRNELEHRSHEEFT —B(ZZE—-N
FMBIREF  HMEAFBERLX
MzrelE - R THE(ZE—-NF : =
F)IEFERRFEEZFAMFEN
™

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ &
Performance-related bonuses RKIRTELT
Pension scheme contributions BRE s EIHE R

R R BN &

2019 2018
—®E-hE —T-)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FB T T 7T
4,320

1,395

54

5,769

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

MeBRTIHEBEZIEEESFHESES
AET

Number of employees

EEAB
2019 2018
—B-hE T )\F

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L &
1,500,000 7T
1,500,001 T &
2,000,000 7T
2,000,001 L2

3,000,000 7T

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000




REMERRAR —FT-NFFRH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 35 ¥R R Y & ()

31 March 2019
—2-AF=A=+-8

10. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits

arising in Hong Kong during the year.

10. Fr8 %

16.5%) 1B & 45 -

Current — Hong Kong
Charge for the year
Underprovision/(Overprovision)
in prior years

Deferred (note 27)

Total tax expense for the year

EBAFEHOBRBEFENEEBHE 2 G5t
FERRBOE FIR B R16.5% (ZF — )\ F -

2019 2018
—E-hAF C—B-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FTHET
BNER — & F

KEEREZ 173,731 67,459

BAFEREIR,
(HBEEEE) (261) 76
173,470 67,535
iR AE (P 5E27) (2,920) (6,953)
AFEZRERTRE 170,550 60,582

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which
the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong tax rate of 16.5%
Adjustments in respect of current tax
of previous periods
Adjustments in respect of deferred tax
of previous periods
Losses attributable to joint ventures
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Tax losses utilised from previous periods
Tax losses not recognised
Others

Tax expense at the Group’s effective rate

BARE R EME QAR ETERAE
BZEEREAEZBHRAENZER
BEMAXERERREFEZHRARX

ZEERMT
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FAET
B B A& F 1,000,793 2,004,953
BEBHEI16.5%TE 2 FiE 165,131 330,817
Ft 35 7% 2 R B0 ER K 1|
YEH F % (261) 76
BT HAREERE
{EH F % 656 5
EREDEEEEBE 5,870 148
BAZH KA (26,570) (284,258)
DEIEE A= 23,823 6,124
BTHESAZHEEIE (4,634) (92)
RERBIABAE 6,790 7,987
H (255) (225)
BEASECcERBXGFE
IR X 170,550 60,582
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11.

12.

—NWF=A=+—H”
DIVIDENDS 11. K&
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Special dividend — Nil FRRE —=F
(2018: HK1.0 cent per ordinary share) (ZZE—N\F:BFRLA
% A% 15 1.0 L) 152,000
Proposed special dividend — HK0.945 BREFRIRE — SREEIK
cent per ordinary share (2018: Nil) f% £750.945 7% il
(ZF—-—N\F: % 143,640 -
Proposed final dividend — HK0.70 cent EAMKRE —EREER
(2018: HK0.65 cent) per ordinary share % 150.7078 1L
(ZZE—NF :0.6551L) 106,400 98,800
250,040 250,800

The final dividend and the special dividend proposed
subsequent to the reporting period is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and
have not been recognised as liabilities at the end of the
reporting period.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2019 is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the parent of HK$500,302,000
(2018: HK$1,808,456,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year of
15,200,000,000 (2018: 15,200,000,000).

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share presented for the years ended 31 March 2019 and
2018 as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary
shares in issue during those periods.

12.

REEHMEEZE 2 RAREREHRE
ARARNABRRNARFEERRBSF
REHER  FAEE  BRBEHRL

BRAAEBEREARGAER
v

HE - ZT-—NWF=ZA=+—HILFEZH
BEABEFDIBRET A HEAR AEMLAR
F [Z % F500,302,0008 70 ( — T — )\ £
1,808,456,000% /L) R FNE 1T E B
A% hn 4 S 5 #15,200,000,000 (= & — )\
£ :15,200,000,000) i 5+ & o

AEEREBEE-_T—ALER-_Z—N\F
AT+ BLFETEEHTBELE
HLER T ERZSEHE2Y 25K
EXBFELFE -
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 1%  BERZHE

Furniture,
fixtures
Land and  and office Motor  Computer
buildings  equipment vehicles equipment Total
BA
£ER
THREF BAERE RE EMRE B 5t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TER TER TER
31 March 2019 “E-hE=ZA=1+-H
At 1 April 2018: RZZE-NFMA-R :
Cost B 94,919 220 998 759 96,896
Accumulated depreciation 2FtHE (542) (133) (244) (501) (1,420)
Net carrying amount EEEE 94,377 87 754 258 95,476
At 1 April 2018, net of RZE-N\F
accumulated depreciation mA—AB"
MhkETNE 94,377 87 754 258 95,476
Additions NE - - 39 5,500 5,539
Disposal & = = (81) = (31)
Depreciation provided during £ R iTE & &
the year (3,252) (66) (194) (562) (4,074)
At 31 March 2019, net of RZE-NF
accumulated depreciation ZA=+—-H"
Mk Rt E 91,125 21 568 5,196 96,910
At 31 March 2019: R-ZE-N%F
ZA=t-8"
Cost BEAK 94,919 220 956 6,259 102,354
Accumulated depreciation ZiME (3,794) (199) (388) (1,063) (5,444)
Net carrying amount REFE 91,125 21 568 5,196 96,910
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ BERIRHEE)
(Continued)
Furniture,
fixtures
Landand  Leasehold and office Motor ~ Computer
buildings improvement  equipment vehicles  equipment Total
R
BEWE KER
THRET £ BREHRBE RnE BHARE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT FET TET
31 March 2018 “E-NE=ZA=t+-H
At 1 April 2017: RZE-+EMA-R:
Cost B = - 89 998 756 1,843
Accumulated depreciation 2iE - - (89) (44) (396) (529)
Net carrying amount REFE - - - 954 360 1,314
At 1 April 2017, net of RZE—+tENA-H"
accumulated depreciation B EFNE - - - 954 360 1,314
Additions NE 665 - 131 - 3 799
Acquisition of a subsidiary that 1% — @ B2 Al
is not a business (note 32) (MEB—BER)
(Hi332) 94,254 713 27 = - 94,994
Disposal and write-off & T 3 = (713) 27) - - (740)
Depreciation provided during £ R EE &
the year (542) - (44) (200) (105) (891)
At 31 March 2018, net of R-B-N\%
accumulated depreciation =A=+-8"
N EHE 94,377 - 87 754 258 95,476
At 31 March 2018: RZE-NE
ZA=t-H:
Cost N 94,919 - 220 998 759 96,896
Accumulated depreciation RirfTE (542) - (133) (244) (501) (1,420)
Net carrying amount REFE 94,377 - 87 754 258 95,476

At 31 March 2019, certain of the Group’s land and
buildings with a net carrying amount of HK$91,125,000
(2018: HK$94,377,000) were pledged to secure the
Group’s general banking facilities (note 26).

R-_E—HNF=ZA=+—H KAEHE
M FE 91,125,000 T (=& — \&F :
94,377,000 L) v A T L R EFE K
FIEAAEBER —MRTREE 2 ER
(HMfzE26) °
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYZE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B =E F#ET THT
Carrying amount at beginning of year R EY 2 EEE 759,000 1,229,300
Additions NE - 12,849
Acquisition of a subsidiary that is not a Uk B — 5 K /& 2 7
business (TEE—THZER) 32 - 274,549
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWEB QR (20,000) =
Net gain from fair value adjustments N ERAER=FE 70,583 2,081
Accrued rent-free rental income 2 e AAS KA (83) (1,513)
Carrying amount at end of year FAREAEE 809,500 1,517,266
Included in assets classified as held for s+ AP B AFELE 2
sale BE 22 (758,266)
Investment properties as stated inthe W=A=+—B&%4
consolidated statement of financial SRR RTRZ
position as at 31 March wKEME 809,500 759,000

The Group’s investment properties consist of commercial
and industrial properties in Hong Kong.

The investment properties were revalued by Asset
Appraisal Limited, an independent professionally qualified
valuer, at 31 March 2019. The finance department has
a team that reviews the valuation performed by the
independent valuer for financial reporting purposes and
reports directly to the senior management of the Company.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between management and the valuers twice a year when
the valuation is performed for interim and annual financial
reporting. At the end of each reporting period, the finance
department holds discussion with the independent valuers
to verify major inputs to the independent valuation reports.
The finance department also assesses property valuation
movements when compared to the prior year valuation
reports.

At 31 March 2019, the investment properties are leased to
third parties (2018: third parties and a related party) under
operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in notes 36(a) and 39 to the financial statements.

AEEZREVEBEBRUNTBEZARE
MERTEME -

REMEHBILEXREERMGERMDBE
BEFEREARAANR_-Z-NAF=
A=+—H#TEMR  BEHRE @D
M BERMBREWBE L GEMZGE
ETERRE  YEERRARRSREEERE
H AP HARFEEMBRELETHES
BEEERMGEMENFIERFRERE
FRAMAG®H  RERSHR - W55
SHEBYAEMRMAN R KX EBILMG
EREZEXBA - UHEBTERDEM
ERE—FEHERS ZESHETIME -

N-Z—-AE=A=+—0  REYWER
REHENBFEA(ZZE—NF  E=
T REEAT)  HtFBIEIRN P HkE
M 5E36(a) 239 °
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14.

At 31 March 2019, the Group’s investment properties with
an aggregate carrying value of HK$787,500,000 (2018:
HK$1,497,266,000) and certain rental income generated
therefrom were pledged to secure the Group’s general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 26).

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties
are included on page 247.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

BREWME#)

R-B-NAF=A=+—8B X&£EE
T 42.{8 3% 787,500,000 7t (= Z — )\ 4F :
1,497,266,0008 70) 2 I EME - REFT
EEZETHSRABEEREALAEH
B —RIBITHE 2 ER (M E206) °

EEAEEREYEZE—FSHBHR
F247H o

RFEER

AEERENE Y AT EGEERAN
T&

Fair value measurement using
significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

RAEXTABRTERZ
AVEFEB(E=E)
2019 2018
—F-FE ZFT-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
T THT

Recurring fair value measurement for:

Commercial properties
Industrial property

S /NS

&
i

EEME
THEME

il

Included in assets classified as held for
sale (note 22)

(M 5E22)

FADERRIEREZEE

Investment properties as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March

R=ZA=1t—BE&S
RAKRFARZBREWME

787,500 1,497,266
22,000 20,000
809,500 1,517,266
(758,266)
& B 7%
809,500 759,000

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil).

FA AFEAERERE-ERF_E
ZHEE TEEF-_EEAREBL (=
T-N\F &)
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. REW=E(7)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NE TE B (E)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised DERAFEERF=ZE2AVTHEITE
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: ZEERHMOT
Commercial Industrial
properties property Total
BEYE ITEME et
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Ff &£ T#ET FHET TET
Carrying amount RZZE—EF
at 1 April 2017 MA—HZEREE 1,210,100 19,200 1,229,300
Additions N1 12,849 - 12,849
Accrued rent-free rental  Z it R BEHE £ KA
income (1,493) (20) (1,513)
Acquisition of a Iy B8 — B B 2 Al
subsidiary that (TER—HHER)
is not a business 32 274,549 - 274,549
Net gain from fair value  AF{EFHE W F58
adjustments 1,261 820 2,081
Included in assets FADEARIELE
classified as held for Z2EE
sale 22 (758,266) - (758,266)
Carrying amount RZZE—)\F
at 31 March 2018 and Z=A=+—Hk
1 April 2018 —E-NF
MA—HZEmE 739,000 20,000 759,000
Accrued rent-free rental  Zxt AL U A
income (83) - (83)
Disposal of subsidiaries &M B A 7 (20,000) - (20,000)
Net gain from fair value A F{EFABW I FHE
adjustments 68,583 2,000 70,583
Carrying amount R-ZZE—NF
at 31 March 2019 =A=+—Hx2

BRI 1E 787,500 22,000 809,500
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. REWZF(#)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AEEEHRE)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and T EMELEMKEBZEEA
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: EREETER:
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
EERE EXTABETER & [ o #E T 19
2019 2018
“E-RF —E-N\%F
Commercial properties Investment method and direct Price per square foot HK$34,500 to HK$18,900 to
comparison method HK$83,000 HK$160,000
BENE REEZREELEE BYARER 34,5008 L & 18,900 L&
83,0007 7T 160,000/ 7T
Industrial property Direct comparison method Price per square foot HK$7,400 HK$6,900
I%9% BEREHBE BYARER 7,400 T 6,9007% &
As at 31 March 2019, the valuations of investment R-ZE—NE=ZA=+—"8 KREVED
properties were based on direct comparison method by BEEELEE(NREZRELEMSE R
reference to comparable market transactions. S)EITHE -
A significant increase/(decrease) in the price per square EFREBEREBABEN (R
foot in isolation would result in a significantly higher/(lower) SHREMEZ ANFERBLEA(TB) -

fair value of the investment properties.
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15. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 15. Ry E

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-)N\F

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

B =E FET THT

Carrying amount at beginning of year  F ¥R mE & 2,752,457 3,518,592
Additions (including development cost AR E (B IER KA &

and capitalised interest) BARF B 3,429,682 1,297,378

Transfer to properties held for sale EEREEENAEYE (1,498,226) (1,556,184)

Acquisition of a subsidiary that is not a Yt & — & [ B A 7

business (NMER—THE) 32 2,675,195

Disposals of subsidiaries HEWB QA 33 (3,082,524)

Carrying amount at end of year FAREAEE 4,683,913 2,752,457

Properties under development expected to be completed: TR THBEEXR 2 ERPYE

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#& T FHET
Beyond the normal operating cycle BREEEEALS -

included under non-current assets HAETREEE 1,355,318 152,997
Within the normal operating cycle RIEFEERBHA

included under current assets HFARBEE 3,328,595 2,599,460

4,683,913 2,752,457
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15. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

(Continued)

Properties under development expected to be completed
within the normal operating cycle and recovered:

15. BRHPYMWE (&)

BRRERZ2ERAHPAZNK R KE Z %
A

— R
—

Within one year
After one year

2019 2018
—B-hE -—E-)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F 87T
1,435,039 1,431,194
1,893,556 1,168,266
3,328,595 2,599,460

At 31 March 2019, the Group’s properties under
development with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$3,216,412,000 (2018: HK$1,168,266,000) were
pledged to secure the Group’s general banking facilities
(note 26).

Further particulars of the Group’s properties under
development are included on page 247.

16. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

n=

T-NE=ZA=+—H0 AEBEE

E(E3#3,216,412,0008 0 (— & — \&F
1,168,266,000/ 7T ) 2 B A ¥ £ B K 17
EAKREEER —RBITHE ZER(H
F26) °

EBRAEBEERERMEZE—FPHBHR
RE2478H -

16. FEFEYE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET THET

Carrying amount at 31 March

R=ZA=+—RHzZ2EHEE 687,167 719,080

Notes:

() During the year ended 31 March 2019, a reversal of write-
down of properties held for sale of HK$88,856,000 was
credited to profit or loss, which was related to a property
development project for commercial usage. The reversal
of write-down of properties held for sale was caused by
the completion of the construction of the property and the
increase in fair value was reflected during the current year.
The reversal was limited to the amount of the original write-
down and the recoverable amounts were determined with
reference to the valuations performed by Asset Appraisal
Limited on an open market basis as at 31 March 2019.

(ii) At 31 March 2019, the Group’s properties held for sale
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$668,176,000 (2018:
HK$576,509,000) were pledged to secure the Group’s
general banking facilities (note 26).

(i) Further particulars of the Group’s properties held for sale
are included on page 247.

CEE

U]

(i)

(i)

HE_Z—NAFZA=+—HBLEE
B B E L& 3 2 UM 88,856,000
TR ABSE  EHEREEBERERNYD
¥URBEEH - BOBELEDMEZ
WMOR TR MERR TR A TFEEM
NG S = B T B o [ {2 R R IR 28 i
BeE MAKREEEILERFHESE
EFEENERQARNR-_ZE—-NLE=A
S+ BRAHMBEEETNEERS

=

E °

R-_TE—AEZA=+—"8 X&H
B [ 42 {& /2 668,176,000 7T (= T — \
% 576,509,000 L) 2 EREWE
CEFEARNEERERN —RETHEZ
ER (M FE28) ©

ERAEEBESREMEZE—PHE
BN E247H -
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17. REGE X

2019 2018
—®E-hE —T-)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FB T T8 7T

Share of net assets BB EFE
Loans to joint ventures ERTEEDLE

1,107,813 1,143,389
277,628 269,961

1,385,441 1,413,350

In accordance with the terms of the relevant loan
agreement, the loans to Wonder Sign and Ease Mind bear
interest at rates ranging from 6% to 9.5% per annum and
these joint ventures have the sole discretion to determine
the repayment date of such loans, and therefore in the
opinion of the directors, these loans form an integral part
of the Group’s equity investments in the joint ventures.

1R 5 A8 B & 301 3% B9 {5 30 - Wonder Sign
N Ease Mind®) & ZUZ F F| K6% E£9.5%5
B MZzEaELENEENBEATRZSE
BEXMNEREE AUHEERE  ZEEH
HERAEBREGELENRERER
FREB 5 ©
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

17. 8ES

EhEE)

ZINES

i

ZABCERFENT :

Particulars of registration and Principal
Name issued shares held business Percentage of activities
MR

8 FREBRTROFE BLREXEH BOK TEXK

Ownership Voting Profit

interest power sharing

HEEE

#a REE DEEN
Wonder Sign Limited Ordinary shares BVI 50 50 50 Investment
(“Wonder Sign”) US$1 each holding
TalRBR1ZT HELRARES REER
Double Bright Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50 50 Property
(“Double Bright”) development
RAERAR(RAEA]D TR N MEZR
Ease Mind Investments Ordinary shares of ~ BVI 40 40 40 Investment
Limited (“Ease Mind”) US$1 each holding
TakEk1ZT HELBRES REZER
Loyal Pioneer Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 40 40 40 Property
(“Loyal Pioneer”) development
BRARRA([#H]) Rl B MEER

Wonder Sign is an investment holding company
which holds the entire equity interest of Double Bright
(collectively the “WS Group”).

Ease Mind is an investment holding company which holds
the entire equity interest of Loyal Pioneer (collectively the

“EM Group”).

All these joint ventures are unlisted and indirectly held by

the Company.

The WS Group and the EM Group are considered as
material joint ventures of the Group and are accounted for

using the equity method.

Wonder Signs — B EZER AT #HH
FEA(SRBIWSER]) 2 & 5% # -

Ease Mindm — R BER A R] - HH#
(S ERIEMER ) 2 23R #E -

EZERELEY/IELTARR - XM
RABHEERFE -

WSEEMEMEBRERAEEZEZS
Lk WEBmAARK -
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. REGE X (&)

(Continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TERH|AMWSEE KEME B 2 8 %5 E B

information in respect of the WS Group and the EM Group

reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated

financial statements:

RHEGEMBREIAZKREEHK

WS Group WSH
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE—)N\#
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FH&ET
Deferred tax assets classified DERIERBEEL
as non-current asset BELERIBEE 10,740 -
Properties under development ERPYE 2,778,530 2,377,623
Prepayments, other receivables and TEfTFRIE - B B RIE R
other assets HEmEE 45,316 3,021
Cash and cash equivalents ReEkBeFRIEE 54,823 11,848
Current assets RENEE 2,878,669 2,392,492
Trade payables FE - BR 3K 44,132 1,900
Other payables and accruals EmEARERETER 75,439 1,093
Due to the shareholders FE AR R 3R I8 110,000 9,812
Contract liabilities aHa’E 40,864 -
Current liabilities mEAE 270,435 12,805
Bank borrowing classified HEERBBEZCRITEE
as a non-current liability 1,228,216 954,095
Net assets B EFEE 1,390,758 1,425,592
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in B AREB RS LD E 2
the joint venture: R ¥ AR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership N B B FEFTE LE ) 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint ARNEBEEEZEDE
venture BEFE 695,379 712,796
Loan to the WS Group BERTFWSEH 111,059 4,912
Carrying amount of the investment KREZEREE 806,438 717,708
Loss and total comprehensive loss AFEEEBEEREEEEBAEE
for the year 1,729
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. REGE X (&)

(Continued)

EM Group EM&
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTERT FHET
Deferred tax assets classified DEAIERBEEZ
as non-current asset ELEFTEEE 8,964 -
Properties under development ERERAPYE 3,245,094 2,727,708
Prepayments, other receivables and TEfTFRIE - B BRI R
other assets EMEE 174,572 2,996
Cash and cash equivalents BekIRE&ERIER 61,776 8,923
Current assets mEEE 3,481,442 2,739,627
Trade payables FE - BR 3K 82,676 16,236
Other payables and accruals HiERNREBEREFTER 141,574 -
Due to the shareholders FE A% R 3R IE 341,330 284,942
Contract liabilities EHEE 203,766 =
Current liabilities e aE 769,346 301,178
Bank borrowing classified HEERBBEZRITEE
as a non-current liability 1,689,973 1,361,967
Net assets BEEFE 1,031,087 1,076,482
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest MAEBREELEY
in the joint venture: MR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership RKEFEHEREIE O 40% 40%
Group’s share of net assets of AEERELEEREZ
the joint venture BEEFE 412,434 430,593
Loan to the EM Group BEHXTEME 166,569 265,049
Carrying amount of the investment KEZEREE 579,003 695,642
Loss and total comprehensive loss AFEEEEREZHEERAR
for the year 76
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18. LOAN RECEIVABLE

B 35 ¥R R Y & ()

31 March 2019
—2-AF=A=+-8

18. EWER

2019 2018
—E-nEF —B-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T8 T

Loan receivable, secured (note 33(i)) fE U B 2 A EE33())

The loan receivable is stated at amortised cost with
an effective interest rate of 0.7% per annum over
12-month HIBOR. The loan receivable has a principal
amount of HK$600,000,000 and is due for repayment
on 27 November 2019. The carrying amount of the loan
receivable approximates to its fair value.

2019 impairment consideration

As at 31 March 2019, the loan receivable of
HK$600,000,000 was within its credit period and
the balance was categorised within Stage 1 for the
measurement of expected credit losses.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date by considering the expected credit losses, which are
estimated by applying the probability of default approach
with reference to the risks of default of the borrower. As
at 31 March 2019, the loan receivable of HK$600,000,000
was secured by certain equity interest of a company,
which has been taken into account as the mitigating effect
in the ECL analysis. The loss allowance provision for loan
receivable was not significant as at 31 March 2019.

2018 impairment consideration

At 31 March 2018, the loan receivable of HK$600,000,000
that was neither past due nor impaired relate to a
purchaser of joint venture for whom there was no recent
history of default.

FEWE FIZ12@ AT BRITRERE M
BB FEFEOT7TRAEE K AT EE - FEU
B 2 &4 %8 5600,000,000/8 7T 0 A
T-NF+—A-+tBEHESE  -BK
ERxzEEEHEAEAFTERS -

—E-NEFERERE

RZZE—-HAE=A=+—8B EWEX
600,000,000 T3 R 7 12 & B R I 4% 64
RErERHEEBREIEAE —BEK -

BEDTNEHREBHET EFE R
ERERENIEESNELEERAN
BHOERBRELGBF2EHRAEERSE -
MN_EBE-AE=A=+—8B ERER
600,000,000/ 7T i — Al 2 A Ay & T I i
ERER  WRBHEEBESWHIEA
BREZETUNERE R_ZTE—NF=A
—t+t—HBRERERAFRNEBEREY
TEKX -

—EF-NFERENE
RZZE-—NF=ZA=+—8 ' LRBHF

#2518 2 F& I & 600,000,000 7T Ty £
ROVEEZNCHEIAELEEREH -
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19. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES 19.

BEMNRIE - HtbBUWRER H it

AND OTHER ASSETS

aE

2019 2018
—E-AEF ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&E T
Prepayments AT R IE 75,887 348,873
Deposits Be 93,371 74,402
Other receivables (note) e Uk B (B RE) 620,131 1,047,695
789,389 1,470,970
Less: Prepayments, deposits and B SEEREBEEZ

other receivables classified FERRE Ee Rk
as non-current assets H b fE UK FRIR (402,078) (7,320)
Portion classified as current assets TIERENBE 28D 387,311 1,463,650

Note:

The balance of the Group’s prepaid sales commission as at 1 April
2018 and 31 March 2019 were reclassified to cost of obtaining
contracts upon the adoption of HKFRS 15 as at 1 April 2018 (note
20).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s sales proceeds from the pre-
sale of properties under development placed in escrow accounts
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$301,669,000 were
pledged to secure the Group’s general banking facilities (note 26).
This loan was settled during the year and the pledge was released
accordingly.

2019 impairment consideration

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent deposits with
vendors and receivables from counterparties which have no
history of default. The financial assets included in the above
balances were not overdue and categorised in Stage 1 for the
measurement of expected credit losses. Where applicable, an
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering the probability of default and the timing and amount
of future cash flows. Given the Group has not experienced any
significant credit losses in the past and holds sufficient collateral
for material receivable balances, the directors of the Company
considered that the allowance for ECLs for these deposits and
receivables is not significant.

2018 impairment consideration

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances relate to the
receivables for which there was no recent history of default. The
carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other receivables
approximate to their fair values.

GEX

AEBR-_Z-N\FOA-RAR-_Z-NF=
A=+—HZBRNHEMREABN T —/N\F
WMA—RRAEENBREERE15REREIHN
DR RERE KA (M E20) -

RZF-NEF=ZA=+—08  AEEFENH
ERPREBEERRTVENHEMSREAELR
fk ™ f£301,669,000/8 7T - EEMIE LA EH
—RIRTTRE M ER (FIFE26) - ZERRER
EE R R E AR

—E-NEFRERE

RekHEMBKRBIERET 2RERKRE
BERBNLBZRXHF2RKFE -FtAL
BEHRzeREEYERAY YOBRAER
HEEBERZF ER -REEARSAHES
BEABERRARAEREZHRA RS RET
REDH (HER) - ERAEEBERFER
EAEEBRYREANRKRFTIBEHRITARRE
BEfR ARBEERRAZFERE REKK
FEBHZEHREEBERBELTEK -

—E-N\FRHERE

NEEEMEBRLMNE -FFALAEHRZE
MEEERMNVBEOLERZEBKRAEER -
ENFR e REMBEFARZREERE
NPERE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

20. COST OF OBTAINING CONTRACTS

Cost of obtaining contracts represented the prepaid
sales commission paid in connection with the sales of
properties. The Group has capitalised the amounts paid
and will charge them to profit or loss when the revenue
from the related property sale is recognised and are
included in selling and distribution expenses at that time.
During the year ended 31 March 2019, sales commission
of HK$87,448,000 was charged to profit or loss.

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

B 35 ¥R R Y & ()

31 March 2019
—2-AF=A=+-8

20. ERAHKA

ERANRAERHEEMEM AN
HEME - ARECENEAX NSRBI
RABRE Y 5 85 & T W A BERR I 5t A 85
ERDHERAXHHEHEEBENBERNR -
BE_T-NF=A=t—RHLFE"
87,448,000/ L Z HEME X B BR -

21, ReRBEELEREIER

2019 2018
—E-AEF —ZT—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cash and bank balances Re RRTTLE 1,878,905 1,658,849
Less: amounts included in assets B EFADEARIELE
classified as held for sale BEZRE(MF22)
(note 22) (5,046)
Cash and cash equivalents as statedin R=A=+—BE&E& ¥ B
the consolidated statement of financial KRR ZEE R
position as at 31 March He&ERMEE 1,878,905 1,553,803

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and
cash equivalents approximate to their fair values.

FRROZASBEARTERMNEZ
TR ERDNE - B EREFERR
AEBZHNBSREME  EF —BE=E
ATE - WIRE B 2 58 37 5N X BRERA
B RITEB R EMERFRARLOYLE
BROLBZRIFEBRT HekReF
RIEER 2 REAEEEAFERSE -
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22. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 22. "EABELHECEEREDE
SALE AND LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ARFELHEEEEZEBZAE
ASSOCIATED WITH THE ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

2018
HK$’000
—E-N\F
FHET
Assets classified as held for sale PEABELHECEE
Assets of disposal subsidiaries classified as held D HEABIEHEZHEWB AR EE
for sale
— Oriental Sino Investments Limited — RERLEBRAA(RE])
(“Oriental Sino”) 191,992
— Precious Investments Limited (“Precious”) — Precious Investments Limited
(Precious]) 69,163
— Shiny World Investment Limited — HEREBR AR XE])
(“Shiny World”) 52,311
— Wang To Investments Limited (“Wang To”) — Wang To Investments Limited
(fTwang Tol) 40,125
— Antic Investment Limited (“Antic”) — ZEIEEFER AR ([LH]) 84,891
— PT Harvest Holdings Limited (“PT Harvest”) — 8 ERBERAB(EE]) 326,232
764,714
Liabilities directly associated with HoBABELELEEEEZER
the assets classified as held for sale ZB8E
Liabilities of disposal subsidiaries classified SEARELECHENBRATARE
as held for sale
— Oriental Sino — B 77,116
— Precious — Precious 39,309
— Shiny World — St HE 18,753
— Wang To — Wang To 28,369
— Antic — 16,900
— PT Harvest — g 130,875

311,322
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22. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 22. PEARBEHEZEERESE
SALE AND LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ABFHEEEEENEBZEE
ASSOCIATED WITH THE ASSETS (&)

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)
The assets and liabilities of the above subsidiaries B ARARRZE—NF=ZA=+—
(excluding inter-company loan which is eliminated on ACEERBR(TERERGE ARIEH
consolidation) as at 31 March 2018 are as follows: HrEEBRARBEZTONOT ¢
Oriental Sino Precious  Shiny World Wang To Antic  PT Harvest Total
RE i 4 L | @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tén Thn ThExn ThEx ThEx TEn
(Note (a)) (Note (a)) (Note (a)) (Note (al) (Note (b)) (Note (c))
(Krika) GEE) (GEE) (Fri¥a) (Fr3Eb) (K3¥c)
Assets EE
Investment properties REME 190,000 69,000 52,000 39,000 83,800 324,466 758,266
Deferred tax assets EEHEEE = = = = = 455 455
Prepayments, depositsand B ZE 4R
other receivables Hit WA - 28 - 12 61 722 823
Tax recoverable e E 89 - - 35 - - 124
Cash and cash equivalents BeRhBeERER 1,903 135 3 1,078 1,030 589 5,046
Assets of disposal subsidiaries S EABELE Y
clasified as held for sale HEWBAREE 191,992 69,163 52,311 40,125 84,891 326,232 764,714
Liabilties EF
Other payables and accruals — H{tERFARENBR 200 2 90 30 122 8 478
Deposits received and BhiEe RBYNHE
receipt in advance 4,018 213 366 300 65 - 5,022
Interest-bearing bank loans FRBTER 71,050 39,007 18,240 28,000 15,810 130,867 302,974
Tax payable ERHE - - 23 - 6 - 29
Deferred tax liabilties ELRERR 1848 1 34 39 897 - 2,819
Liabilties of disposal PERRIELEL
subsidiaries classified HENBARAGE
as held for sale 77,116 39,309 18,753 28,369 16,900 130,875 311,322
Net agsets directly associated ~ BHENBAFEE
with the disposal BB EERE
subsidiaries 114,876 29,854 33,558 11,756 67,991 195,357 453,392
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22. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE AND LIABILITIES DIRECTLY
ASSOCIATED WITH THE ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

(Continued)

Notes:

(@)  On 7 February 2018, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Holdings Limited
(“WYT”), a fellow subsidiary to the Company, pursuant
to which the Group disposed of the entire issued capital
in, and all shareholder’s loans owed by, Oriental Sino,
Precious, Shiny World and Wang To, all being indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, at a total
consideration of HK$350,000,000. The transaction was
completed on 25 April 2018.

Further details of this disposal are set out in the joint
announcement of WYT and the Company dated 7 February
2018 and the circular of the Company dated 29 March
2018.

(o)  On 29 March 2018, the Group entered into a provisional
sale and purchase agreement with an independent third
party, pursuant to which the Group would dispose of
the entire issued capital in and assign the benefit of the
shareholder’s loan owed by Antic, an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, at a consideration of
HK$83,800,000. The transaction was completed on 31 July
2018.

(c) In March 2018, the Group put the property held by PT
Harvest for tender and on 12 April 2018, the Group has
entered into a provisional sale and purchase agreement
with another independent third party, pursuant to which
the Group disposed of its entire issued capital in and
shareholder’s loan owed by PT Harvest for a consideration
HK$324,466,000. The transaction was completed on 23
August 2018.

23. TRADE PAYABLES
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23. BMAERX

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end REZAMFE  RWEHRZEAERR
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as FRieoMWOT :
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hE —T—)\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET T T
Within 30 days 30H A 118,043 169,187

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and have
an average term of 30 days. The carrying amounts of the
trade payables approximate to their fair values.

& RR KT A B ﬁﬁ?i’ﬂEf‘f,HHi%SO
B - BNRES Zﬁﬁﬁfﬁiﬁiﬁi\ NP EBE
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

24.

B 35 ¥R R Y & ()
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HttENREARETER

2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHBxT T
Other payables H b FE A 318 182,628 167,229
Accruals FEET & H 26,404 30,543
209,032 197,772

Less: Other payables classified W AEERBIBEZ
as non-current liabilities H th JE 5 5B (13,184) (164,958)
Current portion B[ EA 26 195,848 32,814

Except for the balances with an aggregate amount of
HK$164,958,000 (2018: HK$164,958,000) which are
non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and due
in November 2019, these balances are non-trade in
nature, unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms
of repayment. The carrying amounts of the above other
payables approximate to their fair values.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract liabilities represent advances received from
buyers in connection with the Group’s pre-sale of
properties. The balance of receipts in advance in the prior
year was reclassified from receipts in advance to contract
liabilities upon the adoption of HKFRS 15 as at 1 April
2018. The net decrease in contract liabilities was mainly
due to the addition of contract sales of properties during
the year offset by the delivery of properties in the current
year.

25.

B & 164,958,000 T(=Z & — \F :
164,958,000 L) BIEE 5 E - E K
BB ER-ZE—NFt+— AR
BN REEHRBIFESMHE - BEA
R EBEETENRY - FMHEMENKE
ZHEEMEEEATEES -

BHNEE

EMAEERAREZEENERAESN
BEKBMEFKE -R-_ZE-N\FHA—A
RABEMBHRSEAFZ165RR - L—F
BZRWRBESRBERREEHR DR
EAMBE - ANAEEREFEDTIEH
REAMEGNBEERNRAFRENE
AP e



Wang On Properties Limited Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt %5 3R R Y & ()

31 March 2019
—®-AF=A=1-A

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26.

LOANS

Current:
Bank loans — secured

Bank loans — unsecured

Long term bank loans

04
BEN - AER

BEH - BER

Contractual
interest rate (%)

ARNE%)

HIBOR+(1.2-1.79)

BRRTRERE

+(1.2-1.79)

HIBOR+(1.95-2.05)

ERRTRAERE
+(1.95-2,05)

EEPS S 5t W HIBOR+(1.5-1.55

repayable on demand — 7 - FERA
secured
Other loans — unsecured EER - 2HA
Non-current; B

Bank loans — secured

Bank loans — unsecured

Other loans — unsecured

RTER - AER

BTER - BER

EpER - BER

Total

it

ERRORERE
+(1.5-1.55)

HIBOR+(1.2-1.79)

ERROARKS
+1.2-1.79)
HIBOR+2.05
ERROARKSR
+2.0

6

2019
ZE-0E
Maturity

AR

2019 or on
demand
“E-NEY
REX

2019 or on
demand
“E-NEq
REX

On demand

BREX

2021-2024
“8--%%
It Sayuk3
2022
—E-_CE

2022
—E-CE

HK$'000

TR

664,834

182,412

412,982

1,260,228

1,356,146

1,234,065

181,570

2,771,781

4,038,009

RITRHEMER
2018
It it
Contractual Maturity HK$'000
interest rate (%)
BAHE(%) HHER AL
HIBOR+(1.2-2.0) / 2018 or on 400,508
Prime rate-2.75 demand
ERROAERE —3-N\FH
#1220/ S
REENE-215
HIBOR+(1.95-2.05) 2019 or on 76,746
demand
EERORERE —T-nEd
+1.95-2.05) REX
HIBOR+(1.5-2.0/  On demand 46,756
Prime rate-2.75
BRAROTAERS BEX
+(1.5-2.0)/
FEENE-275
6 2018 13,397
“E-)\%
537,402
HIBOR+(1.2-1.67) 2019-2024 990,576
EEROAERE —T-NEEZ
H12-167) -B-mE
HIBOR+2.05 2022 1,406,477
BERNRARRE -%Izf
+2.06
2,397,063
2,934,455
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26. st E8 R TR EME K &)
LOANS (Continued)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T THET
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans repayable: ARNUTRHEEEZ
RITEN :
Within one year or on demand (note) —FRNEIRE S (HEEE) 1,260,228 524,005
In the second year $_4F 1,200,570 1,156,520
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=ZFERF
(BHEERWE) 1,389,641 1,240,533
3,850,439 2,921,058
Other loans repayable: AR TREEEZ
HEfE R
Within one year or on demand —FAREEK 13,397
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE=ZFERF
(BREEWSE) 187,570 -
4,038,009 2,934,455
Note: As further explained in note 42 to the financial statements, Mz @ BRINBFFESRRMIFT423E — St - &K
the Group’s term loans with an aggregate amount of £ EH A $£412,982,0008 L (=& — )\
HK$412,982,000 (2018: HK$46,756,000) containing a & 1 46,756,0008 70) Z T HE R (H
repayment on-demand clause have been classified as BEREKXEZEGRCIHERTHA
current liabilities. For the purpose of the above analysis, the BemblioTms  ZEEHTA
loans are included within current interest-bearing bank loans BNERRT BIRITE R RIIME—F A IR
and analysed into bank loans repayable within one year or EXREBZRITER -

on demand.
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26.

LOANS (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the maturity profile of
interest-bearing loans based on the scheduled repayment

EI‘_

dates set out in the loan agreements is as follows:

SAEBTREMER &)

RBEMR -  RERHHRETERED -
ARERZBMBERAOT

2019 2018
—E-NhE —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET TATT

Bank loans repayable:

ARUATHEEEZ

RITENR -
Within one year —F R 847,246 477,249
In the second year F_F 277,252 878,382
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZERF
(@?E%F M) 2,725,941 1,385,649
Beyond five years hF1#& - 179,778
3,850,439 2,921,058
Other loans repayable: ARNATREEEZ
H A&
Within one year —F R 13,397
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZERF
(ﬁﬁéfﬁﬁﬁ) 187,570 -
187,570 13,397
4,038,009 2,934,455
Notes: Bt 5
(a) Certain bank loans of the Group are secured by the () AEEETRITEFALAEE T RIE
Group’s land and buildings (note 13), investment properties F(M:F13) REVELRHZZREY
and certain rental income generated therefrom (note X¥ELEZAETHSWA(HE4) B
14), properties under development (note 15), properties R E (W15 BHEFEME(HE
held for sale (note 16), sales proceeds from the pre-sale 16) BEERITMEZHEMBRIE
of properties under development (notes 19 and 25) and (MisE19K25) R AR QR A& T M B A &)
share charges in respect of the equity interests of certain ZRRRBEE R B (MY 5E1) /B IR -
subsidiaries of the Company (note 1).
(b)  All bank loans of the Group bear interest at floating interest b)) AEBZHABERITERHZZFHHE
rates. B oo
() All other loans of the Group represent the loans advanced ) AEBFEHEMETIEAEEETHE
from the non-controlling shareholders of certain subsidiaries NAIZIFERBRERBNZERK
of the Group.
(d)  The carrying amounts of the bank and other loans of the ) AEERERTEREGEREOBERAATF

Group approximate to their fair values.

BERE -
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27. DEFERRED TAX 27. EEHIE
The components of deferred tax liabilities and assets FAREHRBEEREE CAKDT :

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related
Notes depreciation
BHEBREZ
B 5% mERE
HK$’000
T T
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FMHA—H 2,875
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FRANBEREBEZELERE
during the year 10 689
Included in liabilities of disposal A HEAERBEEHEZLEE
subsidiaries classified as held for sale B AT & & 22 (2,819
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R-ZE-—NF=ZA=Z+—HK
—E-N\FHA—-H 745
Included in liabilities of disposal RZZE—N\FWMA—HFA
subsidiaries classified as held for PEABELEZHE
sale as at 1 April 2018 MEARARE 22 2,819
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FRMEBEERZELHE
during the year 10 1,074
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWE QT 33 (3,178)

At 31 March 2019 RZE—hhF=ZA=+—H 1,460
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27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

27. EEEBIE (&)

Deferred tax assets EEBIEBEE
Losses available
for offsetting
against future
Notes taxable profits
T 3K 84 R 2R
EREH R 2
B 5 &8
HK$'000
TET
At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—+FMWA—H 10,950
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FARNFAEBREZELERTE
during the year 10 7,642
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B8 — R BT B A A
that is not a business (TMER—IHET) 32 455
Included in assets of disposal FFADBEABIEHEZHE
subsidiaries classified as WBRREE
held for sale 22 (455)
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZE—NF=Z=A=+—HEK
—“E-NFWMA—H 18,592
Included in assets of disposal RZE—NFHA—HEA
subsidiaries classified as SHERBIELHEZEE
held for sale as at 1 April 2018 WBRREE 22 455
Deferred tax credited to profit or FRAABRIEZELHE
loss during the year 10 3,994
At 31 March 2019 R-_B-NAF=ZA=+—H 23,041

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$118,889,000 (2018: HK$105,822,000),
subject to the agreement of the Inland Revenue
Department, that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time

and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

AEBERBELFHEEIBL118,889,000
B (ZF— )\F 105,822,000 7t) (B
RARRIEBREERE) » AJERBIEEE
BEEBZ AR ZAKRERTEN - A%
EYERZSEERRELCHBEE &
HRZEEBRIR —BEREREEREZH
BARES  AWRAETUERERRT G
Ml AER B EEE -
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28. SHARE CAPITAL

28.

B 35 ¥R R Y & ()

31 March 2019
—2-AF=A=+-8

Authorised:
50,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.001 each

RTE

50,000,000,000 (% & & m &
0.001 BTz EBK

Issued and fully paid:
15,200,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.001 each

BREITRAML
15,200,000,0000% & A% M (&
0.0018 T 2 E A%

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group. Share options may be granted
to any director or proposed director (whether executive
or non-executive, including independent non-executive
director), employee or proposed employee (whether full-
time or part-time), secondee, any holder of securities
issued by any member of the Group, any person or entity
that provides research, development or other technology
support or advisory, consultancy, professional or other
services to any member of the Group or any substantial
shareholder or company controlled by a substantial
shareholder, or any company controlled by one or
more persons belonging to any of the above classes of
participants. The Share Option Scheme became effective
on 9 August 2016 and, unless otherwise terminated earlier
by shareholders in a general meeting, will remain in force
for a period of 10 years from that date.

Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide

incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

29.

N

2019 2018
—®E-hE —T-)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FB T T
50,000
15,200

BREE

AR ERAEREKES(E K ES
g BENRRHEAKEZKRNIELER
BZzeER2BELTRBIEH - B
BARTEANESHREES (TR
HIEHNTT BREBIUFNITES) EE
BMEFEE (TwmEBKFE) AT
BT AKEETAXERBMEBETESZ
EARAA  ARKETAKE QAR
o - RMBEREMRMIRLER - &
B BXREMRBZEMALHER
FEMEZRRIATERRENZA
Al BAEREA - RHIA LB A ERAR
ABEATESZRF - BRESIN =
T-RENANBER » BRIFRERNBIR
RELIRPERILE - BRI EZ BB+
FHEANETER -

B &

BREAIENRMEAREER ZK
DELHEMZABERBZRBELTRAR
B -
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (cContinued) 29, BBRRESTE (&)

Maximum number of shares available for
subscription

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the maximum
number of share options that may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company is an amount, upon their exercise, not in
aggregate exceeding 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time, excluding any shares issued on
the exercise of share options. The total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the number
of shares in issue, as at the date of approval of the Share
Option Scheme limit or as refreshed from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant (except for a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director or
any of their respective associate) under the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of such limit must be
separately approved by shareholders with such eligible
participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company (or any of
their respective associates) must be approved by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company
(excluding any independent non-executive director who
is the grantee of the option). Where any grant of share
options to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director (or any of their respective
associates) will result in the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of share options already
granted and to be granted to such person under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the shares in issue, and having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares at each date
of grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such further grant of
share options is required to be approved by shareholders
in a general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.
Any change in the terms of a share option granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director (or any of their respective associate) is also
required to be approved by shareholders.

AHRB2ROHE LR

RIZBAIERT 8 - BBBETE RARA
TR EMER RS ARG 2B RER
BER ARZEBEREETRERSHT
BBEARR TR EITRANZ230% @ HF
PEt RN ERBETERREIT ZER
Befn o RIRRERHERT 8 S X (] H A 5t 811
M2 FRBRBREEITER - AIRERITZR
MEBAa A TFBBEN IR RES S
RBE(KXITKEEHMRF) B2 EHITR
8B Z210% °

EBHEZBRAERE

REBRES - £EATZEAHE -
AREEREZRTTEAERS2EE(BRE
ERRABUFBTESHRESBZE
B8 AN 2 B fn 8B ER AR AR
EAREEETRND Z1%BR - HiBB
ZRE AE-—IREEMERER - &
ARERBUMAE MEBSERSEE
RREZHMBAARERE -

N

BYARBEE FETHRABRFTER
R(ABEEEB2EMBEAN) 2 ERE
WBEKARRNR B IERITESIECHE
BEMNEABRERRAZBILIENTT
BF) WEENEMBRETEZRER
BIYFNTES(IRESE2ERNHBE
MNBEEREBEERBPRERHBHZEM
TZEAHE - BREEREFIRAR
AERMAMERESERAZEALTER
HEBREcEREBEETE B3
SR ARITEBRE)ETEREZEITEE
BIT2BRMHBABAEEBBEEBRTRGEZ
01%  UEBEARFTRZSEHBEEHZ
W mERE - £ {E 8 B5,000,000%
7T BURYR ETAR A - E— IR H B R
BERBERARERGIAE - RTEERR
FBIUERTES(HFEESE 2 A
BAZEBREZGRMEEMES - K
HAEBIRERE o
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Basis of determining the exercise price

The option price per share payable on the exercise of an
option is determined by the directors, provided that it shall
be at least the higher of:

()  the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotation sheet issued by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange at the date of offer of grant (which is
deemed to be the date of grant if the offer for the
grant of a share option is accepted by the eligible
person), which must be a business day; and

(i)  the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of grant,
provided that the option price per share shall in no
event be less than the nominal amount of one share.

An offer for the grant of share options must be accepted
within 30 days from the date on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of a share
option to the Company on acceptance of the offer of the
grant is HK$1.00.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share option has been granted since the adoption of
the Share Option Scheme.

B 35 ¥R R Y & ()

31 March 2019
—2-AF=A=+-8

29. Bl ESTE(2)

BEETEEZEE

THEERESATINZERRNOZEB
BEBEHESRE  HEAZLRTIM
ERZ2BEE

() BHRLEHM(FAEBALEMAR
HEREZZD  ARKEERLA
B BBARERB)ENETEHR
PRz AR ZRDEHE &

(i) BEXREHNRLAHAMLEAELXASH
REBBRAATE 2 B®RE 2 B&D
FHWHE - ETRRD 2 BRE
BEREEMNBERL T IEER — KK
Pz mEE -

HEBREZEHVNERERZELBE
HESOR MEEZ M o BIREAR ARBEMNIR
HENR  BRARQFZH1.008 7T °

BERELTE THAEARRKRE RNER
RAGEREZHERN -

B 40 8 IR AR £ ) A TR 4 O L A 1
B AE -
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30. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 124
of this annual report.

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

Contributed surplus

The Group’s contributed surplus comprises the
deemed capital contribution arising from (i) the
difference between the consideration amounted to
HK$496,443,000 and the aggregate shareholder’s
loans amounted to HK$2,047,989,000 assigned
by Earnest Spot to the Company pursuant to the
reorganisation of the Company in connection with
the listing of the shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange (the “Reorganisation”) and (i) the
differences between the considerations and the
net asset value of the subsidiaries disposed of to
WOG and its subsidiaries (but excluding the Group)
pursuant to the Reorganisation.

Capital reserve

The Group’s capital reserve represents the difference
between the consideration and the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests acquired or disposed of.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the total consideration transferred
for the acquisitions of subsidiaries through business
combinations under common control over the
carrying amount of the assets acquired, liabilities
accrued and pre-acquisition reserves combined by
the Group.

30. &

FRASBRAFEREBEFRE 2B

BARBEHEN -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BEXAESR

REB EHNABABBRERER
BETHE&EEZIEE (RESHE
496,443,000 /& 7T #Earnest SpotiR
BEAQARBRODARBIAM ETE S
ZARAER(TEADNEZFAR
A2 B R E 342 %62,047,989,0007%
LBz EZE RINREHARIEE
HARLEREMB AR (TRIEASE
BE)LEWNBRARICEEFBE LA
EH o

EXfEE

AEBZEARBEREEDKE
HHEZFEREEREAEZAZ
EE

CRA R

AEBEZEHREBEREARES
BREGAHKBNBRREREZ
MREEMKBEE RFEER
AEEAHF 2 WBAMHERE 2 REE
ZHEZZH -
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31. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 31.
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-

controlling interests are set out below:

B 35 ¥R R Y & ()

31 March 2019
—2-AF=A=+-8

BEEAFEZERESZHBIESR
B B 2 F

BEBEBANFEREDZZASENE QA

HBEHINOT

Percentage of equity interest held by non-

controlling interests:

New Rich

Grandwall

Golden Noble Investments Limited
(“Golden Noble”)

Profit/(loss) for the year allocated
to non-controlling interests:
New Rich
Grandwall
Golden Noble

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests:
New Rich
Grandwall

Accumulated balances of non-controlling

interests at the reporting date:
New Rich

Grandwall

Golden Noble

2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
R EEFE
fEiEE D
e 40%
= A 40%
Golden Noble Investments
Limited ([ Golden
Noble]) N/A
2019 2018
—ZE—-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
IR ENER 2
FREH,(FBE)
Be B 21,585 135,959
SEl 309,047 (41)
Golden Noble (9] -
BT IR AR B
e (150,000) =
= Al (276,000) =
IR EEAREBHZ
Rtk
i 131,535
= (7,358)

Golden Noble




Wang On Properties Limited Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt %5 3R R Y & ()

31 March 2019
—®-AF=A=1-A

31. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (Continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

2019 —E-hEF

Revenue A

Total expenses EEECE

Profit/(loss) and total FRREF(EB) R
comprehensive income/ 2EkE(EBE)
(loss) for the year R

Current assets mENE E

Current liabilities mEBE

Non-current liabilities FRBEME

Net cash flows from/(used in) & &S, (FAEA)

operating activities ReEmeEFH
Net cash flows from/(used in) Bt & EBFTS, (FrA)
financing activities RemneFHE

Net increase in cash and cash & KIH & ZFAEH
equivalents I HNF 58

3. BEERFERERZ2HIHES
B A F ()

TR LB AR ZHBEMRE -
FRESBEANKEMNEE AR R R Y

#

Golden Noble
HK$’000
F& T

(2,289)

(2,289)

1,286,409
(714,608)
(574,163)

(878,833)

884,734

New Rich
B
HK$°000
THET
213,900
(159,938)

53,962

163,088
(155,287)

551,916

(409,505)

142,411

Grandwall
=
HK$’000
TE T
2,609,684
(1,837,068)

772,616

272,420
208,197

804,703

(588,194)

216,509
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31. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS (Continued)

31.

B 35 ¥R R Y & ()

31 March 2019
—E-hAF=ZA=1+—H

BEEREEREZZHB2ES
NG -9,

New Rich Grandwall
BE 5 ESE
HK$'000 HK$'000
2018 —ZE—)N\F FET FHET
Revenue WA 1,329,255 -
Total expenses > @58 (989,358) (101)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive FRHRF (BB R
income/(loss) for the year 2EME(EE)EHE 339,897 (101)
Current assets mEEE 601,408 1,876,328
Non-current assets EMBEE = 3,634
Current liabilities mEE & (272,569) (1,898,356)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating B ERE (FR)
activities REMRETFHE 30,477 (8,208)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing BMEEBAE,(FTA)
activities ReEmEFHE (44,579) 8,000
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents H & RIR £ %R IEB
W F R (14,102) (208)




Wang On Properties Limited Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S 7% & My = (3

31 March 2019
—®-AF=A=1-A

32. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES THAT 32. WEKNB AR (TEH—HEK)
ARE NOT A BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE-_E—N\E=A=+—HLEE
The net assets acquired by the Group during the year are AEBRFRARBZEEFENOT
as follows:
Goodtech PT Harvest Loyal Pioneer Wise Ocean Total
BE g8 i 14 P 45t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAEL FTAEL AL TAEL TAEL
(note 39(c)) (note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))

(Ff £39(c)) GEE) (K15 (b) (H15E(c))

Net assets acquired: kg EEFE
Property, plant and mE - BEREE

equipment - - - 94,994 94,994
Investment properties REME - 274,549 - - 274,549
Deferred tax assets EEMBEEE - 455 - - 455
Prepayments, other B A -

receivables and H & U 5UE R

other assets Hi g & 1,540 847 - 32 2,419
Properties under BRYME

development - - 2,575,195 - 2,575,195
Bank balances RITEH 2,008 - 5 - 2,013
Other payables and HiEAFER

accruals B ER (782) - - - (782)
Tax payable JERHIE (37) = = = (37)
Interest-bearing bank HERTER

loan - - (1,105,300) - (1,105,300)

2,729 275,851 1,469,900 95,026 1,843,506
Deemed contribution BIERZ 2 FE
from WOG 71 - - - 7
2,800 275,851 1,469,900 95,026 1,843,577
Satisfied by: A%

Cash Bné 2,800 275,851 1,469,900 95,026 1,843,577
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32. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES THAT 32. WEKB AR (TEH—HEK)

ARE NOT A BUSINESS (continued) (%)
For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued) E-E—-N\E=ZA=+—-HLEE
(%)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions EEkESEEEERAT(EE]) -
of Goodtech Management Limited (“Goodtech”), PT S 4Rl EISY S IF AR E AR
Harvest, Loyal Pioneer and Wise Ocean are as follows:
Goodtech PT Harvest Loyal Pioneer ~ Wise Ocean Total
BE £2 # 1 3 Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
THET FHET THET THET TAET
(note 39(c)) (note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))

(Ff5£39(c)) GER) (Ff (b)) GER)

Cash consideration BerE (2,800) (275,851) (1,469,900) (95,026) (1,843,577)
Deposits paid as at R-ZE—+F=A
31 March 2017 =Zt-HEM[Z
ge - 27,455 864,430 - 891,885
Bank balances acquired i 88 7 3R 1745 64 2,008 = 5 = 2,013
Refund of partial BHREZER
consideration - - 6,136 - 6,136

Net outflows of cash FAFRREED

and cash equivalents EREREZ

included in cash BekBeER

flows from investing BREZREFESE

activities for the year (792) (248,396) (699,329) (95,026) (943,543)
Transaction costs of the st AR LEKHE

acquisition included Hemgz

in cash flows from WX SKA

operating activities - (675) (2,170) (332) (3,177

(792) (249,071) (601,499) (95,358) (946,720)




Wang On Properties Limited Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S 7% & My = (3

31 March 2019
—®-AF=A=1-A

32. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES THAT 32. WEKNB AR (TEH—HEK)
ARE NOT A BUSINESS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 20 February 2017, the Group entered into a provisional
sale and purchase agreement with two independent third
parties to acquire the entire equity interest of PT Harvest,
which is engaged in property investment in Hong Kong,
and the related shareholders’ loans, for a total cash
consideration of HK$275,851,000. The transaction was
completed on 25 April 2017.

On 31 March 2017, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with another two independent third
parties to acquire the entire equity interest in Loyal Pioneer,
which is engaged in property development in Hong Kong,
and the related shareholders’ loans, for a total cash
consideration of HK$1,469,900,000. The transaction was
completed on 19 May 2017.

On 6 February 2018, the Group completed the acquisition
of the entire equity interest in Wise Ocean for an adjusted
consideration of HK$95,026,000. Wise Ocean holds a
residential property in Hong Kong.

The above acquisitions have been accounted for by the
Group as acquisitions of assets as the entities acquired by
the Group do not constitute a business.

(%)

8=

/43 )
(A5 )

GER

(@)

—E-NFE=ZA=+—BHLEE

RZEBE—+F_A-+H KAEEHEH
EBUE="FIVEBEERS  UE
8 & R {8275,851,0008 T B 2 &2 (K
EBENEMEREBER) 22 HBRERM
BREER ZBRIER_ZT—tF
WMA-+HHBTK

R-EBE—+F=ZA=+—0 A&EEHEA
BOMBBIE=ZATIVEEHE - N
438 £ {8 1,469,900,0005% 7T U B $2 i
(REBRBEVEFREB) Z2HK
EREERREER ZBEIXHERZ
—+tFRATHABETEK

RZE—NFE_AXB  AEEULEHA
K 1B95,026,00078 TR KBS ¥ 2
2ERE - EERBEERTE —HEEYD
%o

AEBE/BERBBERARESLEER
E A/AKBKRBZERBY TEKR A

E

o
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33. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. HEWE QA
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ2-_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE
Details of the net assets of the subsidiaries disposed AFEEHENNBRRAEEFERIK
of during the current year and the financial impacts are TEFBEHRDT

summarised below:

Oriental Shiny PT
Sino  Precious World  Wang To Antic Harvest New Earth Total
RE *E ZH 22 GilES fast

HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
TR THER TR TR THER TR TR TR

(Note (a)) (Note (a)) (Note (a)) (Note(a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c)) (Note (d))

(H&E@)  (M&E@)  (ME@)  (HW&EE) (WD)  (KEe) (&)

Net assets disposed of: B HEEEEHE

Investment properties REME 190,000 39,000 324,466 778,266
Prepayments, other BAHE - Hi
receivables and FE U HRIE &
other assets HthEE 39 123 827 1,115
Cash and cash BeRBELE
equivalents FIER 45 36 - 146
Tax recoverable A Y [l BB - 34 - 48
Deferred tax liabilities EREHBEAR (1,848) (39) (201) (3,178)
Other payables and HiERFEK
accruals [t E R - - - - (6)
Deposits receivedand B MIR4E R
receipts in advance B A (2,850) (RED)] (3,777)
Tax payable ERHE (13) (30) (49)
185,373 51,582 38,854 325,092 772,565
Professional fees and EEBARAY
expenses 190 54 42 4,027 6,038
Gains/(losses) on disposal HEMBAFZ
of subsidiaries Wi/ (B8) 1,658 ) (3,826) 9,140

187,221 38,893 325,293 787,743

Satisfied by: IRFE:
Cash Bé 187,221 38,803 325,293 787,743
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33. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 33. HEMB QR (®)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 (Continued) BE-_Z—hWE=A=1+—RHLEE
(&)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents EBEEWNBARIZR S RESERE
in respect of the disposal subsidiaries is as follows: BERAFEINMOT :
Oriental Shiny PT
Sino  Precious World  Wang To Antic Harvest New Earth Total
RE *E ZE =8 Gl st

HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
TR TER TR TR THET TR TR THER

(note (a))  (note (a)) (note (a)) (note(a)) (note (b)) (note(c))  (note (d))

(HzE@)  (MEE@)  (ME@) (@)  (KEb)  (KEe) (&)

Cash consideration BeRE 187,221 69,078 51,616 38,893 325,293 31,773 787,743
Cash and cash BHERE R

equivalents ReSRIER

disposed of (45) (33) (32) (36) (146)
Professional fees and BEERLEY

expenses (190) (71) (54) (42) (1,084) (4,027) (570) (6,038)

Netinflow of cashand ~ HEMBAFZ

cash equivalents in BeRBELE
respect of the disposal FAEERAZE
subsidiaries 186,986 51,530 38,815 82,785 321,266 31,203 781,559
Notes: =
(@) On 7 February 2018, the Group entered into a sale and a WR-ZE—NE_A+tH AEEEAMNT
purchase agreement with an indirectly wholly-owned ECHEE2ENBRARYEE Ha
subsidiary of WYT, pursuant to which the Group disposed Bt - A K E 48 K E350,000,0007% 7T
of the entire issued capital in, and all shareholder’s loans H & ¥ £ - Precious * Y B &Wang To
owed by, Oriental Sino, Precious, Shiny World and Wang (FAARAERZEEL2ENBAR)
To, all being indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries of the EHWEBRITBRARFARZEZHLBREE
Company, at a total consideration of HK$350,000,000. The K oBRIERETHRAUELATEERZ
transactions constitute connected transactions as defined BERS XS5 ER_ZE—N\FMWA
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transaction was “tTHRHBEZEK -

completed on 25 April 2018.



33. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

On 29 March 2018, the Group entered into a provisional
sale and purchase agreement with an independent third
party, pursuant to which the Group would dispose of
the entire issued capital in and assign the benefit of the
shareholder’s loan owed by Antic, an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, at a consideration of
HK$83,800,000. The transaction was completed on 31 July
2018.

In March 2018, the Group put the property held by PT
Harvest for tender and on 12 April 2018, the Group has
entered into a provisional sale and purchase agreement
with another independent third party, pursuant to which the
Group disposed of its entire issued capital in and assigned
the benefit of the shareholder’s loan owned by PT Harvest
for a consideration HK$324,466,000. The transaction was
completed on 23 August 2018.

On 10 May 2018, the Group entered into a provisional sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party,
pursuant to which the Group would dispose of the entire
issued capital in and assign the benefit of the shareholder’s
loan owed by New Earth Investments Limited, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at a consideration
of HK$32,000,000. The transaction was completed on 10
August 2018.

RERBWERBRAT —ZT-NFFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 35 ¥R R Y & ()

31 March 2019

—NE=ZA=+—~H
HEME AR @)
Eﬁi:‘é:g—ﬁﬁzﬂ =t+—HLEFE
GERNCD
b) RZZE-NF=ZAZ-+NRA KEEHR

—EBYE AR VGEEERE &
b+ AN £ B A A {8 83,800,000 Jt H &
?E‘i($ AHEZENB AR 2IE
fTHxK&LS%TzEEFﬁ?(Hx%E X2 H
HoRRGERZE—NFLA=F—
A5 °

RZE-—NE=ZA AEEBEELH
EMYERBEZE TR-_ZE—NEWA
+ZH  AEEES —BRBIE=FHE
VEEEERS Bt AEENURE
324,466,000 T HEE Ly 2 B 81T
BAREZEEMRABRRERZ Ffla= -
ZRXGER_E—"NENA=-+=H=
ﬁio

R-ZZ—NERA+TH KE@ME—F
BYE=FTUGESHEERS  Hut
7N £ [ LA ££ {8 32,000,000 7T H & FI| 44
KEERARZEHEHTRARE R
ML EERAAMRBEERZF
#®oRXPERE-NENATER
ﬁ °
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33. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. HEKWB AR (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE-_ZFE-—-N\F=ZA=+t—HLEE
Details of the net assets of the subsidiaries disposed of to HEFBIYF=ZAZHBRARAIZEEF
independent third parties and their financial impacts are BEFBELRECHBERAAT

summarised as follows:

WS Group EM Group Total
WSK B EM& R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T T T
(note (e)) (note (f))
(Kt 3E(e)) (K 3E@)
Net assets disposed of: BEHEEEFE:
Properties under BRBPYE
development 394,891 2,687,633 3,082,524
Prepayments, deposits and FERIE e kEM
other receivables ] 98,340 - 98,340
Cash and cash equivalents HehBESZRIEB 12 5 17
Due to the Group FE A R & Bl SRR = (250,000) (250,000)
Trade payables FERTER K = (2,688) (2,688)
493,243 2,434,950 2,928,193
Professional fees and HEBRMEX
expenses 9,895 25,007 34,902
Gains on disposals of HEMRBAR W=
subsidiaries 457,143 790,318 1,247,461
Gain on remeasurement BEFTERNEEMRE
of the 50% equity DEAE—BAEED
interest in the WS Group ¥ ZWSE B 250%
retained by the Group f&#E 2 W=
classified as a joint
venture 467,039 - 467,039

1,427,320 3,250,275 4,677,595
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31 March 2019
—2-AF=A=+-8

33. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. HEKWB AR (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued) BE-_ZFE-—-N\F=ZA=+t—HBLEE
WS Group EM Group Total
WSH EM& R ]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FHE T FA&T
(note (e)) (note (f))
(KtzE(e)) (Bt EE()
Satisfied by: SARFE
Cash He 718,660 2,441,253 3,154,913
Partial refund of REBZIHDER
consideration (note (i)) (B 5G)) - (164,958) (164,958)
Fair value of the 50% equity ~ WS E50%% # ~
interest in the WS Group 1B (BT #EG)
(note (ii)) 718,660 - 713,660
Original cost of the 40% EME E40% A% # 2
equity interest in the R 38 B AR
EM Group - 973,980 973,980
1,427,320 3,250,275 4,677,595
Notes: M5
(i) Pursuant to the Agreement (defined below), the Group (i) BEZmR(EERLTX)  KAEEA
undertaken to downward adjust the consideration by EZBERETA AEABER-_ZT—h&F
refunding a sum of HK$164,958,000 to the purchaser in +— AmE AR [ & % 164,958,000 %
November 2019, subject to the settlement of a loan owed T B BENGERAER ZEX
by the purchaser to the Group of HK$600,000,000 as 600,000,000 JT * 4084 75 5 & i =183
further discussed in note 18 to the financial statements. — il o
(i)  The fair value was determined by management with iy AFEHEEB2ELEFTEIZEEX
reference to the actual transaction price of the disposal. The REBEF AEEMEBES TEZNASE
remaining interest held by the Group is re-measured at fair Bk EHWSEBRSEY BIRAFLES

value at the date the Group lost control over the WS Group. ztE o
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33. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. HEKWB AR (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued) BE-E-—-N\NF=ZA=Z1+—HBLtEFE
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents EREENBRAAIZH e RBESERE
in respect of the disposals of subsidiaries is as follows: ERAFEINBAT :
WS Group EM Group Total
WSK B EM& maE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FA T FH T FHET
Cash consideration RERE 713,660 2,441,253 3,154,913
Cash and cash equivalents EHEREERBASER
disposed of B B (12) (5) (7
Professional fees and EEBRMEX
expenses (9,895) (25,007) (34,902)
Loan receivable & W & 3K - (600,000 (600,000)

Net inflow of cash and cash HEWBARZRE R

equivalents in respect of BeERERRAFRE
disposals of subsidiaries 703,753 1,816,241 2,519,994
Notes: B 5
(e)  On 7 June 2017, the Group entered into a sale and () RZZE—LtFXALH AEEHE-—F
purchase agreement with an independent third party to BYF AN HBHEEWHE  UAHE
dispose of 50% equity interest in Wonder Sign and assign Wonder SignZ 50%M& # It #WS& B 4
the benefit of 50% of the related shareholder’s loan owed by RAEE 7 BB EE N Z50%%E 25 8
the WS Group to the Group, to an independent third party ETBIE=F - #R(EA713,660,000
for a total consideration of HK$713,660,000. The WS Group BT - WSEBETZRBERBNEWESE
was principally engaged in property development in Hong REK ZEXSER-ZZT—LtF~A
Kong. The transaction was completed on 7 June 2017. +tHTK - RHEHEEETKE - Wonder
Upon completion of the disposal, Wonder Sign ceased to SignTBAAEBE B AR - MAX
be a subsidiary of the Group and was owned as to 50% by EEHEBS0%EZE AL A E % E50%
the Group and 50% by the purchaser and Wonder Sign was # 2% - MWonder SignBIl{EBAEB & &

then accounted for as a joint venture of the Group. EDEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

33. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(f) On 8 September 2017, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) with an
independent third party to dispose of 60% equity interest
in Ease Mind and assign the benefit of 60% of the related
shareholder’s loan owed by the EM Group to the Group,
to an independent third party for a total consideration of
HK$2,441,253,000. The Group received HK$1,841,253,000
from the purchaser during the prior year and the remaining
HK$600,000,000 is accounted for as a loan receivable
from the purchaser as stipulated in the sale and purchase
agreement. The loan carries interest of 0.7% per annum
over 12-month HIBOR and is repayable by 27 November
2019. The EM Group was principally engaged in property
development in Hong Kong. The transaction was completed
on 28 November 2017. Upon completion of the disposal,
Ease Mind ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group and was
owned as to 40% by the Group and 60% by the purchaser
and Ease Mind was then accounted for as a joint venture of
the Group.

34. DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL INTEREST IN A

SUBSIDIARY

On 19 April 2018, the Group completed the disposal of
30% equity interest in Golden Noble (together with its
subsidiaries, Rich United and Sky Treasure Investments
Limited, collectively, the “GN Group”) and assign the
benefit of 30% of the shareholder’'s loan owed by GN
Group to a non-controlling interest shareholder for a
consideration of HK$103,800,000. As at the end of the
reporting period, the GN Group was engaged in property
development in Hong Kong.

Immediately following the completion of the transaction,
the Group’s equity interest in the GN Group decreased
from 100% to 70%. Since the disposal of partial interest
in the GN Group did not result in any loss of control, such
transaction was accounted for as an equity transaction
and the difference between the proceeds from the disposal
and the 30% carrying value of the GN Group, amounting
to HK$121,000, is recognised in the capital reserve of the
Group. Further details of this disposal are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2018.

B 35 ¥R R Y & ()

31 March 2019
—2-AF=A=+-8

3. HEWB AR (&)

BE-Z-N\E=ZA=+t—BHLEFE

[ 43 )

(= /

B RE ¢ (88D

H M-ZZTE—tFALBANB AEHE—
EBIYBE =R —BEEHHE(Z
Wik l) - MAH EEase Mind 60%% # 1
BEMEBZE R AEEZHBEREER
ZOO%EEERETELE =7 8K
8 52,441,253,0008 7T - A& B R =
# Ug B E 5 1,841,253,0003 7T © # T
600,000,000 8 LIZBEEHHE R EEARE
WEHFERAR ZERZRI2EBAES
SBITRIERBMEFR07%:T B WA
RZF—AF+—A=-++tHEE -EM
SETEREBNEVERRER - %
EHRXRGER-_ZE—tF+—A=+N\H
T o R EEBEEK % - Ease Mind ™
BAXEEZHBLAR  MAANEERE
B40%EZAREBAE H I B60%HE = -
MEase MindBI{E AKX EE A& & 1 E7
E.Eo

4. HE-EHNBLXRMNI D #ER

RZE-—NFOA+NAA  KEEBETK
i & Golden Noble (i [F] & Ht B A 7 & 1
N Sky Treasure Investments Limited @ %t
THIGNEE ]) BB0%E#E - WM — & IEE
iR REECGNEBRLEABREER L
30%% #& - X {8 /& 103,800,000 % JT ° B
WEHHER GNEERBBNREYWEE
R o

ZERXPEKE  AEBERGNE E /K
TE M 100%5 £70% ° M7 HEGNSE E 38
DHEEWEBIRAETMAEE  BEX
SERAH—BEEZRS  MEESEEME
TR BEAGNE [ BR T E30%H) = %8121,000
BIRAEENEAFERER - BHERX
HESFEMNE - PHBHAN LKL F A H
BT N\FHNATILBHRE -
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35. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED 3s.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

RERTREBRITE

METHELECEERY

Interest-bearing

bank and
other loans
FEEITR
B &K
HK$'000
T
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—+FWHHA—H 2,845,918
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREZE (722,896)
Increase arising from acquisitions of WEEMI B AR ESE 2 1E
subsidiaries (note 32) (Bt3E32) 1,105,300
Amortisation of loan procurement fee EEXEE-E ¥ 9,107
3,237,429
Included in liabilities of disposal A EABEEEZLEE
subsidiaries classified as held for sale WB AR AR
(note 22) (M 5E22) (302,974)
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZEBE-—NEF=ZA=Z+—HK
—E-N\FMHA—H 2,934,455
Included in liabilities of disposal RZE—NFNA—HFADES
subsidiaries classified as held for sale BELEZHENBRARARE
as at 1 April 2018 (note 22) (Bt 3E22) 302,974
Total interest-bearing bank and other RZE—NFMHA—BZFERITK
loans as at 1 April 2018 HEtERBE 3,237,429
Changes from financing cash flows MEREREZD 691,075
Increase in shareholder loan from non- REFERERZREE LN
controlling interest 103,701
Amortisation of loan procurement fee BB & # 85 5,804
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=ZA=+—8H 4,038,009




REMERRAR —FT-NFFRH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note
14) under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from two to four years.
The terms of the leases generally also require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rental adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
total future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling
due as follows:

B 35 ¥R R Y & ()

31 March 2019
—2-AF=A=+-8

36. REBFERH

(a)

EREAA

AEBRBKEHELHFLBEER
EME(ME14)  BAEEBEN T
EMFE-BOBHER—BRTAERBEPL
BNRESRAETAETHREER
mEERAEES -

REERKR REEBFITZZT
AREEERY  REER TIE
HAHER s RRFEESLEN
™

Within one year —F R

In the second to fifth years, inclusive SF_EZEAF(BEEHEERSE)

2019 2018
—E-AF —ZE—)N\#F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET T T
8,859

4,842

13,701
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36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 36. KREHEZH (&)

(b) As lessee (b) EREBEA
The Group leases certain of its office properties AEERESEHELTHHERET
under operating lease arrangements. Leases are WAEYWE - BHZEZAHNT
negotiated for terms ranging from one year to three —E=F o
years.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBMEBKR  BRETATRHELCER
total future minimum lease payments under non- W AREBRTIFHIAEZN 2
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: ARFEHSBEFEOT -
2019 2018
—E-AF —ZE—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within one year —F R 9,746
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F-_ZHF(PEEEME) 2,378
12,124
37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. EXREE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B £ X FE36(b)FF it 2 4% & H & &
in note 36(b) above, the Group had the following capital Gh o AIREEIR RNEE 2 ERAEN
commitments at the end of the reporting period: o
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI OB RBEE -
Properties under development ey E 109,433 1,179,475
Investments in joint ventures REREDRE 228,431 384,951
Acquisition of an investment property WHE—EIEEYE 587,700 =

925,564 1,564,426
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38.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (Continued) 37. EXREE#)
In addition, the Group’s share of the joint ventures’ own BN REBREENERD FERAEHS
capital commitments, which are not included in the above, ZHB(TEEREAARF)NT
is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THExT T3 T
Contracted, but not provided for BRI 418 R B
FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 38. MIBHER
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has RBERXR XEBECRR_ZE—NLF
given guarantees to a bank in connection with facilities — A=+ — B & TWSK E REME B &
granted to the WS Group and the EM Group up to 5 2,440,400,000%8 T(ZE —\F = A
HK$2,440,400,000 as at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: =+—H :2,158,800,000/& ) Z @ & A
HK$2,158,800,000) and the banking facility guaranteed by MITELRER  MAEER TWSEE K
the Group to the WS Group and the EM Group was utilised EMEEZRITREERN _Z-—NLF=
to the extent of HK$1,297,450,000 as at 31 March 2019 A=+—RHE#HMA1,297,450,0007% 7T (=
(2018: HK$1,033,300,000). = — A4 :1,033,300,000& 7T) °
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit AEBTERERFEAMNERGEMW
enhancements over the guarantees. The financial FERE UK ERARIKESREEEIE
guarantee contracts are measured at the higher of the BEIMTERSEREERBAZRST®
ECL allowance and the amount initially recognised less BRI ESE BHEEBERE NS
the cumulative amount of income recognised. The ECL BHEERSEREE  REeEHREENE
allowance is measured by estimating the cash shortfalls, BB AEAMELAEEEENTERRIERA
which are based on the expected payments to reimburse EHEEHEEBSANBNEMNESE - ¥
the holders for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts BReBREVBEERVOTERNALE °

that the Group expects to receive from the debtor. The
amount initially recognised represents the fair value at
initial recognition of the financial guarantees.

At the end of both reporting periods, the Group did not RAEREER  NEBWEFLZE N A
recognise any liabilities in respect of such corporate PEERERTMNER BALARRES
financial guarantees as the directors of the Company RESEANTEGHNTREMEMA - Al
consider that the possibility of default of the parties RZEERAAVABENSHEHR R
involved is remote; accordingly, no value has been WmIEREBE -

recognised at the inception of these guarantee contracts
and at the end of each reporting period.
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39.

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

(a) Transactions with related parties

BEALXRS
BRREMBRREAMESHFRZZHI
RAFEARNEERBEEALTETTI
BEAXRS

(a) EHBAEALTETZRS

2019 2018

—E-h#EF —ZE—N\F

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B = FHET T

Rental income from a subsidiary [z 7t 5 — W E 2

of WYT AmzESKEA () 9,482
Rental expense paid to a MATE —EHBA

subsidiary of WYT* AXHFzEEEA () 6,635
Purchase of products from a BUTE —HWBA

subsidiary of WYT AIEEESD (if) 669
Management fee income from MWSE B U B 7 & 12

the WS Group =3 PN (iii) 4,900

* These related party transactions also constitute * ZEMBEATRSIEK LT AFE14A

continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Notes:

(i) The transactions were based on terms mutually
agreed between the Group and the related party.

(if) The purchases from a subsidiary of WYT were made
according to the published prices and conditions
offered by a subsidiary of WYT to its customers.

(i)  Management fee income was received from the WS
Group in respect of management services on property
development.

ERAEZKERERS -

() ZEXSHERBAEBEEEALIE
5 2 AT -

(i) REUTE-RNBARABEEERDRE
BEMzBEREUTEZ —BHEARF
AEEFREHAZFEESL -

(i) HUEBRZEERBRAWSE B W Z
EEBEWRA -
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. BEALTRSZ (#)
(Continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel b) FEEXTEEBEABZHE
of the Group

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Short term employment benefits REEE R 9,723
Post-employment benefits R RAE T 108
Total compensation paid to key TNFEEEEAE
management personnel ZTHEBE 9,831
The above compensation of key management LTz ZEEBRABEZ2HEITEBREE
personnel excludes the directors’ remuneration, EME  FRHRI B RKRMES -
details of which are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

(¢c) On 11 August 2017, the Group acquired a fellow (¢) RZE—+ENA+—HB KX&EH
subsidiary, Goodtech Management Limited LA K 82,800,000/ LAl R L 2 B #
(“Goodtech”), from Join China Investment Limited, 2EWMBRAREFTEREABR AN
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of WOG, R ENBASEEEAR
for a consideration of HK$2,800,000. Goodtech is REA(BE]D SETEREVE
principally engaged in property management. The EREK -HeRBEELESF
difference between the cash consideration and the B2 ZFB71,0008 TE st AA G
net assets value of Goodtech of HK$71,000 was o
debited to the merger reserve.

(d) The Group has given guarantee to a bank in (d) KEEBERE FWSEENMEMEEZ
connection with facilities granted to the WS Group MEMRIBTEHER BHEAEH
and EM Group, further details of the guarantee by FriEEFRzE — S ERIBREK
the Group are disclosed in note 38 to the financial M eE38H " - MM ARRAIEERA
statements. The Group did not recognise any ZEUHBERAEANRNTERRT R
liabilities in respect of such financial guarantees as R|MERARZAFEEIAEEKR W
the directors of the Company consider that the fair AREBITERZSETBIERERE

values of these financial guarantee contracts at their A BAaE -
initial recognition and at the end of the reporting
period are insignificant.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

41.

CATEGORY

All financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group as
at 31 March 2019 were financial assets at amortised cost
and financial liabilities at amortised cost, respectively.

All financial assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
March 2018 are loans and receivables, and financial
liabilities at amortised cost, respectively.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of financial
assets included in cash and bank balances, deposits and
other receivables and loan receivable, financial liabilities
included in trade payables, other payables and accruals
and the current portion of interest-bearing bank loans
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the directors
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments.
The finance department reports directly to the directors
and the audit committee. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the values
of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the directors. The valuation process and
results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year
for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

40. &8

41.

BEs2E@MITA

AEER_FT-NF=ZA=T—HZM
EeREENEBEBEED I AIRBHEN
AR zEMEERIRBHKAI R
TEAE -

AEER-_FT-NEF=ZA=T—HZMH
EEMEENRBED I AERKEER
HARREBHEKAGEZERAR -

EMIARFERLD2FESER

EEEENEFARSRRITER  KE
REMBRRENRERER ZERE
B REARMRRK - B R 30E ks
ERAZERMBENNGRBITERZAH
MOZRAFEREZE ZREERS
EHRZETAREHRAAREY -

AEENEFEREZHBHATEES
MIARFEFEZER &ﬁfoﬁﬁ%
BERAEERERZESHRE NERSE
B MBHomemIAZEEESY
BEHETERZEEGARE - HEMH
EXERLME  HESREMERBEX
ZEETFAmMA  AEZ2J T B REF
B wE

TREENRABZATVTERERIAT
mﬁﬁxﬁﬁﬁﬁ§%$7§ﬁ2$%
RGBSR EHERID
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank and other loans have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other loans
as at 31 March 2019 was assessed to be insignificant.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include other
receivables, loan receivable, deposits, trade payables,
other payables and accruals, cash and bank balances and
bank and other loans.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans with floating
interest rates. The Group has not used any interest rate
swaps to hedge its interest rate risk, and will consider
hedging significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax.
There is no material impact on other components of the
Group’s equity.

41.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

2. iBEREEEEREE &)

R BB (2)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax

E¥Em/ B Bt AT 3% A
OR4) #Em (hd)

HK$'000
THE T
2019 —E-NEF
HK$ BT 100 (38,504)
HK$ BT (100) 38,504
2018 —E—N&E
HK$ 7T 100 (32,240)
HK$ BT (100) 32,240

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
cash and cash equivalents, loan receivable and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis. The maximum exposure of these
financial assets is equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

In respect of loan receivable and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31
March 2019

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 March 2019.

FERR

AEBZEERRIEXRAZLAESS
FIRE B U E R H YRR - & 12
ERAGERE BBEELEEEZEE
ERk - ZEeMEEZRANARENZ
FTAZKEE-

HREEEREEMERREAENS  AEE
CHMBEERRRR —EHRZIEFIFHL
= ERE

R-EBE-NE=ZA=+—-HANE=AK
M EEER

TRV ERAKEEEERRNEELR
EErnfEERR T2ERABREH K
FHMEHNATEEANLE TITBERAL
BHANBERATER)  RR-_FT-AF=
AZT BN FERRIE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31
March 2019 (Continued)

B 35 ¥R R Y & ()

31 March 2019
—2-AF=A=+-8

2. IEREEEERBE &)

EERREE)

R-ZE-AF=ZA=Z+—BWES AR
REEBRE)

12-month ECLs

Stage 1

1248 A

EHEESE

EF—RE

HK$'000

FA& T

Loan receivable FE I B 3 600,000
Financial assets included in prepayments, other s+ AJ& -t 18 - H fib fE Uk 7018 &%

receivables and other assets — Normal* HthWEENEREE — EF 713,502

Cash and cash equivalents Re kIR ERIER 1,878,905

3,192,407

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

* WERABHRTEEHNBTEREED
VIHERAREERR REE N - BIE
ATENFRIE  HEmEEFEREMEE
MEMEENEELERBERIER] -
BR 2RMEENEEEZRRARITF
B e
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT L. BHEREREEEEREE &)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31
March 2018

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which
include cash and cash equivalents, other receivables and
loan receivable, with the maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
loans.

FEERKZ)

R-ZEBE-NE=ZA=+-BNESAR
N EEER

AEBEZEREE(BRREMREER
BB  HttEERAREBERER) 2&K
EERAREFRNZEFTLAZEEE -

B E R R
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EREsRERzZAR - HETAAESRE
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 2 MEEABEEEERER®)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBEEREE)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at RIREBKR  BREAHOARUBENK A%
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual EcmaEziBBreT

and undiscounted payments, was as follows:

2019
—E-NF
On Within 1to2 3to5
demand 1 year years years Total
RER —FR —EWMFE =ZERF et

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000
FTET FTERT FTET FTERT TET

Bank loans (note) RITEH (M) 459,882 915,022 1,289,462 1,439,116 4,103,482
Other loans (note 26) HEaEK(HiE26) 11,254 11,254 198,824 221,332
Trade payables (note 23) &< BR 2k (Bt £123) 118,043 — 118,043
Other payables and EfpEMRIER

accruals fEETE A

(note 24) (Hf5E24) 195,848 13,184 209,032

459,882 1,240,167 1,313,900 1,637,940 4,651,889

2018
—E-N\F
On Within 1to02 3to5b
demand 1 year years years Total
RER —FA —EWMF =ZFZRF it

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$O000 HK$'000
TR TR TATT TR TATT

Bank loans (note) RITER (M) 134,922 780,219 1,225,143 1,278,385 3,418,669
Other loans (note 26) HEahE K (H7E26) = 14,201 = = 14,201
Trade payables (note 23)  FETBR 3 (KtEE23) - 159,187 = - 159,187
Other payables and HEtENARER

accruals st &R

(note 24) (M 5E24) - 32,814 164,958 - 197,772

134,922 986,421 1,390,101 1,278,385 3,789,829
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 2 BHEEBEEEERBEK#)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBEEREREE)
Note: M &
Included in interest-bearing bank loans of the Group are term AEBZHERRTERERERZZE—NLE=
loans with aggregate principal amounts of HK$412,982,000 AR=+—RAERZZE-—N\F=ZA=+—HBX%
and HK$46,756,000 as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, 4858 9 Rl £412,982,0007 T K& 46,756,00078 7T
respectively, of which the respective loan agreements contain a ZEHER  EFEBHERMERSIRERE
repayment on-demand clause giving the bank the unconditional BIEZ  BEFRITEGOGEMNAIEREZRESE
right to call in the loans at any time and therefore, for the purpose B -AMRERBBERME @EoEE
of the above maturity profile, the total amount is classified as “on [TRES] -
demand”.
Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not believe BT S BEERARAQARTEE
that these loans will be called in their entirety within 12 months, BN+ _EAAREBEEZSER B
and they consider that the loans will be repaid in accordance with ERBEHERBRBEEBERBZEMS 2
the maturity dates as set out in the respective loan agreements. FIHIREE - FEHAFEREEE  AEER
This evaluation was made considering: the financial position of MHEBRESLEBHRCHMBERRL  AEEE
the Group at the date of approval of the financial statements; the TERZBEZER  REBEEHSEMH MU
Group’s compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of events RAEENFEREER - BEERIER
of default, and the fact that the Group has made all previously ABHRBBAFRIOT ¢
scheduled repayments on time. In accordance with the terms of
the loans, the contractual undiscounted payments are as follows:
Within 1to2 3to5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
-FR —-EWE —ELf EENE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THETL TAEL THET THL
31 March 2019 Z2-N1F
=ZA=t+-H 61,625 411,236 500,384
31 March 2018 —Z-N\F
ZA=t+—H 91,882 10,657 35,633 2,729 140,901
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The Group monitors capital using a debt-to adjusted
capital ratio, which is net debt divided by adjusted capital.
Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and other loans,
less cash and bank balances. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity (i.e., share capital, reserves
and non-controlling interests). The Group’s policy is to
maintain a stable debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. The debt-
to-adjusted capital ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

B 35 ¥R R Y & ()

31 March 2019
—2-AF=A=+-8

BEEABREBEEREE &)

EXxEHE

AEEFERABHRAREALXER
BER - ZULEERFREBRKLHBE NG
B - FABERRARRTREMENRR
T R|ITHESR - KHRBELABREELD L
PR E D (BIRRA - (& & FR 1T AR 1
) AKREIZERRAEFRERBYL
HEERLER -RBEHRRZBEHLER
BEENRLEMT -

2019 2018
—B2-nF —T-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TE T TAT

4,038,009 3,237,429
(1,878,905) (1,558,849)

2,159,104 1,678,580

Interest-bearing bank and other loans PRSI REMER
Less: Cash and bank balances B IRE MIRITA R
Net debt FAE

Total equity e a R

4,489,456 4,183,914

Debt-to-adjusted capital BEHKHABEARL X 48.09% 40.12%
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43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(@)

On 18 April 2019, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party
for the disposal of investment properties in Hong
Kong at a total consideration of HK$135,000,000.
The transaction is expected to be completed in July
2019. It is estimated that no gain or loss is resulted
for the disposal.

On 26 April 2019, the Group entered into a
provisional sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to acquire certain workshops and car parking
spaces in Hong Kong at a total consideration of
HK$306,800,000. The transaction is expected to be
completed in September 2019.

On 6 May 2019, the Group completed the disposal
of 50% equity interest in Oriental Sunlight Limited
(“Oriental Sunlight”), together with its subsidiary,
Wellion Limited (collectively the “Oriental Sunlight
Group”) to an independent third party for a
consideration of HK$60,417,000. As at the end of
the reporting period, the Oriental Sunlight Group was
engaged in property investment in Hong Kong. Upon
completion of the disposal, Oriental Sunlight Group
has become a joint venture of the Group. No gain or
loss was resulted from the disposal.

On 30 April 2019, the Group entered into a
provisional sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which the
Group agreed to acquire 100% equity interest
and shareholder’s loans in Pearl Limited (“Pearl”)
and its subsidiary, which holds a property of a
shopping mall of Parkside, at a total consideration
of HK$780,000,000. On 21 June 2019, the Group
disposed 50% equity interest in Milevilles Limited, the
purchaser of Pearl, to an independent third party for
consideration of HK$39,000,000. The transaction of
the acquisition is expected to be completed in 4 July
2019.

43. {EPEREE

RZFE-—AFNMNA+NR AEH
B ZBYE=HFVES B
LEEEMREYE BREA
135,000,000/ 7T ° %% X 5 A HA 1§ A
—E-NFEARK - FEHES
BETeEERZHEE -

R-ZZE—AFEMA-+H A&
Bl -Z2BYE=HFUBEHE
Bz BUEASERBEWESS
ETIERAEM BREB
306,800,000/ 7T ° Z X 5 B R
ZE-NFENLAEK °

R-ZZE—AFERANE  ANEBX
A —2BYFE = HEREAR
AR([EEDERENBARER
ERAR (B REEE])50%HK
- KRB A60,417,00078 7T ° P ]
LHR REEEREBEREME
B"E -ZEREER RESEKS
AEEBMNAELE HEFHILE
ELXWEIRER -

R-TE—AFMWA=+H A£H
H—-—FZBYE=ZHFYGRESR
W& Bt A KB R E U EPearl
Limited ([Pearl]) & & i B & A
(¥ BParksidelE Wi % — MW %)
100%BERRRERER BRE A
780,000,000 7L c R =T — L F
ANAZT—B AEER—EZB
Y % = 5 1 & PMilesville Limited
(Pearlh B /) 50% 1 #E - RE A
39,000,000 7T - ZWERX HTEH
BER—_E-—NLFELtAOBEEK °
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 44. XA Z B BRRA T

OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

31 March 2019

—2-AF=A=+-8

R

2019
—E-hF
HK$’000
FTRERT

NON-CURRENT ASSET FREBEE
Interest in a subsidiary NS NGIR -
Loan to joint ventures BERTEEDRLE 722,597
Total non-current assets IERBEEMLTE 722,597
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Loan receivable B E & 600,000
Prepayments, other receivables and BRI RIE -~ A B RIE R

other assets EmEE 8,213
Due from subsidiaries NI 4,371,890
Cash and cash equivalents HehkIRE&ERIEE 1,136,430
Total current assets BREEE 6,116,533
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals HithEIRIBRETER 4,229
Interest-bearing bank loan FFRRITEXK 149,663
Due to subsidiaries JEfH B R R FUB 3,174,182
Tax payable FES BB 10,093
Total current liabilities BREEE 3,338,167
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 2,778,366
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERRBERE

LIABILITIES 3,500,963
Net assets BEFE 3,500,963
EQUITY E=
Issued capital BEITRK 15,200
Reserves (Note) A 3,485,763
Total equity T 7 4B KE 3,500,963

Wong Yiu Hung Gary
EHRS

Director

EZF

Tang Ho Hong
B R

Director

EF

ERRBERAREARAMBEMRRAKRZE

2018
—E-NF
HK$’000
FHT

1,340
3,047,313
1,349,549

4,398,202

8,389
10,000
1,516,816

1,635,205

2,862,997

2,862,997

2,862,997

15,200
2,847,797

2,862,997
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  44.

OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

AKRBZMBERRT2Z)

=
m

b}

ARABZHEBHRENT :

Retained profits/

Share Contributed (accumulated
premium surplus losses) Total
REBEF
1% 17 ' & EHAEHK (Rt EE) k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAT FHET FHT FHT
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—+tFMA—H 316,889 2,047,989 (31,536) 2,338,342
Profit and total comprehensive 7 4 & & ) &z
income for the year PHNEEE - - 666,455 666,455
Special dividend proposed and £ 18 2 & % 11 2 45 Bl i% 2.
paid - - (152,000) (152,000)
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April R-Z—N\F=A=+—H
2018 r—E—-NFMA—H 316,889 2,047,989 482,919 2,847,797
Profit and total comprehensive ZREEHF R 2 EK R LR
income for the year - - 736,766 736,766
2018 final dividend proposed BRER Xz —Z—\F
and paid KB E - - (98,800) (98,800)
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE—NAF=R=+—H 316,889 2,047,989 1,120,885 3,485,763
45. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 45. BIIE SR E > BB
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 25 June 2019.

AHBHRRER _T-NFRA-TH
AREHEFEHERKENE -
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWZF
Attributable
interest of
Location Use Tenure the Group
i 2 A HH rEBEGRESR
Office on 30th Floor, Commercial premises Long term lease 100%
United Centre, N0.95 for rental
Queensway, Hong Kong
BRLEEBHER R O0BRAE EE Sk £ 2178 4
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE BREGEUE
Attributable
Approximate interest of
Location saleable floor area Use the Group
it B BAEREE AR AEEEGEES
(square feet)
(FHER)
Nos. 575-575A, Nathan Road, 15,000 Commercial 100%
Mong Kok, Kowloon
JUREHE /5 T BB 575-575A5 S
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT BREPYE
Anticipated Interest
Approximate year of attributable
Approximate gross floor completion  Stage of to
Location site area area Use date completion the Group
Has A iy 3L
ks BOnBER BEHR A2 RIFE RHER 213 5
(square feet) (square feet)
(FER) (FER)
No. 7838 Tai Po Road — Tai Wai 71,000 148,000  Residential 2019 Construction in 100%
progress
RBRE - KERT7838%: iz “E-NE gp
No. 8 Shung Shan Street and 41,000 272,000  Residential and 2020  Construction in 50%
No. 15 Sze Shan Street, Yau Tong Commercial progress
IR R L 8% R ML 155 FEhE% “2-RF 4@
No. 11 Yiu Sha Road, Ma On Shan 253,000 388,000  Residential 2021 CGonstruction in 40%
progress
SHILBDEIH fr 2% gg
Nos. 86A-86D Pokfulam Road 28,500 28,500  Residential 2021 CGonstruction in 70%
progress
&K EBBAZ 86D i —T--% kB
Junction of Liu To Road and Hang Mei Street 14,400 90,000  Residential and 2022 Construction in 100%
(Tsing Yi Town Lot No. 192) Commercial progress
EHRRFEXHRR (BRI MR E1925) FEREE ZEIZF kR
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEMBEHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- THHIAEBRNBEREVFREEZEER
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, &&E - BERIFERERTE "I HEEEE
as extracted from the published audited financial statements F|& 7 @ ERFHERELBIRERLR IO 4@
and prospectus as restated as appropriate, is set out below. BEIERTEY -

RESULTS E 3

Year ended 31 March
BZ=HA=+—HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hE —E-N\F ZZT—+tF —T-RF —T—-1F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER FHET FHET FHET FE T

(note)
(P &%)
REVENUE A ikl 1,351,843 152,417 645,486 1,229,971
PROFIT BEFORE TAX W B A% F Sllrekl 2,004,953 24,210 393,429 538,173
Income tax credit/(expense) FIEREE, (HX) (170,550) (60,582) 4175 15,314 (80,950)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR N5 E R CROPZEE 1,944,371 28,385 408,743 457,223
Attributable to: JE1h
Owners of the parent NAEA A Seel| 1,808,456 38,816 410,000 457,399
Non-controlling interests JEfE AR RE 2 329,941 135,915 (10,431) (1,257) (176)
SROPLER 1,944,371 28,385 408,743 457,223
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- EE BERIEZERER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
At 31 March
R=HA=+-—H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

=E-A%F “F-N\F -F-LF -“F-AF -F-IfF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT  FTAE  TAT TR TER

(note)

(Bt &%)
TOTAL ASSETS BwEE LLergckr 10,147,702 8,028,055 4,075,669 5,901,774
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEE (Getlcks)) (5,963,788)  (5,636,441)  (2,044,528)  (5,663,291)
NON-CONTROLLING JEERER

INTERESTS PENEY (124,170) 11,745 1,314 57

4,461,367 4,059,744 2,403,359 2,032,455 238,540

Note: Bt R -

The amounts for the year ended 31 March 2015 have been adjusted HZE-ZT—AF=A=+—HLFEZLEEHE
for certain adjustments which were made to carve out or combine THEFUAE (EFRZEABEEHHAEHE
the results and assets/liabilities of certain subsidiaries of WOG to ZTHTHEBRARZEENEE, BE UWHBHEL
illustrate the historical results of the property development and property RERIE FIB 2 KB ZHEREAMELERME
investment businesses of WOG in previous published audited financial & XK ZBEFELE

statements.
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